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INTRODUCTION

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Peace Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year, the Group continued to make efforts in
developing its core business relating to the geographic
information industry and recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$304.9 million, representing a decrease of
8.66% compared with the year ended 31 December 2014.
The core business mainly consists of three segments, namely the
geospatial business application and services, data collection and
processing, and development and sales of equipment.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$304.9 million (year ended 31
December 2014 : approximately HK$333.8 million), representing
a decrease of 8.66% compared to the year ended 31 December
2014. The Group’s operations consist of GIS data collection
and processing, business application and services as well as
the development and sales of equipment, contributing 32.93%,
49.20% and 17.87% of the revenue for the year, respectively (year
ended 31 December 2014 : contributing 36.82%, 36.93% and
26.25% of the revenue for the year, respectively).
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Cost of Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s cost of
revenue was approximately HK$272.8 million (year ended 31
December 2014 : approximately HK$261.2 million), representing
an increase of 4.44% compared to the year ended 31 December
2014. The cost of revenue was mainly generated from business
relating to the geographic information industry, including cost
on aerial, training, rental of machines and software and data
processing and amortization expenses of the other intangible
assets. The increase was mainly due to increase in aerial
cost, purchase cost of machines and software which were
amounted to approximately HK$81.6 million and HK$51.2 million
respectively.

Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s gross profit
decreased by 55.78% to approximately HK$32.1 million (year
ended 31 December 2014: approximately HK$72.6 million).
Gross profit margin decreased by 11.23% to 10.53% (year ended
31 December 2014: 21.76%) mainly due to increase in cost of
revenue to enable the Group to fulfill the increase in demand.

Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group generated
other income of approximately HK$19.4 million (year ended 31
December 2014 : approximately HK$15.4 million), representing
an increase of 25.97% compared to the year ended 31
December 2014. The other income was mainly from government
grants.
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Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s
administrative expenses amounted to approximately HK$110.7
million (year ended 31 December 2014: approximately HK$109.8
million), representing an increase of 0.82% compared to the year
ended 31 December 2014. The administrative expenses mainly
consisted of legal and professional fees, staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments), depreciation expenses and amortisation
expenses.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
finance costs of approximately HK$67.2 million (year ended 31
December 2014: approximately HK$89.7 million), representing a
decrease of 25.08% compared to the year ended 31 December
2014. The finance costs mainly included the interests incurred by
bank loans and other loans, as well as the imputed interests on
convertible notes during the year.

Impairment Loss of Other Intangible Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
an impairment loss of other intangible assets of approximately
HK$60.7 million (year ended 31 December 2014: approximately
HK$11.2 million), representing a sharp increase of 441.96%
compared to the year ended 31 December 2014. It mainly related
to the impairment of certain intangible assets in the business
related to the geographic information industry.

Impairment Loss of Exploration and Evaluation Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
an impairment loss of exploration and evaluation assets of
approximately HK$0.4 million (year ended 31 December 2014:
approximately HK$0.7 million), representing a decrease of
42.86% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2014.
The impairment loss is attributed to the fact that the exploration
and evaluation activities have not yet led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of minerals and there has been no
further plan for substantive expenditure on further exploration and
evaluation of mineral resources in the area.
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Fair Value Gain (Loss) on the Derivative Component
of the Convertible Note |

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
a fair value gain of approximately HK$64.1 million on the
Derivative Component of the Convertible Note |, representing
a sharp increase of approximately HK$86.2 million when
compared with the year ended 31 December 2014 (year
ended 31 December 2014: fair value loss of approximately
HK$22.0 million). The increase was mainly due to a net fair
value gain of the fair value gain of approximately HK$96.9
million from the extended Convertible Note | on 17 June 2015,
which partially offset by a fair value loss of approximately
HK$32.8 million from the original Convertible Note | issued on
17 June 2010.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the
Group recorded an attributable loss of approximately HK$135.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 (year ended
31 December 2014: approximately HK$357.2 million).

Liquidity & Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, bank balances and cash and pledged
bank deposits were approximately HK$335.8 million (as at 31
December 2014 approximately HK$106.9 million). During the
year, the total borrowings, which included convertible notes
issued in the years 2010, 2013 and 2014, borrowings and
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, were approximately
HK$629.4 million (as at 31 December 2014: approximately
HK$887.4 million). The Group’s current ratio, being the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was 1.6 times (as at 31
December 2014: 0.5 times), and its gearing ratio, in terms of total
borrowings net of bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits to total equity, stood at 29.72% (as at 31 December
2014: 119.02%).
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Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s transactions are primarily denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong Dollar. The Group has not implemented any
formal hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign
exchange exposure continuously and, when it considers
appropriate and necessary, will consider hedging significant
foreign exchange exposure by way of forward foreign exchange
contracts.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 558 employees (as at
31 December 2014: 527 employees) all of which were officially
hired. Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments during
the year, amounted to approximately HK$91.1 million (year
ended 31 December 2014: approximately HK$97.8 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are primarily based on prevailing
market salary levels and the performance of the Group and of
the individuals concerned. In addition to salary payments, other
staff benefits include performance bonuses, education subsidies,
provident funds, medical insurance and the use of share option
schemes to recognise and acknowledge contributions made or
potentially to be made to the business development of the Group
by its employees.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Related to Geographic Information Industry

During the year, the Group continued to commit to developing
its business relating to the geographic information industry,
which mainly consists of the geospatial business application
and services, data collection and processing as well as the
development and sales of equipment.

Business Application and Services

During the year, the Group’s businesses mainly focus on the
following business categories for the business application
and services segment: fundamental planning, property title
management and emergency and public security. Among these,
fundamental planning mainly covered surveying and mapping,
planning, national geographic conditions and the construction
of smart cities; property title management mainly referred to the
application of geographic information data in sectors such as
state territory, agriculture, forestry, water resources, electricity
power, oil, transportation and real estate; and emergency and
public security mainly referred to emergency, public security,
environmental protection, meteorological phenomena and urban
management, etc. During the year, this segment recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$150.0 million, with an increase of
21.69% on a year-on-year basis, which was mainly attributable to
the industry application business of rural and forestrial land rights,
electricity power, water resources and transportation under
the category of property title management achieved significant
growth during the year.
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Data Collection and Processing

For a long time, the Group had strong data acquisition
capabilities for geospatial information data collection. No matter
on the introduction of aerial photogrammetry equipment and
aerial and aerospace remote sensing data, or on the street view
data and unmanned aerial vehicles low altitude remote sensing
data acquisition, the Group has accumulated a large number
of talents and industrial experiences. The Group continued to
make major developments in its capability to acquire oblique
photographs. Oblique photography is an emerging high-end
technology recently developed in the international surveying and
mapping sector which breaks the limit of the previous ortho-
photograhic technology under which photographs could only be
taken from a vertical angle. With oblique photography, photos are
collected from five different angles (one vertical and four oblique)
and transmitted through a number of sensors carried on the
same flying platform, thus introducing users to a real and intuitive
world conforming to the human vision.

For the data processing segment, the Group has accumulated
extensive experience and leading competence in data processing
and software development in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). As the first domestic enterprise introducing the “Pixel
Factory” data-processing system, the Group currently owns three
sets of “Pixel Factory” data-processing systems with processing
capacity that reach leading international standard. The Group is
therefore able to realize the automated processing of massive
image data, and processes raw geographic image data into
“4D” data with diversified purposes, including digital orthophoto
model (DOM), digital elevation model (DEM), digital line graphics
(DLG) and digital raster graphics (DRG). In addition, the Group
has vigorously developed technologies related to street view data
processing and three-dimensional holographic model processing
during the year, thereby providing early-stage preparation
for further exploration of industry application and business
expansion.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the segment of data
collection and processing recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$100.4 million, with an decrease of 18.32% on a year-on-
year basis, which was mainly attributable to the slowdown of the
country’s infrastructure construction, which affected the demand
for geographic information data from various sectors such as
land mapping and planning, etc..

Development and Sales of Equipment

To closely meet market demands, the Group developed and
manufactured high-end surveying and mapping equipment with
independent intellectual property rights, such as laser panoramic
photogrammetry vehicles, professional aerial surveying and
mapping unmanned aerial vehicles and geographic information
emergency surveillance vehicles, etc, and has been a franchisee
distributor of Ultracam series aerial camera products developed
by Microsoft Corporation. During the year, the development and
sales of equipment segment recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$54.5 million, with an decrease of 37.84% on a year-on-year
basis, which was mainly attributable to the slowdown in the sales
of cameras with the domestic aerial camera market becoming
increasingly saturated.

Mining and Exploration Business in Mongolia

The Group currently holds four coal mining licences covering
a 1,114-hectare coal mine at Tugrug Valley (the “TNE Mine”).
Based on a report from an independent technical advisor issued
in 2010, the TNE Mine has approximately 64.0 million tonnes of
measured and indicated resources and an additional 27.9 million
tonnes of inferred resources as set out in the below table.
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During the year, there was no material change in the amount
of resources in the TNE Mine, compared with that of last year.
Besides, the Group also holds three exploration licences in
respect of coal deposits in DundGobi (14,087 hectares) located
in Mongolia.

Both of the carrying amount of the coal mining licences and the
exploration licences were nil, and the carrying amount of coal
mining licences and exploration licences remained fully impaired.
Taking into consideration the market price of coal, the cost of
production of the TNE Mine and the continuous recession of
foreign investment in Mongolia, the Group did not commence
production during the year 2015.

PROSPECTS

Although constrained by the international economic situation
and domestic economic restructuring and other factors in
recent years, geographic information industry still maintained
a rapid growth with an average annual growth of over 20%
during the 12th five-year plan period while the national macro-
economy facing the downward pressure. As a modern service
industry, a strategic emerging industry and a high-tech industry
that utilizes geographic information resource as development
core, geographic information industry plays a significant role
in transforming economic development model of the PRC and
promoting information consumption. With high technology
content, less consumption of material resources, huge growth
potential, good comprehensive benefits, strong job creating
ability, close industrial relevancy and other unique advantages,
geographic information industry has become a vital link for
macro economic strategic transformation of the PRC. Because
of these unique characteristics of the geographic information
industry, relevant national authorities attached great importance
to the industry and established a series of guidance rules.
In accordance with the request of the State Council on the
promotion of surveying and mapping geographic information
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industry, National Development and Reform Commission
and the National Administration of Surveying, Mapping and
Geoinformation jointly issued the ( Rt IR(E BE £ R IR E
(2014-2020%F )) (Development and Planning of the National
Geographic Information Industry, (year 2014-2020)*) , which is
the first geographic information industry planning of national level.
In addition, the promulgation of the [ 2B ZLH#E A48 & & B 45 2 40
£(2015-2030% ) | (Outline of the National Medium-and Long-
Term Plan for Basic Surveying and Mapping (year 2015-2030)%),
[ B & T1T52016-20205R EIAZ | (Outline of the Industry 2016-
2020 in each Province and Municipality*), the [ 2Bl &E+ =%
FIREIGME | (Outline for the Thirteenth Five-year Plan*) which
published on March 2016 and other relative forthcoming plans
and regulations indicates that the geographic information industry
will not only continue to be active, but also will realize a huge leap
during this period, becoming a new growth point for the Chinese
economy.

In future development, the Group will strive to transform from a
single mapping service provider to an industry-wide information
service supplier, and from a service provider of infrastructure
to one who offer asset management services. In terms of
development trend, the Group will continue to maintain its cutting
edge on traditional sectors such as geographic mapping, land
mapping and planning. Meanwhile, it will also gradually shift
its focus to fast growth areas of 2015 and spotlight of 2016,
including:

— Land right projects such as agricultural and forestry land
rights and its subsequent applications: agriculture and
forestry land right is a crucial aspect of national real estate
management. It mainly solves the problems of ownership
and management on agricultural land, homestead, and
land for economic activities which lay a foundation for land
transfer and further agricultural application.

For identification purpose only
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Real estate registration projects of various type of land
resources and their ancillary information: real estate
property refers to properties that are by nature or by law
immovable, such as land, houses, prospecting and mining
rights and other fixed objectives on the ground. The (&~
FES L TEZHEMA (Implementation Rules for
Interim Regulation on Real Estate Registration®) published
on 1 January 2016 came into force from the date of
release. Real estate regulation cannot be realized without
the support of geographic information, especially two of
the most basic elements: location and attribute. From the
original data acquisition, the construction of real estate
registration platform, to the follow-up information publishing
and sharing, real estate registration needs a full range of
technical supports from modern mapping geographic
information technology in the whole process of data
acquiring, processing, analyzing, sharing and publishing.

Industry assets survey and relevant asset management:
At present, various industries in the PRC has gradually
transformed from the stage of large-scale infrastructure
construction to the stage of liquidizing and managing stock
assets. Existing assets of inventory need to be checked
and sorted, preparing for asset information management,
management costs reduction and deep application of the
next stage.

Smart city and its related sub-sectors including intelligent
transportation, smart shopping malls, smart healthcare and
smart community, etc: During urbanization, core demands
on urban operating efficiency and the effective utilization
of urban assets will remain unchange. The Group has
accumulated rich experience on various aspects of certain
related sub-sectors of smart city such as transportation,
water conservancy, telecommunications, and electricity.
It will strive to apply past successes in the next year and
endeavor to distinguish itself in the industry of smart city.

For identification purpose only
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Looking forward, the Board believes that the Group is in a good
position to capture the development opportunities in geographic
information industry and the Group will devote its resources
for executing the strategies mentioned above. Meanwhile, the
Group will keep a conservative attitude in the mining business
in Mongolia and closely monitor the market conditions as well
as consider other options such as realization of the investment
should the opportunities arise. The Group will strive to
achieve sustainable growth and deliver satisfactory returns to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to the management and staff for their
diligence and dedication over the past year. Along the line, we will
continue to improve our existing operation and carry out further
exploration and development for important businesses while
ramping up development of new business ventures, with an aim
of enhancing Shareholders’ value in the long run.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUAN Hongliang (“Mr. GUAN") , aged 46, was appointed
as an Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company
on 6 August 2014. Mr. GUAN holds a Doctorate’s degree in
cartography and geographic information systems from Capital
Normal University, a Master’s degree in applied animal science
from Tokyo University and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Qinghua University. He also obtained
a Bachelor’'s degree in ecology and environmental biology from
Wuhan University. Mr. GUAN has over 24 years of experience in
data technology and cartography. He was elected as a member
of the “Recruitment Program of Global Experts” (“T Azt&”) in
2010, which was implemented by the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of the PRC, and was appointed as a member
of Expert Consulting Committee of the PRC. He was the general
manager of 1t K N BIEIE M AR A 7 (Peace Map Co., Ltd*)
(“Beijing Peace Map”) from July 2006 to July 2011 and was
appointed as its chairman in August 2011. He has also been the
general manager of 3t K Bl BRI AR A A (Beijing Peace
Map Information and Technology Limited®) (“Beijing Peace Map
Information”) since August 2012. Other than the directorship in
the Company, Mr. GUAN is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREERASHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun, aged 45, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since December 2012 and the Deputy Chairman
of the Company since August 2014. Mr. ZHANG holds a Master’s
degree and a Bachelor’s degree in management accounting
respectively and is a senior accountant. He has over 23 years
of experience in accounting and finance. Mr. ZHANG was the
executive director of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
(“AVIC Int’l”) and the executive director and vice president of
AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (“AVIC Joy”) (both are listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and substantial shareholders of the
Company). Mr. ZHANG is currently the deputy chief financial
officer of AVIC International Holding Corporation (substantial
shareholder of the Company) and the chief financial officer of
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC Int’l Group”) and
AVIC Int’l. Mr. ZHANG is also a director of certain companies
controlled by certain substantial shareholders of the Company
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. WANG Zheng, aged 35, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since August 2014 and was re-designated as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 4 January 2016.
Mr. Wang is also a director of Peace Map Technology Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated
in Hong Kong. Mr. Wang had been the deputy general manager
of Beijing Peace Map from August 2007 to August 2012. Mr.
Wang had been the deputy general manager of Beijing Peace
Map Information since August 2012 and the deputy general
manager of Peace Map Management Services Limited (formerly
known as MIG Management Services Limited), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong, since 15
August 2013. Mr. Wang passed the Self-Taught Higher Education
Examination in commercial English in Jiangsu Province and was
awarded a graduation certificate in commercial English in 2001.
Mr. Wang studied a course in business administration at the
China University of Political Science and Law from September
2010 to April 2012 and was awarded a course completion
certificate in June 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. ZHU Dong, aged 42, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since December 2012 and the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since August 2014. Mr. ZHU
holds a Master’s degree and a Bachelor’'s degree in management
accounting respectively and is a senior accountant. He has
over 22 years of experience in accounting, corporate finance
and advisory services. He is currently an executive director and
chairman of AVIC Joy and the deputy chief financial officer of
AVIC Int’l Group.

Mr. FENG Tao, aged 41, has been the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company since September 2013 and an Executive
Director of the Company since December 2013 respectively.
Mr. FENG holds a Master’s degree in business administration
from Peking University and a Bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Central University of Finance and Economics. Mr. FENG
also obtained TEERACHE (A BEERMER (professional
technical qualification in business administration and economics
(intermediate level)*). He has over 19 years of experience in
corporate finance and data technology. Mr. FENG has been the
chief financial officer of Beijing Peace Map Information since
September 2013.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREERASHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, aged 50, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since March 2013. Mr.
ZHANG holds a Bachelor’s degree in economics from the School
of Finance of the Renmin University of China. Mr. ZHANG joined
China Digital Library Corporation Limited in 2005 and is now its
vice president. Mr. ZHANG is a member of the Beijing Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. HUI Yat On, aged 56, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since August 2012. Mr. HUI
holds a Master’s degree in professional accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Bachelor’'s degree in
business administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. HUI is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of
the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce. Mr. HUI had
served as executive director and senior executive in several listed
companies in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. HUI is a director and/or
chief investment officer of several private investment companies.

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang, aged 41, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since November 2014. Mr.
ZHAI obtained a Bachelor’s degree in accounting from Beijing
Agriculture Cultivation Cadre Management Institute of Ministry
of Agriculture (BEE( LR 2RER#EEMT) in 1999. He is a
certified public accountant in the PRC. Mr. ZHAI is currently a
partner of It RFBREGETENEHFT (Beijing Zhongaizhongxin
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd*) and has over 8 years of
experience in accounting and auditing areas.

* For identification purpose only

20 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED R TE#ZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F%R

BAFHITES

RRMELE 50 BT —=—F=AHIAR
REBUIFERITES - REEFEFRARK
BRMQBR 2 QERBES BN - RAEAN T
TRENMATRETEEEFRETLR B
BEZARZEBE - KA RAMESHAHE
28

o
=

H—"RE 565 BT~ _F/\FHER
REVBUIFRTES - FEERBERBEIX
BEXEBEIBULBETXAETEHERE
BB - FEERBB GRS ERTH
BRREEANEEEE - FELEENEBRE
BLTRAREERTEERSBRITRAE - B
Bl - FEERBRIUARERRIZESRNR, &

& 4R BE o
TXé:wmnn

BEFMAE 415 B-FT-NF+—AHME
ARPVBEILIFRTESE - BRER - NNANF
PISEEANIIRBRERERRMER G ELE
7 o WAFBEEMETED - BRE /L RP D
RESHMEBIABALRNG S REZTH
HRBSFLKR -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. KANG Hua, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 11 December 2015.
Mr. KANG is a practising lawyer admitted in the PRC in 1994
and has over 20 years’ experience in the practice of law. He is
a partner of Zhong Lun Law Firm. Mr. KANG holds a Master’s
degree in Law from University of International Business and
Economics and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
(CKGSB). He is currently studying the Executive Master of
Business Administration degree in Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHENG Hoo, aged 53, was appointed as Company
Secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 1
October 2014. Mr. CHENG is a solicitor admitted in Hong Kong
in 1990 and in England and Wales in 1995. He has over 25 years’
experience in the practice of law. He is a senior partner of Nixon
Peabody CWL where he practices corporate and commercial
law.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of each member of the Group are set forth
in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group is
principally engaged in geographical information business in the
PRC and mining and exploration of mineral resources business in
Mongolia.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 70
to 283. No dividend has been recommended by the Board for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on page
284,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2015 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

On 21 April 2015, an aggregate of 950,000,000 shares of
the Company (“Shares”) were placed to not less than six
independent third parties at HK$0.330 per share pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the placing agreement. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10
April 2015 and 21 April 2015 respectively.

During the year, 8,860,000 share options had been exercised
by the option holders at HK$0.25 each and 212,800,000 share
options had been exercised by the option holders at HK$0.26
each for the issuance of Shares.

During the year, the Noteholder | (within the meaning of the notes
to the consolidated financial statements) converted Convertible
Note | (within the meaning of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements) in aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$15,964,000 at the conversion price of HK$1.1
per share whereby a respective total number of 14,512,727
Shares were issued.

During the year, the Noteholder Il (within the meaning of the notes
to the consolidated financial statements) converted Tranche A
and Tranche B Convertible Note Il (within the meaning of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements) in aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$66,000,000 at the
conversion price of HK$0.25 per share whereby a respective total
number of 264,000,000 Shares were issued.

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2015, are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ExgHE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2015 are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 47
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any
Shares.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Hongliang (Chairman)

Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WANG Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)
(Re-designated on 4 January 2016)

Mr. ZHU Dong (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. FENG Tao (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Songlin

Mr. HUI Yat On

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang

Mr. KANG Hua (Appointed on 11 December 2015)

In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, Mr. FENG Tao, Mr.
ZHANG Songlin and Mr. HUI Yat On will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles, Mr. KANG Hua
being appointed as Director by the Board during the year, will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Director, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The Company considers that
all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ LETTER OF APPOINTMENT

Each of Mr. GUAN and Mr. WANG Zheng has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 6 August 2014. Either the Company or
the Executive Director may terminate the appointment of the
Executive Director by giving to the other party not less than one
month’s written notice.

Each of Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun and Mr. ZHU Dong has renewed
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 12 December 2015. Either the Company
or the Executive Director may terminate the appointment of the
Executive Director by giving to the other party not less than one
month’s written notice.

Mr. FENG Tao has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 16 December
2013. Either party may terminate the appointment by giving to
the other party not less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 11 March 2015. Either party
may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. HUI Yat On, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 10 August 2015. Either party
may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang, an Independent Non-Executive Director,
has renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 30 November 2015. Either
party may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.
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DIRECTORS’ LETTER OF APPOINTMENT
(Continued)

Mr. KANG Hua, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 11 December 2015. Either
party may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract
of service with the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries not determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).

The Company’s policies concerning emoluments of the Directors
are:

()  the amount of remuneration is determined on the basis of
the relevant Directors’ experience, responsibilities, workload
and the time devoted to the Group;

(i)  non-cash benefits may be provided to the Directors under
their remuneration package; and

(i)  the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board,
options pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by
the Company, as part of their remuneration package.

DIRECTORS’ AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS" EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS

On 22 October 2012, Beijing Peace Map Information, Beijing
Peace Map and the majority of its ultimate shareholders entered
into certain structural agreements, namely a management
and consultancy services agreement, technical support and
services agreement, intellectual properties transfer and license
agreement, cameras transfer and lease agreement, equity pledge
agreement, and an equity call option agreement (the “Structural
Agreements”) in relation to ongoing transactions conducted
on a regular and continuing basis and in the ordinary and usual
course of the business of the Group.

The registered owners of Beijing Peace Map are PU#EfR 22 & &%
AR /A7] (CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd*) (“CATIC Siwei”), Mr. Zhang
Zhenshan, Mr. GUAN, bt RERBERE AR AR (Beijing
Boxun Tongda Technology Co., Ltd.*) ~ it RKITEIFIT AR A A
(Beijing Skywalker Map Technology Co., Ltd*) * it F/&& Z AR
K AR AR Beiing Haicheng Yingchuang Technology Co., Ltd*)
and Mr. Qin Chun.

Under the Structural Agreements, the Company through Beijing
Peace Map Information, a subsidiary of the Company, is able
to exercise control over Beijing Peace Map and its subsidiaries
(“Peace Map Group”) by way of controlling the voting rights
of Beijing Peace Map, governing their financial and operating
policies, appointing and removing the majority of the members
of their controlling authorities, casting the majority of votes at
meeting of such authorities and deriving economic benefit from
Peace Map Group. Thus, Beijing Peace Map is accounted for as
a 81.15% subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of
Peace Map Group are consolidated into the financial statements
of the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Structural Agreements, (a) Beijing Peace Map
Information agrees to (i) provide management and consultancy
services; (i) provide technical support service to Beijing Peace
Map; (i) purchase the equipment of aerial photography from
Beijing Peace Map and lease back the same to Beijing Peace
Map; and (iv) purchase relevant intellectual properties from Beijing
Peace Map and licence back to Beijing Peace Map whereas
the economic benefits derived from Beijing Peace Map shall be
transferred to Beijing Peace Map Information; and (b) the then
majority shareholders of Beijing Peace Map or their respective
nominee(s) (i) have granted an option to Beijing Peace Map
Information to purchase their equity interest in Beijing Peace Map
at nominal price or the lowest price allowed by PRC laws (only
if the nominal price is forbidden by PRC laws), which does not
have an expiry date; (i) have pledged the shares of Beijing Peace
Map to Beijing Peace Map Information to guarantee any sum
payable to Beijing Peace Map Information and any damages,
cost or expense (including legal cost on or other costs associated
with the enforcement or realisation of this guarantee) suffered or
incurred by Beijing Peace Map Information pursuant to the other
Structural Agreements; and (i) have appointed Beijing Peace
Map Information’s nominee(s) as their attorney(s) to exercise their
rights as shareholders of Beijing Peace Map such that Beijing
Peace Map Information will have effective control over Beijing
Peace Map.
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The Structural Agreements, excluding the agreements without
validity period provided in relation to the grant of an option
to purchase equity interest in Beijing Peace Map, pledge of
shares of Beijing Peace Map and the appointment of attorney
for shareholders of Beijing Peace Map, are for a term of 20
years and will be automatically extended for another 10 years
unless terminated by Beijing Peace Map Information in writing
within 3 months of original expiry. In addition, Beijing Peace Map
Information shall be entitled to extend or early terminate the
period of the Structural Agreements at its own discretion. Unless
agreed by Beijing Peace Map Information in writing, Beijing
Peace Map shall not vary or terminate the Structural Agreements.
There is no restriction on the number of times of extension of
the Structural Agreements unless they are terminated by Beijing
Peace Map Information. The Company does not purchase
insurance to cover the risk of non-compliance of obligations
under the Structural Agreements by Beijing Peace Map and the
majority shareholders.

The principal activities of the Peace Map Group can be found on
pages 10 to 13 under the section headed “Business Review” of
this annual report. Peace Map Group is responsible for 100% of
the revenue of the Group.

The following table sets out the financial results that Peace Map
Group contributed to the Group for the preceding two financial
years:
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For the financial year ended

BETHEHLEREE

31 December 31 December

2014 2015

—E 5 —E—REF

+—A=+—HB +=A=t—H

Revenue WA 333,808,000 304,881,000
Net loss B8 558 (83,909,000) (131,310,000)
Total assets BEE 1,649,105,000 1,512,370,000
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Reasons for using Contractual Arrangement

Currently, PRC laws and regulations place certain restrictions
on foreign ownership of companies that engage in surveying
and mapping. Specifically, a foreign investor may only hold a
minority interest in a Chinese entity that engages in surveying and
mapping, and foreign-invested companies are prohibited from
engaging in aerial photography. The Structural Agreements allow
the Group to effectively control Beijing Peace Map and therefore
recognise and receive substantially all of the economic benefits of
the business and operations of the Peace Map Group.

The risks associated with the arrangements and the
actions taken by the Company to mitigate the risks

Under current PRC laws and regulations, foreign ownership in
the surveying aerial photography and/or surveying and mapping
services is prohibited and/or restricted, and as a policy, approval
of foreign investment into this area is very difficult. To comply
with PRC laws and regulations, the Group has been conducting
its operation of the business in the PRC through the Structural
Agreements.

Tian Yuan Law Firm, the PRC legal adviser to the Company (the
“PRC Legal Adviser”), has issued a legal opinion confirming
that each of the Structural Agreements is legally binding and
enforceable under the applicable laws of the PRC up to the date
of this report.
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The risks associated with the arrangements and the

actions taken by the Company to mitigate the risks
(Continued)

However, there can be no assurance that the PRC government
authority would deem these contractual arrangements and/
or the Structural Agreements to be in compliance with the
licensing, registration or other regulatory requirements, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the
future (in particular those concerning foreign investment and/or
merger and acquisition by foreign investors) would not affect the
Structural Agreements and such contractual arrangements. Also,
the enforceability may be affected by any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganisation, moratorium or
similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and possible
judicial or administrative actions or any PRC laws and regulations
affecting creditors’ rights.

In order to mitigate the risk, effective consent has been obtained
or shareholders’ resolution has been reached stipulating CATIC
Siwei’s intention to be voluntarily and irreversibly bound by the
Structural Agreements in its capacity as a shareholder of Beijing
Peace Map. By operation of such consent or shareholders’
resolution, CATIC Siwei will not conduct any action or omission
of action which will adversely affect the performance of the
Structural Agreements, the receipt of economic benefits of
Beijing Peace Map Information from Beijing Peace Map, and
Beijing Peace Map Information’s control on Beijing Peace Map
in accordance with the Structural Agreements. Such consent or
shareholders’ resolution is not against the applicable PRC laws,
has not been withdrawn, suspended or deemed invalid by any
PRC government authority.

The Company has engaged our PRC Legal Adviser to review the
Structural Agreements on an annual, or otherwise on a need,
basis to mitigate the risk of any non-compliance of PRC laws and
regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no material
change in the Structural Agreements. As of the date of this
annual report, there is no unwinding of any of the Structural
Agreements.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of continuing connected transactions which also
constitute related party transactions for the year ended are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 15 May 2014, Beijing Peace Map and CATIC Siwei entered
into a tenancy agreement in relation to the tenancy of the
property of 5B-1, National Geographic Science and Technology
Industrial Park, South of Longtang Road, Touerying Village, Ligiao
Town, Shunyi District, Beijing which is a nine storey building with
a basement with a total gross floor area of approximately 12,254
square meter (the “Tenancy Agreement”). CATIC Siwei has
an 18.15% equity interest in Beijing Peace Map. Since CATIC
Siwei is a substantial shareholder of Beijing Peace Map, CATIC
Siwei is a connected person of the Company under chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Tenancy Agreement
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules. As all the applicable percentage ratios
(other than the profits ratio) in respect of the maximum amount
of annual rental fee payable by the Group under the Tenancy
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2014 and the
years ending 31 December 2015 to 2019 are more than
0.1% but less than 5% under the Listing Rules, the Tenancy
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder are
subject to annual review and disclosure requirements including
publishing an announcement and annual reporting regarding this
continuing connected transactions. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

On 22 October 2012, Beijing Peace Map Information, Beijing
Peace Map and the majority of its ultimate shareholders
entered into the Structural Agreements. Details of the Structural
Agreements can be found on pages 28 to 32 under the section
headed “Structural Agreements” of this annual report. Upon the
appointment of Mr. GUAN as a director of the Company on 6
August 2014 and by virtue of Mr. GUAN also owning as to 36%
in Beijing Peace Map, Beijing Peace Map became a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. As such, the
ongoing transactions under the Structural Agreements become
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Pursuant to rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules, the
Company is required to comply with the annual review and
disclosure requirements including publishing an announcement
and annual reporting regarding this continuing connected
transactions. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 August 2014.

In the opinion of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company, the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions were entered into by the Group:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the respective agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

For the purpose of rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor of
the Company has provided a letter to the Board confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the abovementioned continuing connected transactions:

(i)  have not been approved by the Board;

(i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
provision of goods and services by the Group;

(i)  have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the respective annual caps.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the Directors had a significant beneficial
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors and the chief executive
had the following interests in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO and which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:

(a) Long position in the ordinary Shares of HK$0.25
each of the Company

BEENBETHRAERERATRE
HEEEZRG  HERORES
ZERRKE
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(a) RAEARBREENSDEBTZERE
BRzRRE
Approximate

percentage of
shareholding in

Capacity/ Number of the Company
Name of Director Note Nature of interest Shares held RARQ TR
EEHA MisE B1ip, REmME BEERGEHE BHE D
Mr. GUAN Hongliang 1 Interest of controlled 350,652,000 4.30%
Ryt corporation
YRGB AR 2
Note: sk -

(1) The 350,652,000 Shares are registered in the name of Broadlink
Enterprises Limited (“Broadlink”), of which Mr. GUAN is entitled
to exercise, or control the exercise of 95.77% of the voting
power at general meetings of Broadlink. Hence Broadlink is
a controlled corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of
Mr. GUAN, who is therefore deemed to be interested in these
Shares under the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Long position in the underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

Share Options

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 25 February 2006 (details are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements), certain
Directors were granted share options to subscribe
for Shares. Details of share options outstanding and
exercisable as at 31 December 2015 were as follows:
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BB
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Number of
underlying
shares
comprised in Exercise
the share options price
Name of Director Date of grant Capacity BRESR Exercisable period per share
EEn? R AH HERRAEE TS BRITEE
Mr. GUAN Hongliang 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
BEREE “E-mEARZTAR ERBEA 31 December 2017 026757
“E-ME+ATAEE
S o s e =
Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
REELE “E-MEAAZTAR ERBAA 31 December 2017 0.26587T
“E-mETATAZE
S o s e =
Mr. WANG Zheng 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
THEE “E-MEAA-HAR ERBAA 31 December 2017 02677
ZE-MEFATRAE
ZEtF+ZA=T-H
Mr. ZHU Dong 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
REEHE “E-MEAAZTAR ERBAA 31 December 2017 026787
“E-ME+AEE
“E—+tFt-A=1+-H
Mr. FENG Tao 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
BELE “E-MEAACHAR ERBAA 31 December 2017 026787
“Z-WETRTHE
Sl 2 et =
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(b) Long position in the underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (Continued)

Share Options (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors or chief executive, had any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” above and note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children to acquire such
benefits.

38 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED R TE#ZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#&

BEERBRESTHAERERATRHE
HECEEZRG - HERARES
ZERRRE (7)

(b) RAXAFTHEBROEEZZRE (@)

BREGE)

BREXHWEEN R-_FT—RHF+_-A
=t+—B EFAERSTHAEBHERK
REIREAEREE (E& R ES L
BIRGIEXVER) 2 Btn - MR RIES
A RIEE S MR RPIZE 362 (A
FOSR R ARIRIZ A ST A S AR B MEE R
P2 T fRIHES SRR ©

ESWBROBES 2 EF

R EX [EFEREFSITRABRAR R K& H AR
EEZ B - HERD REFZEEIAR]E
BN ARA MBS ImAR M 39 TR E SN - MAF
EAEABSERERTAEEIRESS 2R
BRARMI8 R Z FRBR B AT FERBARE ZHX
ek EsmmEm 2 - HRERBETEBR
R AR B S EAE RIS A B IR ERT AL
CHBREEFAREFTAIEBARKFLZT
ZRIESBRN S -



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31
December 2015, so far as the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are aware, the following persons or corporations
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company of 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital:
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EEERE

FERRNEAD - N2 FEBERD
&

ZIN
RESzEHERAR

BARRESERESTRABHNA - BREFES
REAEEHIEXVIBEIB6IKATFTHFEZ XM
RELMBET RZE—AF+=-A=+—H
THALTSEE(RRARESKERITRAER
SN A RARZ B - ABEERD REFTESN
ANRABEBITIRA 5% KA LR SOAR ¢

Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
underlying  shareholding in
Name of Capacity/ shares held the Company
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest Notes BERD RALQ T RAE
FERRER 513 EEME LiEsd HBERHEE BAOB DL
Aviation Industry Corporation of China Interest in controlled 1 2,268,080,000 27.81%
FEMETHEEE AR corporation
ZiEfEE R
AVIC International Holding Corporation Interest in controlled 1,2 2,268,080,000 27.81%
P B i 2 B AT B PRI AR B PR A A corporation
RiEdEEER
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,2 2,268,080,000 27.81%
FRBE (B8) EEBRAR] corporation
el LE
Tacko International Limited Interest in controlled 1 1,161,900,000 14.24%
corporation
RiEfEEER
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited Interest in controlled 1,2 1,161,900,000 14.24%
R B fin e T BRI R (B) AR AR corporation
RiEHEE S
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ExgHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF

FERRRERM « A<D E]EERSD
RESZERRAR (&)

THE COMPANY (Continued)
Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
underlying  shareholding in
Name of Capacity/ shares held the Company
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest Notes BERG RN TR AE
FERREMR 51 REmME Liks3 HEROEE BHBED
Kingspot Investment Limited Beneficial owner 1,2 1,133,000,000 13.89%
EnEEAA
AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited Interest in controlled 1,2 554,080,000 6.79%
FRIZER () BRAT] corporation
RiEhAEER
Light Pearl Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 1,2 554,080,000 6.79%
corporation
R AR
Tongda Information Technology Limited Interest in controlled 1,2 554,080,000 6.79%
BEEEBRMAERAR corporation
R EE R
Smarty Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 1,2 554,080,000 6.79%

BEaEAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

1. Aviation Industry Corporation of China (*AVIC”) is interested in
2,268,080,000 Shares, underlying shares and convertible notes of the
Company through Best Pine Investment Limited, Billirich Investment
Limited (“Billirich”), Smarty Capital Investments Limited (“Smarty
Capital”) and Kingspot Investment Limited (“Kingspot”).

AVIC holds 62.52% interest in AVIC International Holding Corporation
which in turn holds 100% interest in AVIC Int’| Group which in turn
holds 8.49% in AVIC Joy.

AVIC Int’l Group also holds 100% interest in Tacko International
Limited which in turn holds 34.34% interest in AVIC Int’l which in turn
holds 100% interest in Billirich which in turn holds 17.38% interest
in AVIC Joy. AVIC Int’l Group also holds 100% interest in Best Pine
Investment Limited which holds 552,100,000 Shares. Billirich also
holds 28,900,000 Shares.

AVIC Joy holds 100% interest in Light Pearl Holdings Limited (“Light
Pearl”) which in turn holds 100% interest in Tongda Information
Technology Limited (“Tongda”) which in turn holds 100% interest in
Smarty Capital which holds 554,080,000 Shares.

AVIC Int’l holds 100% interest in Kingspot which is interested in (i)
733,000,000 Shares and (i) convertible notes that may be converted
into 400,000,000 Shares.

2. Mr. ZHANG Chuanijun is a director of Kingspot, Billirich and Smarty
Capital; the chief financial officer of AVIC Int’l Group and AVIC Int’l;
and the deputy chief financial officer of AVIC International Holding
Corporation.

Mr. Zhu Dong is a director of Light Pearl, Tongda and Smarty Capital;
the deputy chief financial officer of AVIC Int’l Group; and an executive
director and chairman of AVIC Joy.
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FEMETIEEERR(PMEEAT])E
BEEKREARAR - Billirich Investment
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MBI SR S B SRR 8.49% TR o

FR 7 B8 % 52 [ 77435 A Tacko International Limited
7 100% # %% + i Tacko International Limited
A P BB 934.34% %5 o P M BB 35
& Billirich #1100% # 2 + M Billirich 55 =1&

TR E)17.38% 2 o T A EIBR L B N FF A
ERKREARRAMNI00%E 2= & H
F5H 552,100,000 R A 1% ° Billirich 7i A
28,900,000 P& 5 ©

= 18 ¥ % ¥ A Light Pearl Holdings Limited
([Light Pearl]) & 100% #3%5 - M Light Pearl
BEBEELEMARAR(EE] ®H100%
3R o IBIEFF A Smarty Capital 8 100% # 25 -
ifl Smarty Capital #4 554,080,000 B&A% 15

A BB B KingspotBI100% HE % 0 M
Kingspot 72 (i) 733,000,000 % & 15 K (ii) ] X, 1
#5400,000,000 & i 15 2 AT AR R4 R B 1

Ay
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ExgHE

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

During the year, none of the Directors has any competing
interests in any business or had any interest in any business that
may constitute direct or indirect competition with the Group.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of total revenue, total sub-contracting costs and
purchases of materials for the year attributable to the Group’s
major customers, sub-contractors and suppliers are as follows:

Revenue
— the largest customer 6%
— five largest customers combined 24%

Sub-contracting costs

— the largest sub-contractor 25%
— five largest sub-contractors combined 86%
Purchases of materials

— the largest supplier 69%
— five largest suppliers combined 74%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers, sub-
contractors or suppliers noted above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out on pages 45 to 47 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
23 March 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounted
to approximately HK$35,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin, Mr. HUI
Yat On and Mr. ZHAI Shenggang. Mr. ZHANG Songlin, who
possesses professional accounting qualifications and relevant
accounting experience, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the main role and functions of the
Audit Committee are to review the Group’s financial information,
to supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, the Group’s risk management systems and to maintain
relationship with the auditor of the Company.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
interim and annual results, and has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed the auditing, financial reporting matters and risk
management systems of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ExgHE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval.

AUDITOR

The Company has appointed SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
(“SHINEWING”) as the auditor of the Company from
23 December 2013.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint SHINEWING as the
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Peace Map Holding Limited
GUAN Hongliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance is
essential for enhancing accountability and transparency of a
company to the investment public and other shareholders.
Therefore, the Board is committed to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of Shareholders and to fulfill its commitment
to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2015, except for the compliance of code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code which states that the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. GUAN was appointed
as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
since 6 August 2014 and Mr. GUAN was succeeded by
Mr. WANG Zheng as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 4 January 2016. The Board is of the view that although Mr.
GUAN has been both the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company up to 3 January 2016, this structure has
not impaired the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operations of the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals who
meets regularly to discuss issues affecting the operations of
the Company. The Board believes that the structure adopted
before and after 4 January 2016 has been conductive to
strong and consistent leadership as either structure has been
complementing the need of the Company at the relevant time,
enabling the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The role of the Board includes overseeing the strategic
development, business planning, risk management, annual
and interim results, and other significant operational and
financial matters of the Group. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual and interim financial statements to
be approved by the Board before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and ensuring compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. In discharging
its responsibilities, the Board meets regularly and acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care.

The Board currently is composed of nine Directors, of which five
are Executive Directors and four are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors are responsible for the Group’s
day-to-day operations and management. All Directors (including
Independent Non-Executive Directors) have been consulted on all
major and important matters of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
S Lt

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EE|%)

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in =~ BlZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE &=
the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meetings EGZHEKXREREES SR ZETgZ LR
for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows: RRAFAGZHABEHFEERNT :

No. of meetings attended/held

EELERE/BTRY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Executive
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General

Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings

E366d ENZS00d REZSGEH FMZS0ed YNZSEEd RREEAE

(Note 1)
Gia)
Executive Directors UnEs
Mr. GUAN Hongliang Bennk n - - - NA(PER) 11
(Chaiman) (2E)
Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun RESRk n - - - NA(TER) 0
(Deputy Chairman) (#ZE)
M. WANG Zheng TEkE m - - - - i
(Chief Executive Officer) (1843
Mr. ZHU Dong RSk n - 11 1 NA(TER) 11
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer) (BRER)
Mr. FENG Tao BERE i - - - - o
(Chief Financial Officer) (THEE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BU 78S
M, ZHANG Songin il m 2 i i - 0
Mr. HUI Yat On TRRE 6/7 22 - - - o
Mr. ZHAl Shenggang BEERA 6/7 22 11 i - 0
M. KANG Hua REfE NA(FER) - - - - NIA(RER)
(Appointed on 11 December 2015 (R=F-1%
+ZA+-H
EZf)

Note: BaE -

1. The Executive Committee of the Company was set up on 9 November 1. AAFMITZEGER _ZT—RF+—HANAK
2015 and no Executive Committee meetings were held during the AVARN =ty £¢+ AhBE=ZZ— fli¢
period from 9 November 2015 to 31 December 2015. ToA=T - BEERUTERTEMNRNTEES

i o

Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules requires at least one-third of the ~ EM#EBIFES10AKIRE - EHRAREL =92
directors of a listed company to be independent non-executive —EFBRBUIFRITEF - BHE_T—AF
directors. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the number T ZA=+—RHIEFE  BIIFERTEEFZA
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been maintained ~ BIE#ERBEEEGAB I =52 —°

as one-third of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that
all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 11 March 2016. Either party
may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. HUI Yat On, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 10 August 2015. Either party
may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang, an Independent Non-Executive Director,
has renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 30 November 2015. Either
party may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. KANG Hua, an Independent Non-Executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 11 December 2015. Either
party may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, seven full Board
meetings and one general meeting were held. Minutes of the
Board meetings and general meetings are being kept by the
Company Secretary and are available for inspection by the
Directors and auditor of the Company.

48 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED R TE#ZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F%R

EXeCRERBIUINTESRIELMRA
FEIRKEELZEABLIMRRE - EFR
B FBBUIFATESHNAE LMRAE
BABGRMTH 2 WL 5] ©

BUFANTEFTRMMEECTBARREER
TE BEEAHE-_T-R"EF=_A+—HER
Hi—% « KT HRAIBEAPR—EAZE
ERAARIEERE -

BUFANTEFF - REECRARARNEER
& BrdEHa =T —hAF/\A+HEAH
—F o ZFRIWTHABRET PR —EAZER
BARAKIEERE -

BIUFATEFTREMELCRARAEES
g BEdHa-_T—haft+—A=t+tB#
RE—F - BETHNTARBELEANDR—EAZ
EEBRMNEILEEZRE -

BT EEREXAECHARTFILEFE
2 BArEda - hF+-_A+—HEA
H—F c BTN HYEHAPR—ERAZE
ERAAL I EHEZAE o

REE-ZT—AF+-A=+—HBLEFE £
TTEtREFe2EEEN " ABRRRE - &
EEMRRASSACHEARTWETE - A
HARRRIEE MZHENER] -



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Directors are the senior management of the Company.
Details of their remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

THE ROLES OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the positions of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were held by
Mr. GUAN. The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other relationships with each other.

Further details on the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 17 to 21 under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. The obligations to comply with
the Listing Rules are set out in the letter of appointment of each
Executive Director and each Independent Non-Executive Director.
The Company has made specific enquiries with the Directors,
and all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements set out under the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREREE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Individual
Directors also participated in courses relating to the roles,
functions and duties of a director in listed company or enhanced
their professional development by way of training and reading
relevant materials. The training record of each Director for the
year is set out below:

BEE 2

RAFER 2RESTHESBERERNSE
EERZEHEMN BUEEN2ES L ™
NABEEFZRE - Bt RBEHEBERE 308
BIFIEBERAM B RITEERER - KF
EEEFNEIIREFINIT

Director’s duties and
corporate governance related
ESHERCEERERASE

Executive Directors
Mr. GUAN Hongliang
Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun
Mr. WANG Zheng

Mr. ZHU Dong

Mr. FENG Tao

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUI Yat On

Mr. ZHANG Songlin

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang

Mr. KANG Hua

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established in
the Company and the Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in D.3.1 of the CG Code.
The corporate governance duties performed by the Board for the
year ended 31 December 2015 were summarized below: —

(i)  reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
(Continued)

(i)  reviewed the Company’s policies and practices to ensure
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(i) reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and the Directors;

(iv) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code

and other related rules and disclosures in this Corporate

Governance Report; and

(v) reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Board has set up four committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Executive Committee, to implement internal
supervision and control on relevant aspects of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin, Mr. HUI
Yat On and Mr. ZHAI Shenggang. Mr. ZHANG Songlin, who
possesses professional accounting qualifications and relevant
accounting experience, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the main role and functions of the
Audit Committee are to review the Group’s financial information,
to supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, the Group’s risk management systems and to maintain
relationship with the auditor of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREREE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
interim and annual results, and has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed the auditing, financial reporting matters and risk
management systems of the Group.

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently consists of one Executive
Director, Mr. ZHU Dong, and two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin and Mr. ZHAI Shenggang.
Mr. ZHANG Songlin is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is to assist
and make recommendations to the Board to ensure that all the
nominations are fair and transparent.

During the year, the work of the Nomination Committee includes
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change
and determining the policy for the nomination of Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. ZHU Dong, and two Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin and Mr. ZHAI Shenggang. Mr.
ZHANG Songlin is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The key responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management and determine the remuneration package of the
Executive Directors and the senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of remuneration of all the
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee considered that the existing terms of remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management were fair and
reasonable. In forming its view, the Remuneration Committee
has considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy
in relation to that of comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior management,
desirability of performance-based remuneration and the
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 February
2006. Its purpose is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the eligible participants (including the Directors)
have made or may make to the business development of the
Group. Please refer to note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements for the principal terms of the share option scheme.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up its Executive Committee on 9
November 2015. The Executive Committee comprises three
Executive Directors, Mr. GUAN, Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun and
Mr. ZHU Dong. Mr. GUAN is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the main role and functions of
the Executive Committee are to advise and assist the Board
in formulating policies and to monitor the performance of
management in carrying out and implementing the policies laid
down by the Board for the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHENG Hoo has been appointed as the Company Secretary
on 1 October 2014. He reports to the Board and is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters. In compliance
with the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. CHENG Hoo has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company places great importance on internal control
and risk management to achieve the established corporate
objectives, safeguard the assets of the Group and the interests
of the Shareholders. The Board is responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system on a regular basis to ensure the system in place is
adequate.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clear division lines of responsibility
and authority which are designed for the efficient implementation
of policies, to ensure maintenance of proper books and records
of reliable information for internal use and publication, to
safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition, and to
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

There is currently no internal audit function within the group. The
Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the business of the group, it would not be cost effective to
have internal audit functions for the group. Nevertheless, the
Directors will continue to review at least annually the need for an
internal audit function.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system of the
Group, including its financial, operational and compliance control,
and risk management functions. The assessment by the Audit
Committee was made after its discussions with the management
of the Company and external auditor, and the review performed
by the Audit Committee. The Board believes that the existing
internal control system is adequate and effective to safeguard
Shareholder’s investment and assets of the Group. The Company
complies with the code provisions relating to internal control
contained in the CG Code.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Company recognizes the importance of communication with
the Shareholders, both individual and institutional, as well as
potential investors. The Company has adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring Shareholders
are provided with timely information about the Company and
enabling them to engage actively with the Company and to
exercise their rights in an informed manner.

The Company has policy for promoting investor relations and
communications by maintaining regular dialogue with institutional
shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media. Meetings
and conference calls were held with investors and analysts
in order for the Company to understand their views and to
keep them abreast of the latest developments. Inquires on
the Company were also dealt with in an informative and timely
manner according to established practices of the Company.

The Company’s website (www.peacemap.com.hk) also facilitates
communication with Shareholders and investors. Corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information of the Company are made electronically and in a
timely manner.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREREE

A ZPEEE (2)

EEeC A RERZEERNASERNEER
ERONARERRAL  BEAME  2EK
EREENLEREERE BEXZESHR
B RHE DB ERA R R RN B &Y
whHEZRESETHRNREL - EFE
RAE - BRNAMEZE RS RHL B BIRER
RERBERAEBZEE - ARARIDETEERE
YA ST RIFTEA B M BB B Y ST RIS -

EA

AAFH A ERE CRRRFAEA RS
EHREE)BINZEEM - KAAFIEENIREE
MK - EHEERBRRESEZRBAARRZ
ERRERSTABERTRESRAAAE
BERITHERS 2N -

ADAFEHIETEBREREEWERBNL K
g TRATHREEEEE  HeLE . H
WEREEEE  RREERANERTES
RESEE SEBRALTRBEEIER
REEEERADT 2 SFREER - KAR
IR B AR IR R R o

KA a2 By (www.peacemap.com.hk) JR{E 7
HEERIEEERBR - RAEMRARGHA
RV BEIETEERTREAEF XA
TERZAB UL _E 345 -

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERAT 55

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#&



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREREE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist himself may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist by the Company.

The Board always welcomes Shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary and
his contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Peace Map Holding Limited
Rooms 2807-08, 28th Floor
Bank of America Tower

No. 12 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Email info@peacemap.com.hk

Tel. No. (852) 3759 5300

Fax No. (852) 3759 5366
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group, and preparation of results and cash flows for
the year. The Directors shall ensure that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report”
on pages 67 to 69 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company, SHINEWING, has been employed
to provide audit services to the Group since 23 December 2013.
The remuneration paid or payable to SHINEWING in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately HK$1,260,000 and
HK$360,000 respectively. The non-audit services were related to
review of interim financial information of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s
memorandum of association and Articles.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIS - HERERHE

Pursuant to appendix 27 (Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide) to the Listing Rules, the Company sets out
below our Group’s performance on environmental, social and
governance-related issues.

Continuous dialogue is maintained with stakeholders that include
customers, employees, regulators and the public. The Company
seeks to balance the views and interests of these various
stakeholders through constructive conversations with a view to
charting a course for the long-term prosperity of the Company
and the communities we touch.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emissions

The Group’s TNE Mine was not in operation for the financial year
end 31 December 2015 and there was no air and greenhouse
gas emission, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste as such.

For Beijing Peace Map, its operation and ordinary course of
business did not cause any air and greenhouse gas emission,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste as such.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities in which it conducts business
by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of energy and
waste. The Group strictly implemented the Law on the Water
Resources of the PRC ((F#E AR KEAMEIKF]E)), the Law on
Power Generation of the PRC (FZEARKEMBEE 177%)), the
Law on Energy of the PRC (AR ZEMBIgERE)), the Law
on Energy Saving of the PRC ((F#EAREFBIREREN47%))
and other relevant laws and regulations.

58 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED R TE#ZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F%R

RiE EHRRAIMER27 (BRI - HEMEARETE
51)  ARBRTXEIAKEERRE - 18
REEIE R BRI o

ARFEES  BE  EEMBRARALE
FSHBA TR RS - AATERAR
R EE SHTEERSEREZELR
Rl - T AKA AR ERERANE
BT -

RERE

B

AEBWINEBSERBE_T—AF+ A
=T BUEMRERELREE B ED
RECREREE - MG RKE TS RES
BENRBEERREY -

BRILRKTEME  HEERAEEBBIET
WEHREREROLAZERE - TR RAK KL
THHS RELEERBEEERY) -

BERANA

AEEEBREBRER - WD ERH A K EE
BY) BORKEBEAMELROREAHE
TR o AEBBBHIT(HEARLMEKF
E) AREARKMBEENE) (PEARHK
MEBERE) ~ (REARKMBIERENKE) K
HAbERARER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

On 16 December 2015, the Environment Management System
of Beijing Peace Map obtained a certification certificate in
conformity with GB/T24001-2004/ ISO 14001:2004 standard.
The certificate is valid until 15 December 2018. Our aim is to
contribute to the sustainable future and be in harmony with the
global environment.

The following measures in respect of energy saving and carbon
reduction as well as waste management are implemented by the
Group:

1. Programming regional air-conditioning control system to
turn off certain units in unoccupied areas of office premises
and warehouse with reference to occupancy, and automatic
temperature sensor is installed to maintain normal
temperature in office premises and warehouse;

2. Programming regional lighting control system to turn off
certain units in unoccupied areas of office premises and
warehouse with reference to occupancy;

3. Utilising daylight and natural ventilation as far as possible
to reduce electricity requirement for artificial lighting and
mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning;

4.  Recycling and use of eco-friendly stationery;

5. Creating the sense of environmental awareness amongst
employees; and

6. Educating employees on paper and energy saving, efficient
use of resources, as well as reduction of waste.

In 2015, the Group consumed electricity of approximately
376,000 kWh in total.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

In 2015, the total amount of water consumed by the Group was
approximately 3,000 tonnes. The Group did not have problems
in seeking appropriate water resources. The existing supply of
water resources could satisfy the Group’s needs in the aspects
of volume, quality of water and the guarantee of water supply
facilities. In 2015, the Group made every effort to maintain
the same level of water usage as in the past and carried out
measures of reduction in general water consumption in office
premises.

Beijing Peace Map’s operation does not involve packaging
material.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s TNE Mine was not in operation for the financial year
end 31 December 2015 and there was no impact of activities on
the environment and natural resources.

For Beijing Peace Map, its operation and ordinary course of
business did not cause any impact on the environment and
natural resources.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Employment

Policies and regulations principally adopted by the Group
in respect of compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunity, diversity
and other benefits and welfare are as follows:

1. Remuneration packages are competitive, and individuals
are rewarded according to performance plus an annually-
reviewed framework of salary, working conditions, bonuses
and incentive systems;
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

2.

Employees are recruited, promoted and dismissed by the
Group pursuant to Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China #FZEARZEFMEILE)E)) and the Employment
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China K ZE AR
HIE B EE RE));

Working hours of our employees strictly comply with the
requirements in the Employment Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China (F 2 AR LM B S [F)E))
by following a working system that provides 8-hour work
day and 40-hour work week with Saturday and Sunday off
and public holidays;

The Group provides paid leaves for employees in strict
compliance with the Regulation on Paid Annual Leave of
the Employees (Decree No. 514) (B T FFEIRERIEH))
issued by the State Council of the PRC;

The Group adopts equal opportunity for candidates with
the same or similar education level regardless of age and
gender in the process of staff recruitment whenever they
fit the job objective. The policy on equal opportunities also
applies to company benefit, career path promotion, training,
performance appraisal and development, and operates
employment policies which are for the purpose to attract,
retain and motivate high quality staff, regardless of sex, age,
race, religion or disability;

Regarding the diversity of employees and other benefits
and welfares, varieties of benefits and welfares are provided
to all the staff by the Group pursuant to the requirements
as stipulated by local governments of places where our
enterprises are located, including endowment insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARE

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees and complying with all applicable
health and safety laws and regulations. On 6 September 2015,
the Health, Safety and Environmental Management System of
Beijing Peace Map obtained certification certificates in conformity
with Q/SY1002.1-2013 and Q/SHS0001.1-2001 standard. The
certificates are valid until 23 September 2016.

The Group also communicates with its employees on
occupational health and safety issues. The Group adopts safety
manual for the employees of Beijing Peace Map Information and
Peace Map Group to make sure that employees surveying at
highly elevated outdoor environment remains safe. All unmanned
air vehicles are checked and maintained regularly for safety.

As employees are the most important asset and resource of
the Company, it is of utmost important to provide a healthy and
safe working environment for the employees in a reasonable
and practicable situation. In order to achieve this, the Group has
implemented the following measures:

1. Establishing and maintaining high standard of healthy and
safe working environment with no threat to health;

2. Ensuring that all devices, machines and working system are
safe and pose no threat to health;

3.  Ensuring the use, processing, storage and transportation
of all items and materials are safe and pose no threat to
health;

4. Providing employees with safety equipment and protective
clothing when necessary, and keeping those equipments in
good working condition;
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

5. Providing easy accesses in workplaces to ensure they are
safe and pose no threat to health;

6. Maintaining high standard of hygiene condition in the
workplaces;

7. Carrying out regular and good maintenance and repairing of
all devices and machines used in the workplace;

8.  Ensuring proper storage of all goods and materials to
eliminate hazards to others;

9. Providing employees with appropriate information and
training on health and safety related matters;

10. Providing sufficient supervision when necessary to ensure
the health and safety of all employees at work; and

11.  Supervising the implementation of safety measures.

Development and Training

The Company understands that employees are instrumental
to the Company’s ongoing success and profitability. Career
development including extensive and ongoing on-the-job
interactive training programmes are provided to employees
according to the needs of the Group, so as to enhance their
technical skills and to further develop their potentials and talents.
All employees of Beijing Peace Map Information and Peace
Map Group are required to have an induction course on the
Security of Information System (FHE#EE RFNEZ2RE)).
Besides, work-life balance and leisure activities are organized
for employees to relax their mind and body for better health and
personal wellness.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARE

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Labour Standards

As for preventing child labour or forced labour, the Group mainly
implemented Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
#EARLFELS)L)), the Employment Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China (#2E A REMEILE)A [F)E)), the
Employment Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong and other
relevant laws and regulations.

The Group strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations
including Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Employment Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China.
Across all companies under the Group, internal administrative
institutions were set up to manage their employees in a
professional manner when such employees were recruited and
employed, so as to eliminate situations such as child labors and
forced labors in the Group. Employees are hired in accordance
with specific job requirements and talent matching process to
build a sustainable workforce.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

Beijing Peace Map purchases components and materials from its
suppliers to manufacture unmanned air vehicles. The Group will
monitor the quality of the suppliers by checking their operating
licences, the annual report on the safety audit of the aircrafts to
manage any environmental and social risks that might be caused
by product default of the suppliers.

Product Responsibility

The Group’s TNE Mine was not in operation for the financial year
end 31 December 2015 and there is no produce of minerals as
such.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Beijing Peace Map provides geospatial information big data
service. The Group strictly complied with the {(EAMMELZ &
{EEEARESR) (Basic requirements of unmanned aerial vehicle
aerial survey safety operation®) promulgated by the State Bureau
of Surveying and Mapping (BIZBI48 B) in 2010. The Group also
implemented a policy on the quality control for the data collected
(Mm@ E%I — 2T H AR E)) to ensure that the
publicly used data will not intrude personal privacy or jeopardize
public or national security, and comply with the applicable laws
and regulations. In addition, employees are required to observe
the CHFEFTE ML L 25 ) (Regulations for the restricted
network safety*) which serves to protect the data collected to
avoid unnecessary leakage or hacking that might in-turn harm
the Group’s business reputation and revenue.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical
standards. All employees are given a code of conduct to
which they are required to adhere. The code explicitly prohibits
employees from soliciting, accepting or offering bribes or any
form of advantage. It also outlines the Group’s expectation on
staff with regard to conflicts of interest.

The Company established a grievance report system open to all
staff to report on job-related crimes, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. In 2015, the Company has not yet received
any report on crimes such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in the Group.

In 2015, there have been no legal cases regarding corruption,
job-related crimes, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

brought up by the Company or its employees.

* For identification purpose only
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

Community Investment

The Company recognizes the importance of contributing within
the local community and encourages employees to develop
close relationship with charities and other institutions, both locally
and nationally, to help to build more economically sustainable
environment. Extensive efforts are exerted to ensure compliance
with the laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which the
Company operates.

In 2015, the Group has made charitable donations amounting to
approximately HK$35,000.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

faikPAa

Shine‘ZOan

TO THE MEMBERS OF
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Peace
Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 70 to 283, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBEEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
23 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

meEER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z—F—hFF+_—H=1—HIFZF

2015 2014
= —T-0OF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BRE FET FAT
(Restated)
(F&&E7))
Revenue Wz 6 304,881 333,808
Cost of revenue W Es A A (272,763) (261,176)
Gross profit EF 32,118 72,632
Other income EHABA 8 19,365 15,447
Selling and distribution HERDHEAZ
expenses (9,474) (9,644)
Administrative and other T R E A & F
operating expenses (110,687) (109,831)
Equity-settled share-based LA ER A E N LA
payment expenses B zHAX 39 (8,761) (31,024)
Share of result of an associate ~ h —EHE =N Al ¥4 20 2,475 67
Other gain and losses, net HAb e KB FE 9 (16,484) (260,641)
Operating loss B E (91,448) (322,994)
Finance costs BbE AR 10 (67,197) (89,704)
Loss before taxation bR ATIEE 11 (158,645) (412,698)
Income tax credit FriSfiik e 12 3,934 30,231
Loss for the year FNEE (154,711) (382,467)
Loss for the year attributable to: A & I8 &G F R EE
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE PN (135,506) (357,198)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR A 2 (19,205) (25,269)
(154,711) (382,467)
Loss per share (HK cents) FhEE GBL)
— Basic and diluted — BEARNEE 14 (1.79) (5.69)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—hF -+ —HA=1—HI FZ

2015 2014
—B-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Loss for the year FAEE (154,711) (382,467)
Other comprehensive FREMZEAX
expense for the year
ltems that may be reclassified ~ BE&RIEFHEE
subsequently to profit BmcIEE
or loss:
Exchange difference arising BMEBINEBIES
from translation ZEH ZERE
of overseas operations (69,175) (21,818)
Total comprehensive FAEEMRAXERE
expense for the year (223,886) (404,285)
Total comprehensive expense A & IAE(E G
for the year 2 HEMAZ B
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ DN (200,892) (378,381)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR (22,994) (25,904)
(223,886) (404,285)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR R

As at 31 December 2015 R-—F—AF+—-H=+—H

2015 2014
—2-1F —T-MF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FExT FHAT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥12 -« BB MR & 16 58,576 53,841
Deposit paid for acquisition et ESANPE &
of properties 17 - 489
Interest in an associate R—REBE ARz Ex 20 4,816 823
Goodwill kS 21 635,634 664,216
Mining licences FRAERE AR 24 - —
Exploration and evaluation RN EE
assets 25 - —
Other intangible assets Hinfmp&E 22 505,939 612,282
Available-for-sale investment AEEERE 23 8,356 —
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 37 137 145
1,213,458 1,331,796
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ey 26 10,585 12,154
Amounts due from R P& A T2KIE
customers of contract works 27 218,312 207,175
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H A ERGRIE 28 175,169 157,123
Finance lease receivables B E S EGRIE 29 2,149 14,624
Loan receivable FEWE K 30 - —
Tax recoverable BEEEE 6 6
Derivative financial asset PTHEMTBEE
— Derivative Component — ARERERIZ
of the Convertible Note | PTETREZD 35 — 34,560
Pledged bank deposits BIRRITIER 31 122,678 3,341
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRS 32 213,141 103,539
742,040 532,522
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2015 R=—F—AF+—-H=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3%

2015 2014
—ZE—-0F —ZE—OF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B5E FExT FET
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to customers EREFAELHTIIERKIA
of contract works 27 5,738 —
Trade and other payables B 5 &AM FRIE 33 218,469 250,043
Amounts due to JEASH IEFE AR A R FRIE
non-controlling shareholders 19 69,285 58,317
Amount due to an associate e — A B & R B 3k IE 19 28,132 6,577
Tax payables FERIHEIE 4,339 7,321
Borrowings =8 34 144,103 119,619
Convertible notes BlE L ES 35 - 546,054
470,066 987,931
Net current assets RBEE(BE)FE
(liabilities) 271,974 (455,409)
Total assets less HWEERRBERS
current liabilities 1,485,432 876,387
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Amount due to a non-controlling &t — 44 FE#% A A% B8 5118
shareholder 19 11,251 16,799
Borrowings = 34 — 30,000
Convertible notes AR EE 35 421,466 116,660
Deferred income FEIEUTA 36 4,658 4,934
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE 37 60,212 70,247
497,587 238,640
Net assets EEZEE 987,845 637,747
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e UBRRR

As at 31 December 2015 R=-F—AF+—-H=+—H

2015 2014
—E-IfF —T—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BRE FET FAETT
Equity Em

Share capital % 38 2,039,195 1,676,652
Reserves B 40 (1,113,503) (1,123,983)

Equity attributable to owners XA RI#EA AFE(RERS
of the Company 925,602 552,669
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M = 62,153 85,078
Total equity R 987,845 637,747

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 283 were ~ £ 70ZE283BFi & 2 ir & MEHMENR T — <
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors the FZA-+=ZAK=E=e((EEE)HARE

“Board”) on 23 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: TR WAHATEERERESE
GUAN Hongliang ZHU Dong
BER K&
Director Director
EE EEa
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEESmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—hF -+ —HA=1—HI FZ

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RRAERARGER
Convertible
Share Capital note equity Non-
Share Share Merger option redemption  Statutory Translation reserve Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  TRREE losses Total interests equity
B ROEE  A0EGE BRERE SAREHE  tERE  EARE  BEEE  ZiER A FERER L
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
AL AR AR T T T T T T T AL AL
(ote38) (oted0fd) (ote40)) (note40(d) (note40fe)  (roted0f) (ote40lg)  (note 35)
(Wsk3s)  (Wskaom) (Wisob) (MEdo@) (Mistdog)  (Wiiaom) (Wog)  (WisH3s)
At1 January 2015 R=F-1%-A-A 1676652 968,372 13,805 51918 6,629 12,684 77363 349409 (2,604,168 552,669 85078 637,747
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (15506) (135508 (19205  (154711)
Exchange difference arising BERNERAEEL
from translation of ERZE
overseas operations REEEMZERS
and other comprehensive
expense for the year - - - - - - (65,386) - - (65,386) (3,789) (69,175)
Total comprehensive expense TEERERYAE
for the year - - - - - - (65,386) - (13506 (20089 (22994 (223,880)
Addiional acoision of asubsidlary  EBSMKEE—THBAT
(note 50) (HzE50) - - - - - - - - (678) (678) 69 (609)
Sharesissue upon placing (note 38(d)  REEER/TMRA (k38) 237,500 76,000 - - - - - - - 313500 - 313500
Share issue expenses (note 38(d) TR &R (i 38d) - (5,723 - - - - - - - (5,723 - (5,723
Appropriations to statutory reserve funds  &ZATFRES - - - - - 2,152 - - (2,182) - - -
Shares issued upon exercise of EBRERETHRD
share aptions (note 38(a) (Mt 380) 55,415 15,904 - (13779) - - - - - 5A8 - 5A8
Maturity of Convertile Note | RS IS - - - - - - - (90581) 290,581 - - -
Renewal of Convertible Note | TEREE - - - - - - - 139,915 - 139,915 - 139,915
Conversion of Convertile Note | RETRREE
(note 38(b) (Fiz38(0)) 3628 18,061 - - - - - (8275) - 13,404 - 13,404
Conversion of Convertible Note SETRRZEI
(note 38(c) (F3£38(c) 66,000 14,663 - - - - - (3347) - 4719 - 47198
Recogniton of eqity-settled EANEREE TR
share based payments note 39) btpdFAGREY) - - - 8761 - - - - - 8761 - 8761
At 31 December 2015 RES-RETZA=T-B 2089195 1087267 13,805 46,903 6,629 14,83 197 156,998 (2451918 925,692 62,153 987845
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

Equty aftrloutable to owners of the Company

LINGZPN
Convertible
Share Capital note equity Non-
Share Share Merger option  redemption  Statutory  Translation reserve  Accumulated controling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve e AKER losses Total interests equity

Bx BOEE  ofER BRERE SAEERE  ATRE  EXBE  ERREE  ZiER At FERER f 20
HKS000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T T T AR T T T T T T T T
(note38)  [ote40a)  (note40(b) (oted0(d) (otedOl)  (otedOf)  (ote40lg)  (note 35
(Wik3s) (ko) (Widop) (MEdo@) (Midog)  (Wstaop) (Wstaog)  (WsH3s)

Asat 1 January 2014 RZE-mF-A-H 1,445,575 934,900 13,805 21,903 6,629 11401 98,546 372,169 (2,245,682) 659,246 125,855 785,101
Loss forthe year KEEEE - - - - - - - ~ P (5% 529 (3%2460)
Exchange difference arising RERERHEE

from tranglation of overseas ZEREER

operations and other comprehensive.  EEEM2ERR

expense for the year - - - - - - (21,183 - - (21,183 (635) (21,818
Total comprehensive TEERERTEE

expense for the year - - - - - - 21,183 - (357,198 (378,381) (25,904)  (404,285)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) HE—RHBAR (a1 - - - - - - - - - — {41y (14873
Appropriations to statutory EY A -F

reserve funds - - - - - 1,283 - - (1,289 - - -
Shares issued upon exercise fiERER TR

of share options (note 38(a) (i 38(a)) 5,550 1,009 - (1,009) - - - - - 5550 - 5550
Issue of Convertiole Note Il note 35(6)) ~ TATHAREE N (15 35(0)) - - - - - - - 57,387 - 57,337 - 57,387
Conversion of Convertble SETARZE

Note! (note 385) (F3£38(0)) 9524 45437 - - - - - - 33239 - 33239
Conversion of Convertble RETRRZE

Note Il (note 38(c)) fi1338(c)) 216,003 (12,974) - - - - - (58,375) - 144,654 - 144,654
Recognition of eqiy-settled MEREE

share based payments (note 39) IR 2 F % (H5E30) - - - 31,024 - - - - - 31,024 - 31,024
At 31 December 2014 RZF-ME+ZA=1T-R 1,676,652 968,372 13,806 51918 6,629 12,684 77,363 349,409 (2,604,163) 552,669 85,078 637,747
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #%Z —ZF—AF+—HA=1—HIFFE
2015 2014
—ZE-0F —a
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReESEH)
Loss before taxation B PSR E 18 (158,645) (412,698)
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs RhE A 67,197 89,704
Fair value gain on the Tﬁ@ftfﬁﬁ/\%¥7§uﬁ§2ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
financial liabilities at fair Z AR ERE
value through profit or loss — (1,287)
Amortisation of prepaid land TAf T EFRIE 2 B 5E
lease payments - 10
Amortisation of other EEmp g E o #iH
intangible assets 83,613 64,149
Fair value (gain) loss on AR EE | 2 TET ERD
the Derivative Component ~aE(E) B8
of Convertible Note | (64,125) 22,031
Equity-settled share-based R EW RO T 2AX
payment expenses 8,761 31,024
Depreciation of property, M - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 12,092 12,063
Net loss on disposal of HEME - BEKE&E
property, plant and ZFEE
equipment 794 469
Impairment loss of property, Y - B &R 2 RERE
plant and equipment - 13,809
Impairment loss of AR IR 2 R EEE
mining licences - 133,028
Impairment loss of exploration — #)#k M HE E 2 B EEE
and evaluation assets 383 746
Impairment loss of trade and & 5 & E{th fE U B 2
other receivables BEEE 7,346 14,927
Reversal of impairment loss of & ZEWFIAEZ
trade receivables BB &R R[] (10,462) -
Impairment loss of finance BEME SRR REEE
lease receivables 8,637 —
Impairment loss of other Hiv\EEE 2 REEE
intangible assets 60,680 11,166
Impairment loss of loan EWEFRERE
receivable - 11,870
Exchange (gain) loss M () BB (2,193) 68
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2015 2014
—E-IF —ZE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest income MBI A (648) (840)
Government grants income NEiERE N (12,062) (7,625)
Gain on disposal of HE—FRBAR W
a subsidiary — (2,157)
Loss on uncertainty in respect  BEEEKREF S TIEFIA
of collectability of amounts U B8 51 /) T e FE 1 S 18
due from customers of
contract works 14,025 56,508
Write-back of other payables — E-fth JE{~ FUB M EH (2,628) —
Write-off of inventories WHEFE 634 872
Write-off of deposits received Ui & Hif 44 - (5,003)
Share of result of an associate ~ 3h — & A A 2E4E (2,475) 67)
Operating cash flows before LEERHHFI KERENE
movements in working capital 10,924 32,767
Decrease in inventories FERL 935 3,878
Increase in amounts due from  JEME F A #) T2 FIAIE N
customers of contract works (22,776) (65,445)
Increase in trade and other B 5 N E AR R IEIE 11
receivables (18,005) (46,743)
Decrease (increase) in finance @& & FEUEIER A (380)
lease receivables 3,838 (14,631)
Increase in amounts due to N B P& AITIZFIEE M
customers of contract works 5,738 —
(Decrease) increase in trade B 5 REMERFRIE G ) 10
and other payables (23,745) 73,978
Cash used in operations LEHA RS (43,091) (16,196)
Interest paid on borrowings BEZENFIE (5,827) (3,506)
Interest received EFIE 648 383
Income taxes paid AN (9,488) (3,558)
NET CASH USED IN RETERMEA
OPERATING ACTIVITIES CHEEE (57,758) (22,877)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—B-HF —T—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i RE THExT FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEES
Placement of pledged FE ERRITIFER
bank deposits (122,678) (3,341)
Payments to acquire other BEEMBREE IR
intangible assets (68,496) (64,170)
Payments to acquire property, BEWE  BEMREZNR
plant and equipment (16,638) (22,631)
Purchase of available-for-sale BB E Al ft HEIKE
investment (8,356) —
Capital injection in an associate N —fEEE A REE (1,518) (756)
Payments to acquire exploration & B &hix & s E ZE 2 3K
and evaluation assets (383) (746)
Net cash inflow on disposal HEHMB AR
of subsidiaries ZHEEMANFEE 41 - 8,761
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BB RFFEFTF
property, plant and equipment  FA 245 513
Withdrawal of pledged BisE ERIRITIER
bank deposits 3,341 11,272
NET CASH USED IN REZBFAREFR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (214,483) (71,098)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

2015 2014
—E—FE —E—pmE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i 3 FET FBTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEES
Proceeds from issuance of BRREETREZ
shares through placing PS8 38(d) 313,500 —
New borrowings raised HER 169,569 100,897
Proceeds from issuance BRI BRI G
of shares through exercise Z Fr8 508
of share options 38(a) 57,543 5,550
Advance from an associate — BB A R RS FOR 21,200 6,577
Government grants received YBT3 4,208 6,364
Deposit received for subscription 5t #28& AT #2 A% Z 15 U R
of convertible notes ZEE - 5,003
Advance from non-controlling ~ JE#% Hxﬂxﬁiﬁﬁ
shareholders - 39,712
Repayment to non-controling M 3EEAZAR R EEFIE
shareholders (286) (3,688)
Acquisition of the additional I — T B A A 50
interest of a subsidiary Z BN (609) -
Share issue expenses f&nEE1TRA 38(d) (5,723) —
Repayment of borrowings B e (176,792)  ..(67.443)
NET CASH FROM RMEEREE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZREW® . .. 32610 122972
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReRREEEY
AND CASHEQUIVALENTS _#MBR 10369 26,997
CASH AND CASH FHzEE
EQUIVALENTS AT THE REEEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 103,539 75,120
Effect of foreign exchange [ERBE) s 8
T CNANgS (T6n) (578)
CASH AND CASH FRZEE
EQUIVALENTS AT THE REESEEY
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank BIRTTHEHBEIRS
balances and cash 213,141 103,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—hF -+ —HA=1—HI FZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

Peace Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 May 2004 as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the geographic
information business in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) including aerial photography and remote
sensing image data processing (the “data collection and
processing”), provision of geographic information system
(“GIS”) software and solutions (the “business application
and services”), and development and sales of high-end
surveying and mapping equipment (the “development and
sales of equipment”), as well as mining and exploration of
mineral resources in Mongolia.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. Other than those subsidiaries
established in the PRC, Singapore and Mongolia whose
functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore Dollar
(“SGD”) and Mongolian Tugrik (“MNT”) respectively, the
functional currency of the Company and other subsidiaries
is HK$.

—REHR

AR TEZERERAR(RLQF ) H—FRRN
—EENFRAA-+RARASESEM
AL B RBR AR - HRONE B
BRZAERAR (TBERFR]) ER LT -
AR EEM R E R A fo B a B
RANER [ REIER] —H -

AREIREMBAR (5B [REE]) X2
FERFEAREME([FE])HEHHIRES
7% BREMAMNERZEEEERE (&
BEIREEE])  RHHMEEERA (i
BEBRG] R RTE([HIBER
ERH )  HAEREERmARSRE (R
EMREHE ) URESHERER DT
BEER -

HAaMBHRRABT(TET])INE B
LI RANRARININEEEE o BRIXHE - #
A3 e 5 B AL B % S P BB 2 R Y DD E
ERORIRARYE ([ AR¥]) - F03T
(T#g T ) MEHBEERER ([REE
B#®ER )N KRR REMHERFH
NREE /AT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

82

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong

Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and

interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current year and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of “vesting condition” and “market condition”; and (ii)
add definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of “vesting condition”. The amendments to HKFRS
2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for
which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is a
financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS
39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be
recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS
3 are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

ER#HE] KRB TR ERE
ZA|([FBMBEREER )R
BB QA% 2)

BRMBREREN -—F—FFE_
F-—FAMNTELE
EAUBREE T —FFE_F——
B R EN BRI R
AU ZIREET - HBAIT -

N

FRMBHREERE 25 ZERTA() B
(BB R [TISGEN] ER © K
g [ REGION | R [ IRF 6] B E -
HERBRER [BBIRF] NERAR - B
I IMEERF 257 BT ANE R L A H
RIZB-—NFLA—BRZB ARG B
EMZNARRBEN

BRVBMEENEIR ZEFTAEFD
BERIAREBZEEXRBERRERER
HzAREFE  MARARKERTE
FEMBREENERKBF B ST EL
FIOFHBENZ R T ANINBEESR
BfE - AR EEY GIEPRHBABRERN)
FER B AR - BEMBIRELRIES
BRI AERBER RS T —NFLA
—HRZRBRZEBAHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to
disclose the judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria to operating segments, including
a description of the operating segments aggregated
and the economic indicators assessed in determining
whether the operating segments have “similar economic
characteristics”; and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the
total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s
assets should only be provided if the segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount
is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of
the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to
a reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of
key management personnel services. However, disclosure
of the components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors consider that the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle has had no
material impact in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of
the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis includes all contracts that are within the scope of,
and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS
9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

86

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of
both standards may be required. Consequently, an entity
acquiring investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The amendments are applied prospectively. The Directors
consider that the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle has had no material impact in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Part 9 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622)

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation during the
financial year. As a result, there are changes to presentation
and disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —=F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

fRE M RR M
—AEF A=t —HIFE

2. FERFITRRIETEBMBEHRE
ZA|([FBMBEREER )R
BB QA% 2)

© 28 i B I8 K &£ Rz # 7] RAGIEFT
BRVBREER

REE W RIBATERA A T EHEMHE MR E
MR RIRER] B AMHRE LA -

effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle'

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Disclosure Initiative!

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture?®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation
Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations’

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
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HRAERL o
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HAR AR o

2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

g Effective date not yet been determined.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that except as described below,
the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from
one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it
is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS
5. Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing
involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess the
nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance
for continuing involvement in HKFRS 7 in order to assess
whether the additional disclosures for any continuing
involvement in a transferred asset that is derecognised
in its entirety are required. Besides, the amendments to
HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in relation to offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the
condensed interim financial report, unless the disclosures
provide a significant update to the information reported in
the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth
of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is
no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government bond rates must be used.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
(Continued)

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the
notes to the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed
elsewhere in the interim financial report’. The amendments
to HKAS 34 clarify that the required interim disclosures must
either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated
by cross-reference between the interim financial statements
and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report. The other information within the interim
financial report must be available to users on the same
terms as the interim financial statements and at the same
time. If users do not have access to the other information in
this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 — 2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 and includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS
9 was further amended to bring into effect a substantial
overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in the financial
statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9 that
were issued in previous years with limited amendments
to the classification and measurement by introducing a
“fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain financial assets. The
finalised version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected
credit loss” model for impairment assessments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as
follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designed as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as
FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

o In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting
for an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were
added. Those requirements eliminate the threshold
that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit
losses. Under the impairment approach in HKFRS 9
(2014), it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
Instead, expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

o HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which
is more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk
management activities undertaken by companies
when hedging their financial and non-financial risk
exposures. As a principle-based approach, HKFRS
9 (2014) looks at whether a risk component can be
identified and measured and does not distinguish
between financial items and non-financial items. The
new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes
as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it
is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance with
the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that are
designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength
of the hedging relationship. This can be determined
using risk management data. This should reduce the
costs of implementation compared with those for
HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces the
amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken
only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
(2014) in the future may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS
15 introduces a model that applies to contracts with
customers, featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with a customer;
if) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when
it becomes effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted. The Directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-
based depreciation method for property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS
38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that the use of
revenue-based amortisation methods for intangible assets
is inappropriate. This presumption can be rebutted in the
following limited circumstances:

a)  when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue;

b) when a high correlation between revenue and
the consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible assets could be demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments should be applied
prospectively.

As the Group uses straight-line method for depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of
intangible assets, the Directors do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its joint
venture and associate. An investing entity is required to
recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that constitutes or contains a business to a joint
venture or associate in full. An investing entity is required to
recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that does not constitute or contain a business to a
joint venture or associate only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that joint venture or associate.

The effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 has not yet been determined. However, earlier
application is permitted. The amendments should be
applied prospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint
operations and there is no sale or contribution of assets
to the associate, the Directors do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented
in the financial statements. Specifically, an entity should
decide, taking into consideration all relevant facts and
circumstances, how it aggregates information in the
financial statements, which include the notes. An entity
does not require to provide a specific disclosure required by
a HKFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure is
not material. This is the case even if the HKFRS contain a
list of specific requirements or describe them as minimum
requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to an
understanding of the entity’s financial position and financial
performance respectively. Entities, in which they have
investments in associates or joint ventures, are required
to present the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method, separated into the share of items that (i) will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (i) will
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met.

ER#HE] KRB TR ERE
ZA|([FBMBEREER )R
BB QA% 2)

E 28 5 B =) R AE Rz # 5] RAEIERT
BRYBRELER @)

EBERTEERIZE 155 (BT A) KT+ E

BRAERTES - RAEREMBERIAK
AfAIBE K AR IR Fr FE B IS $ Rk o 251 &
MESREREXFE - FrlE BERES
BFrE AR EE MIERIEEIRE H a0 &
SMBHERFPOER - BEME - HRE
BREMNERLTEKR BRI AHERM
BAEMERE LR TR ERREWRE - A
EERBVBHREEARBEERTREL
1 E R A RIERTE ©

gEAh - E25IERINMTHIRR - BB R
7 Bl BRI RS2 B B B IS AR S B S R 3R
BRN - BREIM2IZFRE - 28
K/NEHRHE THIMAE - BRERBE R
ARAELETHERENERAZIIE
AR AARNDEBE AR R EDRE
MEMEERE - XDt ADE)ER
TrEEMHIBRERRZER  RHEF
ERERTFEREEFOBEERR A
=

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA = 99

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

100

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

() an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes;
and

(i) significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included
with related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the application of Amendments
to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material impact on
the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. exit price), regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary
prepares its financial statements using accounting policies
other than those adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to
that subsidiary's financial statements in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with
the group's accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Control is achieved when the Group (i) has power over the
investee; (i) exposed, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns. When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, power over the investee may
be obtained through: (i) a contractual arrangement with
other vote holders; (i) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (iii) the Group’s voting rights and potential
voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the above, based on
all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All'intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3R

3.

BEASTHE 2

REEE ()

)
=/

EAKBETAATER - BNESIEHIHE :
(VBREEHRRET  (\BE2EERE
ARG MERS ARSI ZOHR - (i)
BRENBEIRESTEENFEREED
B - MARENMRRETHRERER
ERIERZH  JRAEHEBEERER &
B NS RIRETNEN () EE
MWIRERF B AR LAOLTHE : (i) REEM
BRIRHRRER ; (i) NE B R R R N E
ERERE K (VERA LKA -

WEEERERER LR SHHEEE
ZRF—ERZEEE  AAAREHT
ERRTERIIRA -

P /88 % B 1A A 5 B ER 1S % B /B /1 B O 22 )
BERRA AR WA 3R 2K % Y

I

BRFRIERERRIEGA AR - BBM
5 BAKEDRSEEHEEBEEEARE
B BEHNEARER - IMEARKS
Bt AGERER -

MEBARMNED kA EmBASILD B
BARRGHEE AMIFERED - B AR
MEHRARBREBEARTERE AN

2Rt - AE R S B BOHE g T
BB AR

SERARRHEMNEERARE @ W
A X MBEREEKE RARRRSEH
MESRERNGE KB B2 -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiary

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-
controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interest in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as
a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) (or groups of CGUSs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of an associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, interest
in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s interest in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposals) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interest in an associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold and services rendered
in the normal course of business, net of sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

— the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

— the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

— the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

— the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract.
The stage of completion of the contract is determined as
follows:

— installation fees are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the installation, determined as
the proportion of the total time expected to install that
has elapsed at the end of the reporting period;

— servicing fees are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the service;
and

— revenue from time and material contracts is recognised
at the contractual rates as labour hours and direct
expenses are incurred.

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction services is described in the accounting policy
for construction contracts below.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group’s policy for recognition of rental income is
described in the accounting policy in respect of leasing
below.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a business application and data
collection and processing service contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end
of the reporting period, measured based on the percentage
of certified work performed to date to the estimated total
sum of the relevant contracts. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

Where the outcome of a business application and data
collection and processing service contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for
contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to
customers for contract works. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances
received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under trade and other
receivables.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

BEASHEE#)

s

REREER S EEEBMNIBERERE - A
ZEREEME N B (SN ) #1TH)
RETIENR 5 BHIRITER T ARER -
REREER - UINEFHEHNEEIEE T
RZAMBRITEXEHMHE - TE?\\%J?EE
AT EMIEEIE R BASHRE

REBREMMEEEREMEL ZER
Z8  RNEELHRERDRER -

REIFEMBWE - AEERINEBH
BERABNENSREPARMIBITER
Tﬁ*kﬁﬁ’%lﬁﬁzﬂfﬁz o W THE ThiE
FAMFHERETHRE FﬁFEE’JER
ZB(WA) DREMZEREER - TR
RIETLARERZERS (RE ”‘HT%Y%T’F?F
ERER) ©

HERINEBE (AL EREERIRINE
B 2Eb#s) - ARREE ASLAFHIE
MZARBERG ZELZERIEHD

5 IS
HE1Bm o

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#Z=RERAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F& 1 1 1



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings (classified as finance leases) held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Upon the transfer from “exploration and evaluation assets”,
all subsequent development cost and capital expenditure
on the construction, installation or completion of
infrastructure facilities of mine site is capitalised within “mine
development assets”. Mine development assets including
stripping costs and other development expenditure are
carried at cost and are subject to depreciation/amortisation
upon commissioning of the mine for production.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Stripping costs incurred in the development phase of a
mine before production commences are capitalised as
part of the cost of constructing the mine and subsequently
depreciated over the life of the mine using the unit-of-
production method based on total proven and probable
reserves of the mine.

Other development expenditure, net of proceeds from
incidental sale of mineral extracted during the development
phase, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and are amortised using the unit-of-production method
based on the total proven and probable reserves of the
mine, except in the case of the assets whose useful life is
shorter than the life of the mine, in which case straight-line
method is applied.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets include costs of obtaining
and maintaining exploration and mining rights, as well as
expenditures such as exploratory drilling, geological studies
and sampling in relation to evaluating technical feasibility
and commercial viability of extracting mineral resources.

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment and no
amortisation charge is recognised. Cost expensed during
the exploration and evaluation phase including expenditure
incurred before obtaining the legal rights to explore specific
area are included in exploration and evaluation expenditure
in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets acquired in a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation

assets is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation
of Mineral Resources and HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

whenever one of the following events or changes in facts
and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may

not be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive):

U

(i)

(i)

the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or
will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed;

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned;

exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources
and the Group has decided to discontinue such
activities in the specific area; and

sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration and
evaluation asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and their
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
the exploration and evaluation assets subject to testing are
grouped into each area of interest for which exploration
activities are undertaken.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting mineral resources become demonstrable,
previously recognised exploration and evaluation assets are
transferred to “Property, plant and equipment” and “Mining
licences”. These assets are tested for impairment before
their reclassification.

Mining licences

Upon the transfer from “exploration and evaluation
assets”, mining licences are carried at cost and are subject
to amortisation upon commissioning of the mine for
production. Mining licences and concessions are depleted
on the unit-of-production basis over the total proven and
probable reserves of the mine concerned. Mining licences
are subject for impairment testing whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses (if any). Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances and
cash, which have original maturities of three months or less
and are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include bank balances
and cash as defined above.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EARSTEBE#)
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued) PIE (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mongolia are required to participate in the social insurance
scheme operated by the local government. According to the
“Social Insurance Law of Mongolia”, these subsidiaries have
a duty to withhold 10% from employees’ salary or similar
income and 13% as employers’ contribution. Employers’
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the social insurance scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plan (Continued)

Payments to the MPF Scheme, central pension schemes
and the social insurance scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, in the period of the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities (other than
financial assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale investment. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in fair value gain on financial assets
at FVTPL in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivables, loan receivable, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial asset

Available-for-sale financial asset is non-derivative that is
either designated as available-for-sale or is not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investment that does not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below).

Dividend on available-for-sale equity instrument is
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividend is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables and loan receivable, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables and loan receivable,
are considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREFHBE @)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ST HR#E)
Financial assets (Continued) MKEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) & ERE (&)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment loss on available-for-sale equity investment will
not be reversed through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other
financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, trade
and other payables, amount(s) due to non-controlling
shareholders and an associate and convertible notes
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL,
of which the interest expense is included in net gains or
losses.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and
the net amount presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when, and only when, there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Convertible notes contains liability component, equity
component and extension option derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
liability component, equity component and extension
option (which is not closely related to the host liability
component) are classified separately into respective item
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument. On
initial recognition, both the liability and extension option
components are measured at fair value. The fair value of the
liability component on initial recognition is determined using
the prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible
debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible notes and the fair values assigned to
the liability and extension option components respectively,
representing the conversion option for the holder to convert
the convertible notes into equity, is included in equity as
convertible note equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using effective
interest method. The extension option is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes contains liability component, equity
component and extension option derivative (Continued)

The equity component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company,
will remain in the convertible note equity reserve until the
embedded conversion option is exercised (in which case
the balance stated in the convertible note equity reserve will
be transferred to share premium). Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible note equity reserve will be released to
the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

When the convertible note is converted, the carrying
amounts of the liability component and the extension option
at the time of conversion are transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares issued.
When the convertible note is redeemed, the difference
between the redemption amount and the carrying amounts
of both components is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity component and
extension option components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the extension option are charged to
profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —=F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of recognising and acknowledging the contributions that
the eligible participants have made to the Group. Eligible
participants including employees (including directors),
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, consultants,
advisers or shareholders of or contractors to the Group
or any affiliate, receive remuneration in the form of share-
based compensation, whereby eligible participants render
services as consideration for equity instrument (i.e. equity-
settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date the
options are granted excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. The cost of equity-settled transactions
with parties other than employees is measured by reference
to the fair value of the goods or services provided, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve within equity. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
using straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised if there is indication that the number
of share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. Any adjustment to the fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss in the year
of the review with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.

On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
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vesting that relate to market condition (which is treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition
is satisfied).

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of mining
licences and other intangible assets for the purpose of
impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on the
characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level2 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over a subsidiary

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in 1t =X T &l
HIE Rl B R A 7 (Peace Map Co., Ltd*) (‘Beijing Peace
Map”), the Group is able to exercise control over Beijing
Peace Map and its subsidiaries (“Peace Map Group”)
through a series of agreements with its shareholders (the
“Structural Agreements”).

The Directors assessed whether or not the Group has
control over Beijing Peace Map based on whether the
Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of Beijing Peace Map unilaterally. In making their judgement,
the Directors considered the Group’s rights through the
Structural Agreements, and concluded that the Group has
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant
activities of Beijing Peace Map and therefore the Group has
control over Beijing Peace Map. Further details are set out
in note 48(j).

Renewal of licences in respect of geographic information
business

The normal operation of geographic information business
is subjected to successful renewal for the licences with
legal life of 2 to 3 years and renewable every 2 to 3 years
at minimal cost. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
did not expect to have any major obstacles in the renewal
of the licences. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
amount of licences is approximately HK$162,904,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$12,636,000 (2014: carrying amount of approximately
HK$177,527,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$7,254,000).

* For identification purpose only
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the periods in which such determination
are made. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which such a reversal takes place. As at
31 December 2015, the carrying value of the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is approximately
HK$137,000 (2014: approximately HK$145,000) and
HK$60,212,000 (2014: approximately HK$70,247,000)
respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Legal title of land and buildings

Despite the Group had paid the full purchase consideration
for the land and buildings, formal title of one of the Group’s
rights to the use of a land and building was not yet granted
from the relevant government authorities as stated in note
16. In the opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal
title to this building does not impair the value of the relevant
property to the Group.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment assessment on goodwill attributable to
geographic information business

For the impairment assessment on goodwill, the
management of the Group has taken steps in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, by considering
whether the carrying amount of CGUs exceed the
recoverable amount of respective CGUs. The recoverable
amount of the CGUs which goodwill attributable to is
determined based on fair value less cost of disposal.
Further details, including the key assumptions used, are
given in note 21. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
value of the goodwill is approximately HK$635,634,000
(2014: approximately HK$664,216,000). During the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no impairment loss
was recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of laws and
regulations affecting the position of the mining licences

As mentioned in note 24, currently there are certain laws
and regulations in Mongolia which impose restrictions on
mineral exploration and mining activities around water areas
in Mongolia. Although some of the Group’s mining licences
and exploration licences ostensibly fall within the ambit of
law and regulations, the Directors believe the impact to
the Group will be minimal. In determining the recoverable
amount of the mining business for impairment assessment
purpose, the Directors have factored the risk the Group is
exposed to these laws and regulations into the discounted
cash flow analysis (the “DCF Analysis”) of the mining
operation by adjusting the discount rate as mentioned in
note 24. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying value of the
mining licences was nil (2014: nil). During the year ended
31 December 2014, impairment loss of approximately
HK$133,028,000 (31 December 2015: nil) was recognised.

EESHER AT TEESEN
FERR#®)

A T REMNEERR(2Z)
ERNERERERIBER R 2 E TR

BEE 24 il - R BIBRREFES TIAR2
NoER - HERHBIEAKRHGE 2 BER
RREREESENEY - REAEE S
THREEBLDFERERA EBEERE
RANEHEERN  EERAEE@ERHEEAE
B ER/) - BRREN HETFEEER
Z AW S RER - EEEBBARNE24
Frit 2 Bh IR R A S B EEGZE AR RE
BZRBRARBEK 2 RRERED
M ((RRBELSREAIN]) - R=F—H
F+ZA=1+—0  FERBROERES
Z(Z2E—NF: ) REE=_ZF—NQ
FHZA=+—BLFE ' BRRESE
#9133,028,0008 T(ZE—HAF+ = A
=t+—H8:%)-

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA = 1 45
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F%§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

146

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The application of the Group’s accounting policy for
exploration and evaluation expenditure requires estimation
in determining whether it is likely that future economic
benefits are likely either from future exploitation or sale or
where activities have not reached a stage which permits
a reasonable assessment of the existence of reserves. In
this connection, the management makes certain estimates
and assumptions about future events or circumstances,
in particular whether an economically viable extraction
operation can be established. Estimates and assumptions
made may change if new information becomes available.
If, after expenditure is capitalised, information becomes
available suggesting that the recovery of expenditure is
unlikely, the amount capitalised is written off in profit or loss
in the period when the new information becomes available.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, approximately
HK$383,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2014:
approximately HK$746,000) is capitalised as exploration
and evaluation assets. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is
nil (2014: nil). During the year ended 31 December 2015,
impairment loss of approximately HK$383,000 (for the year
ended 31 December 2014: approximately HK$746,000)
was recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Revenue recognition

The Group recognised project revenue and profit of
business application and data collection and processing
service contract according to the management’s estimation
of the total outcome of the project as well as the percentage
of completion of contract works. Notwithstanding that the
management reviews and revises the estimates of both
contract revenue and costs for the contract as the contract
progresses, the actual outcome of the contract in terms
of its total revenue and costs may be higher or lower than
the estimates and this will affect the revenue and profit
recognised.

Uncertainty in respect of collectability of amounts due
from customers of contract works

The Group recognised loss on uncertainty in respect of
collectability of amounts due from customers of contract
works based on the assessment of the Directors that
certain contract works have been suspended or have not
yet been compromised with the customers on the amount
of final billing, as such the related carrying amounts of
contract works are not probable to recover. If the final billing
is not agreed by the customers, actual loss would be higher
than estimated. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
loss in respect of uncertainty arises about the collectability
amounting to approximately HK$14,025,000 (for the year
ended 31 December 2014: approximately HK$ 56,508,000)
was recognised in profit or loss (note 27).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. For the year ended
31 December 2015, approximately HK$7,346,000
is recognised as impairment loss of trade and other
receivables (for the year ended 31 December 2014:
approximately HK$14,927,000). As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
is approximately HK$175,169,000 (2014: approximately
HK$157,123,000), net of accumulated impairment losses
of approximately HK$13,410,000 (2014: approximately
HK$17,324,000) (note 28).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets

The Group performs assessments on whether there
is impairment of property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of CGUs are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions
made by management on the future operation of the
businesses, pre-tax discount rates and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations. For any instance
where this evaluation process indicates impairment, the
relevant property, plant and equipment and intangible
asset’s carrying amount is written down to the recoverable
amount and the amount of the write-down is charged
against the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, approximately
HK$13,809,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
nil) was recognised as impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment and for the year ended 31 December
2015, approximately HK$60,680,000 (for the year ended
31 December 2014: HK$11,166,000) was recognised
as impairment loss of other intangible assets. As at 31
December 2015, the carrying value of the property, plant
and equipment and other intangible assets is approximately
HK$58,576,000 and HK$505,939,000 respectively (2014:
approximately HK$53,841,000 and HK$612,282,000
respectively).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Resources estimates

The Group makes estimate on the amount of coal that
can be extracted from the Group’s mining properties. The
estimate is determined based on information compiled by
appropriately qualified persons relating to the geological
data on the size, depth and the deposit type of the coal and
requires complex geological judgements to interpret the
data. The estimation of the resource is based upon factors
such as estimates of foreign exchange rates, coal price,
future capital requirements and production costs along with
geological assumptions and judgements made in estimating
the size and quality of the coal. Changes in the resource
estimates may impact upon the carrying amounts of mine
properties, property, plant and equipment, and recognition
of deferred tax. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
values of the mining licences and land and buildings
under property, plant and equipment used in mining and
exploration business are nil and nil respectively (2014: nil
and nil respectively), net of accumulated impairment loss
of approximately HK$1,431,161,000 and HK$12,818,000
respectively (2014: approximately HK$1,515,886,000 and
HK$12,818,000 respectively).

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F&

—AFEFA=1—HIFE

EESHE R TEESEN
FERR#®)

At FREMNEEZRIR (&)
IR bt

AEEHHBEXEEARE 2 BEREETT
it e BEAMGTAREEERATHE
TS RERBHEHESBMRUCE
BHRERE - BYGEITRFER S HIET AR
BHBSE - BRI HIEREESR « &
B AREAFEREERAENGEFTHA
= AREE R ARE & TR ER
BRE N HE - BRAERIEFHZE) 0] 8L

HEBSYE  VME - BERREZERT
TELA&LLHIEZ&E?JO A—E—RHF
+TZRA=+—H EERBEREFMAK
BB RYZE - BRE REBE TRt &
BFNEAEI RS ERT(ZE—HEF -
DRRERE) - Nk AFTREBES 5D
1,431,161,0007% 7T & 12,818,0007%8 7t (=

— PO : 5 BI#91,515,886,000 7% T &
12,818,000787T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment on goodwill attributable to
mining and exploration business, mining licences and
exploration and evaluation assets

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. Other
assets including mining licences and exploration and
evaluation assets are assessed annually to determine
for any indication of impairment. Where an indicator of
impairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable
amount is made, which is the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. These assessments
require the use of estimates and assumptions such as
long-term selling prices, discount rates, future capital
requirements and operating performance. Fair value for
mineral assets is generally determined as the present value
of estimated future cash flows arising from the continued
use of the asset, which includes estimates such as the
cost of future expansion plans and eventual disposal,
using assumptions that an independent market participant
may take into account. Cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Management
has assessed its CGUs as being an individual mine site,
which is the lowest level for which cash flows are largely
independent of those of other assets. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amounts of the goodwill is nil (2014: nil),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$35,506,000 (2014: HK$35,506,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of useful lives of other intangible assets

Determining whether licences of other intangible assets
is indefinite requires an estimation of ability to renew the
licences, cost of renewal in the future and the expected
life of the licences to generate net cash flows for the
Group. Any changes in these assumptions can significantly
affect the useful life of the licences. For other intangible
assets except for licences, the management of the Group
determines the estimated useful lives and consequently the
related amortisation charges for its other intangible assets.
These estimates are based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of intangible assets. Management
will increase the amortisation charges when useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in amortisable lives and therefore amortisation
expenses in future years. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying value of other intangible assets is approximately
HK$505,939,000 (2014: approximately HK$612,282,000).

Deferred development costs

Deferred development costs included in other intangible
assets are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy for research and development expenditure as set
out in note 3. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to make significant assumptions and
estimates regarding the expected future cash generation
of the assets and the expected period of benefits. As at
31 December 2015, the carrying value of the deferred
development costs capitalised in other intangible assets
is approximately HK$82,384,000 (2014: approximately
HK$101,897,000).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. £@TIA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €T AEH
2015 2014
—E-RE —EF—-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH&T
Financial assets BKEE
Financial assets at FVTPL R AR BERIEBZYIEE
2O EE
— Derivative financial asset — {T4EBE&EE - 34,560
Loan and receivables B EW A
(including bank balances ~ (BIEIRTTAH K
and cash and pledged & EEEARIT
bank deposits) BF50 476,470 248,755
Available-for-sale investment 7] {ft H & 1% & 8,356 —
484,826 283,315
Financial liabilities Mas
Financial liabilities at B IER AR ER 2
amortised cost PEaE 852,671 1,077,166
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial asset at FVTPL, available-for-sale investment,
loan receivable, trade and other receivables, finance
lease receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables,
amount(s) due to non-controlling shareholders and
an associate, borrowings and convertible notes.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Financial risk management
Currency risk

The companies of the Group mainly operated in
their local jurisdiction with most of the transactions
settled in their functional currencies of the operations.
However, at 31 December 2015, the majority of bank
balances and cash and pledged bank deposits of
the Group are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective group entity
which expose the Group to currency risk while there
was no significant currency risk as at 31 December
2014. The Group did not have a foreign currency
hedging policy as at the end of the reporting period.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

5. €I HE )

MRRRER )
S Ekg ()

REBRRERRUINEHBEERE
?ZEEE{E%WZZDT

Monetary assets

EMEE
2015 2014
—F-1F i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
HK$ BT 40,005 —
RVB AR 119,594 —

The Group is mainly exposed to HK$ and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
analysis to a 5% (2014: nil) increase and decrease in
the respective reporting entity’s functional currency
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2014
nil) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items, and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2014 nil) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax loss where the respective functional
currencies of the reporting entity strengthening
5% (2014: nil) against the relevant currency. For a
5% (2014: nil) weakening of respective functional
currencies of the reporting entity against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below
would be negative.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. €T R

156

Currency risk (Continued)

Effect on post-tax loss:

(c) Financial risk management (Continued) c) BIBEREREE)

S Ekg (F)

HBRERIZE

Monetary assets
EWEE
2015 2014
—F-1F —F0OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET

1,500 —

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group is not exposed to
fair value interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder (note 19) and fixed-rate borrowing from a
shareholding company (note 34).

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits (note 31),
variable-rate bank balances (note 32), variable-rate
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder (note 19)
and variable-rate bank borrowings (note 34). It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate
of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of RMB
Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the People’s Bank
of China arising from the Group’s RMB denominated
borrowings.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 (2014: 50) basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (2014: 50) basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2015 would increase/decrease (2014:
decrease/increase) by approximately HK$550,000
(2014: HK$150,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank balances, variable-rate bank borrowings
and variable-rate amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties and financial guarantee provided
by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position (2014
financial assets and the amount of contingent liabilities
in relation to financial guarantee issued by the Group
as disclosed in note 43).

As at 31 December 2014, in respect of the financial
guarantee issued by the Group, as assessed by
the Directors, it was not probable that i) the former
subsidiary would default the repayment of the bank
borrowings and ii) the banks would claim the Group
for losses in respect of the guarantee contract.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, in respect of
trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables
and loan receivable, individual credit evaluations are
performed on each individual receivable requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customers’ past history of making payments
when due and current liability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the counterparties operate. The Group mitigates
its exposure to risk relating to trade receivables by
dealing with selected government agencies with
sound financial standing. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable balance at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment loss are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the concentration of credit

fRE M RR M
—AEF A=t —HIFE

5. €I HE )

(c)

MRRRER )
EERE (&)

—RFE+T-A=t—H &&

\—7

risk of the Group of the total trade receivables which &z S {EE R K B 8UE E A HLAR
is due from the Group’s largest customer and five % - SRR IR [ 2R Tt S B 6E
largest customers within the business application ENRABREPERAARERF @ DlLE
and services, data collection and processing and FRKFBRBRZT(ZT—MF

development and sales of equipment business
segment is nil (2014: 11%) and 20% (2015: 74%)
respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s concentration
of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 100% (2014: 100%) of the
total receivables.

The credit risk for bank balances and pledged bank
deposit are considered minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants in order to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, as at 31 December
2014, other loan with a repayment on demand clause
is included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the lender choosing to exercise its rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the lender will exercise its discretionary rights to
demand immediate payment. The Directors believe
that such other loan will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled payment date set out in the
loan agreement. At the end of the loan agreement,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to approximately HK$5,250,000 (2015:
nil). As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amount of the loan amounted
to HK$5,000,000 (2015: nil).

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. ®MIA®
(c) Financial risk management (Continued) ) BIEREREREE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBELREMR (&)
Contractual undiscounted
cash flow
BANARRRERE
Within

Weighted 1 year or Between Between

average Carrying  on demand 1and2 2and 5

interest rate amount —-ERg, years years

EFIRIE REE ERXEE 152F 2E5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

THETL THETL THTL THT

As at 31 December 2015 R=Z-EF+=A=t-H
Interest-hearing bank borrowings WaRTEE 4.9% 144,103 147,762 = =
Trade and other payables B RAMERTE - 178,434 178,434 = =
Amounts due to non-controling AR LU ET
shareholders 5.0% 80,536 1,1 1,095 12,346
Amount due to an associate fEf—REEARTE - 26,132 28,132 = =
Non-interest bearing Convertiole SEAHERE
... Note — fabiitycomponent  CREEHE T e T B60E80
852,671 426,099 1,095 672,926
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+=A=1-H
Interest-hearing bank borrowings MERTEE 7.2% 58611 61,029 - -
Interest-bearing other loans WEEMET 5.2% 54,919 58733 - -
Non-interest bearing other loans SEEMER - 36,089 37,822 - -
Trade and other payables B REMERTUE - 183,140 183,140 - -
Amounts due o non-controling e EERRRTE
shareholders 6.0% 75,116 59,237 5,212 13,751
Amount due to an associate Ef—REeRmE - 6,577 6,577 - -
Non-interest bearing Convertible SEARERE
Note — liabilfty component (note a) - BEHH (Mifa) - 662,714 576,544 - 166,000
. financil quarantee contract oteb) | BIBEREM(ED) T SR 6304 ... RO .
1,077,166 989,386 5,212 179,751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

ot

162

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

For the liquidity analysis as at 31 December 2014, it is
assumed that the Extension Option of Convertible Note |
will not be exercised by the Noteholder I.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts as at 31 December 2014 are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required to settle under
the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group does not enter into any financial guarantee
contracts.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that was

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

One of the Group’s financial assets was measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the
fair value of this financial asset was determined (in

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that
was measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

5. €I HE )

d) ERIAZQAAREFE#E)

BEEHEENNREFELFEE
ZHBEEZARE(E)

Fair value as at
31 December 2015 Fair value
Financial asset W=E-1% hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
BHEE tZA=T-BZAAE RRERR HERTRTERASE
Derivative financial asset — Assets — nil Level 2 Black-Scholes Mode! was used to capture the present value
Derivative Component (2014: HK$34,560,000) E-ER of the expected future economic benefits that will flow in
of the Convertible Note | BE-% of the Group arising from the derivative Component
TEHBAE - TRRERIZ (ZE-mE: of the Convertible Note |, based on an appropriate discount
(TETASH 34,560,00077T) rate that reflect the risk of the counterparties (note 35)

AR -HBEEA R ERETRRYT SRR
BEMREGHE  WERBTARERITETASD
EEARRANGE Z BRAREER G 2 B8 (Wi 35)

There were no transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy in the current year and prior period.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The carrying amounts of amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder and borrowings as set out
in notes 19 and 34 respectively were approximate
to their fair values as the discounting effect is
insignificant.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values due to
their short-term maturities.

RERBEFEARERR 2B
EAREER -

WIRERE M EEL R AEFELRE
ZHBEERYBRGEZANE

RRBIREERK - MisE19 X345
B FT FE 1~ FEIE R A% SR R TE M A 5k 2
BREEEEAAEES -

FINRZ A B EERMHREL
REEREAARERE - IR
FHNEHRNRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

164

Offsetting of financial assets and financial

liabilities

The Group entered into set-off arrangements in

respect of its balances of trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables as at 31 December
2015 of approximately HK$8,028,000 (2014 nil).

Financial instruments subject to offsetting are set out

as follows:

5. €miT A

(e)

Gross amount
of recognised
financial assets
and liabilities
set off in the
consolidated

BEHEMBEERVEEE

REBRAR-_ZE—FHE+_-A
=t+—AMESRAEMBEYHIERE
5 N E b & 1~ 5k IE £9 8,028,000 7 7T
HHR(ZTE—OF : T)FJuEEL

BE e

SRRz e T AT ¢

Net amounts of
financial assets
(liabilities)
presented in

the consolidated

Related amounts
not set off in the

Gross amount of statement of statement of consolidated
recognised financial financial position financial position statement of
assets (liabilities) GAuE LA8E  financial position
BRE RRRMEE  KRRBSz  UENGAEE
HHEE CRINKEE BHEE  RAREHZ Net amount
(R 4% el (B8 HELE R
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Fihn TEn T T Thn
Trade and other receivables AREMENGE 146530 (8,028) 138,502 (138,502) -
Trade and other payables AR ERFE (186,462) 8,028 (178,434) 178434 -

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

6. Wiz
AEERAFERGRE 2 AT :

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FAET
Business application and SR E A RS
services 150,009 123,270
Data collection and processing 5 E LR 18 100,409 122,923
Development and BT E
sales of equipment 54,463 87,615
304,881 333,808

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s reportable and operating segments, based
on information reported to the chairman of the Board,
being the chief operating decision-maker, for the purposes
of resource allocation, strategic decisions making and
assessment of segment performance focuses on type of
goods or services provided are as follows:

(1) Business application and services;

(2) Data collection and processing;

(8) Development and sales of equipment; and

(4)  Mining and exploration business.

~
N
ok
=
s
3%

B s RAES B ERAES
B(EETBEREE)BEZ AR
S EERR A BRI RT3
B AR TRENE SRS

Pt HE M

B s mr m B

(1) BURMREMRER ;
(@ BUREENELEIE
@) RIBITREHEE K

(4)  BREEREIRET o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER (@)
Segment revenue and results pal ) S
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBW R RFEEETREREED B2
results by reportable and operating segment: DHTEAT
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_Z—hF+-A=+—HILEE
Business Data Development  Mining and

application collectionand and sales of  exploration
and services  processing  equipment business

g 2B R RRR Total
ERERE EREEE HREHEE BREB &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FER TR

..Revenue from external customers, _ RESMERME 150,009 100409 54463 ... T 304,881

Reversal of impairment loss of BoRWGE A

trade receivables BiEzE&E 1,427 2,821 6,214 - 10,462
Impairment loss of trade receivables & S EWFIE 2 RIEEE (1,286) (467) (5,220) - (6,973)
Loss on uncertainty in respect BRERERPEH

of collectability of amounts due TRFERE

from customers of contract works BRI T EEHEE (11,551) (2,474) - - (14,025)
Amortisation and depreciation BERNE (55,115) (31,083) (8,958) - (95,156)
Segment loss AHEA (85,047) . (16594) 296869) (12967  (144,267)
Other income HeplA 7,303
Fair value gain on {TAET A

the Derivative Component of ARRE

Convertible Note | 2R ENRE 64,125
Finance costs BEKK (67,197)
Central administrative cost RRABHAY (12,323)
Equity-settled share-based R R WA

payment expenses S5 (8,761)
Share of result of an associate HME—EHEAREE 2415
Loss before taxation BREAIER (158,645)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HER®
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEPN R R AR (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE
Business Data  Development Mining and
application  collectionand ~ and sales of exploration
and services processing equment business
gz Sz £ FBR Total
ERERYE EBRERE HHEARE WREH &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETL THET TETL TETL TET

.Revenue flom extemal customers | RESNIESME 128270 122928 87615 oo .. 333808
Impairment loss of trade receivables & 5 I FUE 2 FlEEE (1,709) (5,536) (6,304) - (13,549)
Loss on uncertainty in respect BBEENEPAHNIENE

of collectability of amounts due WEERNTEEEEE
from customers of contract works (13,634) (42,874) - - (56,508)
Amortisation and depreciation BERINE (43,098) (22,109) (8,873) (2,142) (76,222)

Segrentoss | SEER. Gro4) . 0949 6905 (5976 @t
Other income HtleA 7822
Far value loss on T%HXTTJ;‘%IME =R

the Derivative Component of ZARERE

Convertible Note | (22,031)
Fair value gain on financial BARBRBEYRN

liabilities at fair value 5 AU WAL 6

through profit or loss 1,287
Finance costs BERA (89,704)
Central administrative cost RRATEFER (38,087)
Equity-settled share-based NEREETIA

payment expenses B ZT 2 A% (31,024)
Share of result of an associate %15 —RgENREE 67
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary mE-EmEAR s 2,157
Loss before taxation KHianEE (412,698)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

168

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment loss represents the loss from each segment
without allocation of central administrative cost, directors’
salaries, certain other income, equity-settled share-based
payment expenses, share of result of an associate, fair
value change on the Derivative Component of Convertible
Note |, financial value gain on financial liabilities at FVTPL,
gain on disposal of a subsidiary and finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the chairman of the Board, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

There were no inter-segment sales between different
business segments for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

7. DEER (&)
SEMEERAEE

AEBEEMABBERUREREEDHZ

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: DR
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Segment assets PHEE

Business application and services 1% & 3 2 AR 75 582,881 799,571
Data collection and processing S EER B2 R I8 798,151 563,456

Development and R RIS
sales of equipment 131,338 286,078
Mining and exploration business — £H& & HI R 375 10 11
Total segment assets DEEERRE 1,512,380 1,649,116
Unallocated corporate assets RO EEE 443,118 215,202
Total assets BEE 1,955,498 1,864,318

Segment liabilities PEEE

Business application and services &1 & FA B2 iR 7 86,073 80,815
Data collection and processing  £iE £ HY B g7 38 57,116 57,446

Development and BT R E
sales of equipment 14,814 17,940
Mining and exploration business — #H& & #I ik 7% 4,658 4,934
Total segment liabilities DI EEBERE 162,661 161,135
Unallocated corporate liabilities A<D B ¥ EE 804,992 1,065,436
Total liabilities BEE 967,653 1,226,571
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEBER#®)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) ITHEEREEE)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interest in an associate, derivative financial
asset — Derivative Component of Convertible Note I,
available-for-sale investment, deferred tax assets, tax
recoverable, certain corporate assets, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash as these assets
are managed on a group basis. Assets used jointly by
reportable segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual reportable segments.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than tax payables, amount(s) due to non-controlling
shareholders and an associate, deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, convertible notes and certain corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis. Liabilities for which reportable segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment
assets.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F&

2RHERB RS EEER -

FIBEEDEZEENE - TEER
—EBE QR R TTEVKE
E — ABBRERICTET AR D ~ Al
HHERE - BERAEE - AIKE
BB HETEREE  BRERTER
NERITEH LR (AREFEETS
REBEREEIER) o A HED KA
{3 2 B E R 85I m] 5 20 B AT AR X
WARZEESE

BERESEZEEDE  TBEE
NTRIA -« BRI AR B — ]t &
REFIE - BEEHIRAE  FE 7
BEEELETEXEE(RZEFER
BNIREBEEER) KREDE
ARAEZABRIRBEOMEEZL
15 LA BL ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —=F

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2015

7. DEER (&)

B At 5 SRR

—AFFA=+—HIFE

BE-_E-AF+-A=1T—-HLEE

Business Data  Development Mining and
application collection and and sales of exploration
and services processing equipment business
gE B Ey] #BE  Unallocated Total
ERSHE EsRE rasgeE HRER S ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000
Thn ThRL T T TR Thn
Amounts included in the measure of AR HERABEE
segment loss or segment assets: i B
Adaftons to exploration and evaluafion assets HRRIEERE - - - 33 - 33
Addtions to property, plant and equipment 0% BEREAELIAE 12,650 3,846 633 - 3580 20,709
Addtions to other intanglble assets EfhErEERE 31,567 28,828 2,101 - - 68,496
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% BEREAEE 6,527 4,204 812 - 549 12,002
Amortisation of other intangible assets EfaVEE RS 48,588 26,879 8,146 - - 83,613
Impaiment loss of exploration and evaluation assets ~ IR REHEEE 2 HEEE - - - 383 - 33
Impaiment loss of other intangile assets AfnBr AR HESE 38930 16,250 5500 - - 60,680
Impaiment loss on finance lease receivables HEHERIEZNEEE - - 8,637 - - 8637
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eqipment~ HENE & %&uﬂ%Z B 60 65 4 17 609 %
White-0ff of inventories FEiE - - 634 - - 634
Amounts regularly provided to BEMTEEERE
the chief operating decision-maker RURERTHAADER
but not included in the measure of IAHEEeE:
segment loss or segment assets:
Interest in an associate R-HEELF ER - - - - 4816 4816
Share of resut of an associate Pk VN - - - - (2475) (2475)
Bank interest income FOFERA (329) (18) (83) 1) 223) (648)
Write-back of other payables AfbERFE - - - - (2,628) (2,628)
Impaiment loss of other recelvables ERiGE HEEER - - - - an m
Finance costs miﬁﬁm - - - - 67,197 67,197
Income tax expense (crect) FiatEs (58) 1,119 04 147 (6,504) = (3.934)
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERARAF 1 71
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

7. DHER (&)

HippHER (#)
BHE—_Z—NE+—_A=1+—RIFE

Business Data Development Mining and
application  collection and and sales of exploration
and senices processing equipment business
4 i R FER Unallocated Totd
ERERE EDERE it HREH FAR A
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T Thn
Amounts included in the measure of tARBERSATEE
segment loss or segment assets: 8.
Adaftons to exploration and evaluafion assets HRRTEEELRE - - - 746 - 746
Adaftons to property, plant and equipment 0% BEREBIAE 12,939 8567 1,109 16 - 2,631
Adaftons to other intangole assets EfrAVEE RE 40747 2,054 1369 - - 64,170
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % BERREE 4229 4443 1259 2,13 - 12,063
Amortisation of other intangioe assets Bt AE B 38,869 17,666 7614 - - 64,149
Amartisation of prepaid land lease payment SN b 3 - - - 10 - 10
Impeiment oss of property, et and equipment 12+ BERBZHEEE - 96 8 11,167 1593 13809
Impaient loss of mining lcences FEERZAERR - - - 133028 - 133028
Impaiment loss of exploration and evaluation assets  EERFEEEZHEEIE - - - 746 - 746
Impaiment loss of other intangible assets EherEE HEER 3757 4615 279 - - 11,166
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment~ HiE47% - BERREBE 5 3 - 461 - 469
Write-offof inventories HEM - - 872 - - 872
Amounts regularly provided to BEmITEEIRE
the chief operating decision-maker RUREEFHALIDEE
but not included in the measure of AAHEEEE:
segment loss or segment assets:
Interest in an associate N-EEendEa - - - - 823 823
Share of resut of an associate HE-EHENAEE - - - - (67 67)
Impaiment loss of other recelvables ApmiGiE REEE - - - - 1378 1378
Impaiment loss ofoan receivable EhEsAERE - - - - 11,870 11,870
Bank interest income FHBHA (196) (182 (51) {4 - (389)
Other loan interest income EfpESAIBHA - - - - #57) 457)
Finance costs MARK - - - - 80,704 80,704
Income tax creit) expense R (E2 )R (1779 4071 637 (33,168) - (30231
1 72 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets or location of operations in case of goodwill.

DEER (&)
i EE R

REBLEMNFE -

ARAEERBINDEP 2 a2 E#L TS

ENEPUEMZ7 -

AR AR EIERE

BEZEMDNEREE 2 IR E XK
wE (LEEm =) M5 o

Revenue from external customers B EIINEEE NS
2015 2014
—E-IF —T—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
PRC ] 304,881 333,808

Non-current assets ERBEE

2015 2014
—E-FHF —ET—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
PRC =8 1,203,274 1,330,774
Hong Kong B 1,691 877
1,204,965 1,331,651

Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

FERBDEETERTMITANRLERIEE

E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @)
Information about major customers FEEFZEH

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

T REERFEREEP ZWaBAEE

W 2 BRI PIEBEL 10%

as follows:
2015 2014
= S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer A BER N/A 135 A 2 42,139

L Revenue from data collection and processing and development

and sales of equipment.

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total

revenue of the Group.

' TR B BUBR R B R 3 A % SR AR A S B G

ZWgs

2 H AR Was i A SR B et 2 BRRELBIME

710% °

8. OTHER INCOME HAglg A

2015 2014
—B-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Bank interest income RITH EMA 648 383
Exchange gain, net b e #E 2,193 —
Other loan interest income H At & R S HA - 457
Rental income HelA 1,195 —
Government grants (note (i) BT Bh (PR EE (i) 12,062 7,625

Write-off of deposits received BURIRSME (B E (i)
(note (i) — 5,003

Write-back of other Hth FE - BRI8 2 B 8

payables 2,628 —
Sundry income ELIET PN 639 1,979
Total #5 19,365 15,447
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —=F

8. OTHER INCOME (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

Included in the amount of government grants recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2015, approximately
HK$12,062,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB9,705,000)
(2014: approximately HK$6,364,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB5,046,000)) were granted in respect of certain research
projects, which immediately recognised as other income for the
year as the Group fulfilled the relevant granting criteria.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, government grants
amounted to approximately HK$1,261,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,000,000) (2015: nil) were recognised as
deferred income utilised during the year (note 36).

On 12 April 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which
the Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the Subscriber
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the convertible notes up to
the maximum aggregate principal amount of HK$249,800,000.
On 15 July 2014, further to the initial deposit received of
approximately HK$5,003,000, the Company had not received
the remaining balance of the consideration of approximately
HK$244,797,000 (or any part thereof) from the Subscriber,
the Company had exercised its right under the Subscription
Agreement to rescind and terminate the Subscription Agreement
and the initial deposit had been forfeited and no convertible note
was issued to the Subscriber. Further details were set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 12 April 2014 and
15 July 2014.

(i)

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#Z=RERAR

fRE M RR M
—AEF A=t —HIFE

Hag A )

HE_Z—AF+-_A=T—HILFERE
WZE&W%EJJ@%WKEI%Hﬁﬁlﬁa
(BEBUEBE HZ %) £912,062,000 74
TT(HHERL AR Q,705,0007T) (==
— U4 : #96,364,00078 7T (FHE R E A
R#5,046,0007T)) + I B R A BN K i
RAEAIA °

REBEEZZE—NF+_A=+—HIEF
V'%%Ei’71261000/7§7n(7f9#“ 2N
R #1,000,0007T) —hRF:ET)z
BUFH%E)JEE%Z%EWiﬂﬁﬁZfﬁLHﬂU\(Fﬁ
F£36) °

R=ZF—WFWEA+=H  AQAEH—
EBUFE=F((RBADL—DRE
W (Z [RBWHE]) Bt ~28FH
BHREZITRREAGKERZRME
7N & 48 %8 % % /249,800,000 7T B 7]
BMREE - R—E—WNFE+A+ER
K B W25 & 495,003,000 78 T2 9
RARLERREAREIRE ZHRLD
244,797,000 7T (S EEME S ) « AA
B ERER B A T AR RS R AR L
REEWZE - ARRDRUIF RS - BF
CRRBABTEMATRREE - £—%
HEHNESEA— T NFENA+=—B R
—E+ A +HBHARAE A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI MRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

9. OTHER GAIN AND LOSSES, NET 9. HftlmREEFHE
2015 2014
—B-HF —ZT-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Impairment loss of property, Y% BB R EE 2 BIERE
plant and equipment (note 16)  (M4EF16) - 13,809
Impairment loss of other HEM\EEE ORERE
intangible assets (note 22) (M7E22) 60,680 11,166
Impairment loss of IR AR 2 BB R 1R
mining licences (note 24) (FF5E24) - 133,028
Impairment loss of exploration  #1#& & FHEEE 2 BEEE
and evaluation assets (note 25)  (FzF25) 383 746
Loss on uncertainty in respect of BREEWERF&# TIZFIE
collectability of amounts W EERE T EE M BB
due from customers of (FF5E27)
contract works (note 27) 14,025 56,508
Reversal of impairment loss of & ZEWKFIE 2
trade receivables (note 28) BB IR 2 #EEl (Fi3E28) (10,462) —
Impairment loss of trade and B 5 LA M WA 2 BEBE
other receivables 7,346 14,927
Impairment loss of finance A& S FEGEIE 2 R E B 1R
lease receivables (note 29) (FizE29) 8,637 —
Impairment loss of W E R 2 BEEE (FI5E30)
loan receivable (note 30) - 11,870
Fair value (gain) loss on the AR ER | 2 STET A D2
Derivative Component of Al (Es) B (HFE35(@)
Convertible Note | (note 35(a)) (64,125) 22,031
Fair value gain on the BRAREREBERIENITBEEZ
financial liabilities at fair value ~aERE
through profit or loss (MF5E35(0))
(note 35(b)) - (1,287)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B AR 2 W
(note 41) (FfizE41) - (2,157)
16,484 260,641
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 10. L& A
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Interest on: INTFEIEZHE -
— Bank loans — RITEXK 5,185 3,506
— Other loans — HME 642 1,820
— Unsecured loan — KRB —RBIEERAR R A
from a non-controlling IR E R
shareholder 1,714 1,168
7,541 6,494
Imputed interest on Hih\mERERz
unsecured other loan & F) S (B 5E34(d))
(note 34(d)) 1,707 2,058
Imputed interest on Convertible  AT#ARZEE| 2
Note | (note 35(a)) HEF B (M5E35()) 29,671 65,407
Imputed interest on extended FEERRT IR IR | 2
Convertible Note | (note 35(a)) HEF S (M5E35()) 19,746 —
Imputed interest on Convertible ARz
Note Il (note 35(b)) EHEF S (FIFE35(0)) 8,532 15,745
59,656 83,210
Total FEH 67,197 89,704
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERA 177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 1. RBAIER
Loss before taxation for the year has been arrived at after AEE BRI ATEE T &M% T 51 F18E
charging: 13 -
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—OF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHEIT

Staff costs (including directors’ B T (BIFEZME)
emoluments)

— salaries, allowances and — e RN EVEF
benefits in kind 69,138 57,103
— retirement benefits scheme  — RIKEF|FHEIHERK
contributions (defined (FREHKEED)
contribution plan) 13,226 9,648
— equity-settled share-based — ERFAEIL A
.....paymentexpenses RO ST e, 8761 o 31,024
91,125 97,775
Amount of inventories R R ZFENRIE
recognised as an expense 57,136 77,432
Amortisation of prepaid land TE A E I 2 5
lease payments - 10
Amortisation of other intangible ~ H b & 2 # i
assets 83,613 64,149
Depreciation of property, W WEMEEIITE
plant and equipment 12,092 12,063
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gillea 1,260 1,347
Exchange losses, net b BB - 68
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE « BEX
plant and equipment B iV 794 469
Minimum lease payments under HRE T RIEFZ
operating leases in respect KEHEE T2
of land and buildings ®EEERNK 10,913 9,838
Write-off of inventories FEHME
(included in cost of revenue) (BT AU ZRR ) 634 872
178 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZBAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT

12. FRfEBiE%

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE-mF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT
Current tax for the year R [E BNERF 18
— PRC Enterprise income tax ~ — FBIZEATSH
(“EIT”) ([ZEmBEH]) 6,397 6,173
Deferred tax for the year REFIRELERIR
— Current year (note 37) — RNEFE (M1FE37) (10,331) (36,404)
Income tax credit FriSHiE & (3,934) (30,231)

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
BVI for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2015 (year ended 31 December 2014: 16.5%).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
there were no assessable profits generated for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate applicable to the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Accordingly, provision for
PRC EIT for the PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 25% on
the estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014, except for the followings:

BERSHERABREZHE ((RBEX
HEDRERRER  AEBEBARBE
—E-AFERZE-NF+A=+—H
IFFEEHMNTFRRSHEREBREAES
ZFTISH o

BE-_E—FAFE+-_A=1t—HILEE -
BABFEB AT ERTE 712 16.5%
MBREAESH (2= —mFE+=A
=+—HILFE :165%) - AHREE—_ZT
—RAFRZE—NF+ZA=+—HIEF
B EEAERBRN - W ERE ST
SBIEL B o

BEPBERERE(RERESHE]
REEMESREBERAL - FREMEA
RIZERMEE _TTN\F—F—HiE
#R25% - At - PRMBARIREBE_-F
—hAERZT—OF+A=+T—HBIHF
B2 et FERB &R A 2 H Bl 1 S TS Bt
HR25% 5T H - LA TIB SRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

12.

180

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

A subsidiary of the Company, it =KX FNEE BERMAR A
7] (Beijing Peace Map Information and Technology Limited*)
(“Beijing Peace Map Information”) was confirmed to be
recognised as a software enterprise and therefore is entitled
to a tax concession of full exemption from EIT from 2012
to 2013 and followed by half reduction in EIT rate of 12.5%
from 2014 to 2016.

A subsidiary of the Company, Beijing Peace Map was
recognised as an approved high technology enterprise and
therefore is entitled to a tax concession period of reduction
in EIT rate of 15% in 2014 and 2015.

A subsidiary of the Company, tFEEERBRIZAR
/2 7] (Beijing Haicheng Huatu Technology Limited*) was
recognised as a software enterprise in 2013 and therefore
is entitled to a tax concession of full exemption from EIT for
two years from 2013 to 2014 and followed by half reduction
in EIT rate of 12.5% from 2015 to 2017.

A subsidiary of the Company, bt REEMiERIF AR & T
‘A 7] (Beijing Shenghezhuang Technology Limited*) was
recognised as an approved high technology enterprise in
2014 and therefore is entitled to a tax concession period of
reduction in EIT rate of 15% for 2014 and 2015.

* For identification purpose only

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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ERARTEEERMERAB (TERXT
BEE])  RARE—HHBAR - EE
ARG RE  BUR_T——FF
TR FFALEMERERNHREE
BOHRR - T-NFEE_T-AFEFR
A EEMEWHE 12.5% 2 HEEE

ERATE  ARAR-—HEHEAR &
BRABRIASHRLE - BN =F—7Y
FR-E-AFTARROERERBEE
16% KBTS E ] -

EREEERRBERAR - ARQF—
B AR R —=FERA A
T R T -—=FRERE_FT—NF
IERBAFEZBEREMEHE2RNTBE
B HERZZ—RAFE-T—+tFEH
B EEMEMHE125% 2 HBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 12. FRIBBER #)
Subsidiaries incorporated in Mongolia are subject to RS BRFMKI 2B R RASMNS S
Mongolian income tax which is calculated at the rate of BT  BIEBABEINRER G EE
10% on the first 3 billion MNT of taxable income and 25% MERIAT  BHEB10% ' EBEHASAE
on the amount in excess thereof. No provision for profits tax EFHEHELER J«/U:E!'J*Bfﬁ MR
has been made as there were no assessable profits during 25% HEZT—RAFR-_T—OF+=
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. A=+—HILFE - EEE/\\HEMEEFEE AR

A - B S PSR R -
Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss AFEZEBERRIRGBaER ZRE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or AlE BRI T -
loss as follows:

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Loss before taxation BR7% A ES 18 (158,645) (412,698)
Notional tax on profit calculated 2 4RRE Al EKE =
at the rates applicable to profits 3@ FB & AR Rt E )
in the jurisdiction concerned w A A ET IR (37,735) (79,047)
Tax effect on share of profit Db —REEE R T a
of an associate ZERE 619 —
Tax effect on non-taxable income HZERFIUA 2 T TH g/ £ (15,937) (2,804)
Tax effect on non-deductible NAHIRFA 2 RIB 2
expenses 42,779 48,724
Tax effect on tax losses RERTIEBB M E
not recognised 6,340 2,896
Income tax credit g e (3,934) (30,231)
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 37. EIERIR 2 B E AR HIRE 37 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

13. DIVIDEND 13. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended HE_ZT—hFt+_A=1+—HI-FE#H
31 December 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed ERMKERRTRE - BHREHARETR
since the end of the reporting period (year ended 31 ERFARNEARE(BEZEZE—NF+=
December 2014: nil). A=+—HIEFE:ZT)-

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KRB ANELERERNRESERT)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the ERTHEIRAESL

following data:

Loss EE

2015 2014
—E—hE b=cgyitfeS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT

Loss for the purpose of basic MEREARREE

and diluted loss per share EETE 2 BE

— loss for the year attributable ~ — ARQ RIEA AFENL
to owners of the Company FAEE (135,506) (357,198)
182 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. BIREE (&)
Number of shares BHEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—OF
’000 ‘000
T B F &

Weighted average number of HERER R SEETE
ordinary shares for the purpose 2 AL {D NkE F 1588
of basic and diluted loss

per share 7,586,651 6,273,858
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the HE-_Z—RFk-_ZT—NF+=A
diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per =+t HIFE SEREFEERERE
share. REEER
The computation of diluted loss per share for the years HE_Z—AFER_Z—NWNF+_A
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 did not assume the =+—HLEFE (ABERETEERR
exercise of the Company’s share options as the exercise M mE Fm) CEREEEBGENL
prices of the share options were higher than the average BREARAZBREETE BHE_Z
market price for shares. The computation of diluted loss per —hHERZE—MOF+A=T—HIEF
share for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 did E - (AL B REER B EREREBEER
not assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding D) BREEEE ARV ERERAAR
convertible notes as the conversion of the convertible notes Z RARITE PR RIS 5 -

would result in a decrease in loss per share.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA = 1 83
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 15. EE - EeTHAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS <&
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=EME
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a MIERESRUEZBARKE FRE
person’s services as a director, whether of the W€ (BR2EHRARABREKE
Company or its subsidiary undertaking NEERE)
Equity-settled
Salaries,  Retirement  share-based
allowances benefits payment
and benefits scheme expenses
inkind contributions DERE
Fees %d =28 BINER  HYLURG Total
we  RENET TEfR  XZEX aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TER TiEn TiEn TiEn

For the year ended BZ-Z-1%
31 December 2015 TZA=t-RALEE

Executive Directors HTEE

Mr. Guan Hongliang (note )~ BEV&S2 F54E (tEE1) 180 607 64 1,004 1,855
Mr. Zhang Chuanjun (note ) SREE LA (FzEi) 120 - - 1,004 1,124
Mr. Zhu Dong (note i RS (M) 120 - - 1,004 1,124
Mr. Feng Tao (note v) BELE (M) - 912 83 1,004 1,999
Mr. Wang Zheng (note v) TExE () - 1,414 125 1,004 2,543

Independent Non-Executive BIF#H{TES

Directors
Mr. Hui Yat On F-REE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Zhang Songlin (note vi) RS (FitEvi) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Zhai Shenggang (note vi) 225 (Bt vil) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Kang Hua (note vii) RS (PR i) 3 - - - 3
663 2,933 272 5,020 8,888
184 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZBAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a
person’s services as a director, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking (Continued)

15. EE - BEETHRAEREEZ
& =)

(a)

EEME 2

MERESRHAZBEARBEANE
WS (BREEHEADTRENE
REENE) ()

Equity-settled
Salaries, Retirement  share-based
allowances benefits payment
and benefits scheme expenses
inkind  contrioutions Y dare
Fees  Ha 28 BINER  BEUMRG Total
we  REWET AR IRZREX &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL TEL THn FAL T
For the year ended HE-Z-mF

31 December 2014 TZA=t-BLEE
Executive Directors HiTE=S
Mr. Yuen Chow Ming (note i) FRFKBRSL A (MizEix) - - - - -
Mr. Yuen Wai Keung (notex) ~ RIEH %4 (MizEx) - - - - -
Mr. So Yiu Cheung (note i) BRIBRESLAE (MfzEx) - - - - -
Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis 3R 30L&

(note xi) (P zExi) - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Chuanjun (note i) SREE LA (FizEi) 120 - - 3,653 3,773
Mr. Zhu Dong (note il R (M) 120 - - 3,653 3,773
Mr. Zhang Jack Jiyei (note i) SRAEESAE (B xii) 72 - - - 72
Mr. Feng Tao (note v) HEE (M) - 914 76 3,653 4,643
Mr. Guan Hongliang (note )~ BEVESR 544 (Fi3E) 96 15 - 3,653 3,764
Mr. Wang Zheng (note v) THEEERY) - 388 44 3,653 4,085
Independent Non-Executive BY#H{TES

Directors
Mr. Liao Cheung Tin, Stephen  BRA%4

(note xiv) (FifzExiv) 120 - - - 120
Mr. Hui Yat On Fi 10 - - - 10
Mr. Tam Sun Wing (note xv) BT %A (Bt xv) 10 - - - 110
Mr. Zhang Songlin (note vi) RADRSAE (Firavi) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Zhai Shenggang (note i)~ B2 (i3 vil) 5 - - - 5

713 1,317 120 18,265 20,415

Mr. Guan Hongliang is also the Chief Executive of

the Company and his emoluments disclosed above

include those for services rendered by him as the

Chief Executive.

BB EEMEEARRNITHRE
o M EXPrERRE M IR T
TTERARE IR L ARTS BV Fr BN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 15
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

i) appointed as executive director, chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer on 6 August 2014 and
subsequently resigned as chief executive officer on
4 January 2016

(ii) appointed as deputy chairman of the Board on 6 August
2014

(iii) appointed as the acting chairman on 1 March 2014 and
re-designed as deputy chief executive officer on 6 August
2014

(ivy  appointed as chief financial officer in September 2013
and executive director on 16 December 2013

(V) appointed as executive director and chief operating officer
on 6 August 2014 and re-designated as chief executive
officer on 4 January 2016

(v  appointed as independent non-executive director on
11 March 2013

(vii  appointed as independent non-executive director on
30 November 2014

(vii)  appointed as independent non-executive director on
11 December 2015

(ix)  resigned as executive director and chairman of the Board
on 16 January 2014

(x) re-designated from the deputy chairman to the acting
chairman of the Board on 16 January 2014 and
subsequently resigned as acting chairman, executive
director and chief executive officer on 1 March 2014

1 86 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(x)  resigned as executive director and deputy chairman on
1 January 2014

(xi)  resigned as executive director on 1 January 2014

(xii) appointed as executive director on 25 July 2013 and
resigned on 6 August 2014

(xiv) resigned as independent non-executive director on
1 February 2014

(xv) resigned as independent non-executive director on
30 November 2014

No director and chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014.

15. EE - BEETHRAEREEZ
& =)

(a) EZM= @)
e« ()

x) R-E—NF—A—BEEHRTE
EXREER

i) RZZ—OF—HA—HBEERNTE
=

xi)y R-ZE—=F+A-_1+HAEZT
ARTESEYHR _T—NFENAN
BEHT

xiv) R-ZT—FE—= A—BEEBIE
WITES

xv) R-ZE—NF+—A=+HEHTSE
SNIERTES

MEEZLRHTRABREXFE
MEBE_T-—HFR_T—HNF
T-A=T—BLEFEZEAME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 15. EE - BeTBRABREEZ
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) M€ =)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEESHMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during RBE-T—RAF+-A=+—H1
the year ended 31 December 2015 included three FE  AKERAEAZEFALTEE=S
(2014: five) directors whose emoluments have been H(ZE—NF: AR)ESE - B
disclosed in note (a) above. The emoluments paid to L ERMIE@Q EXHE - B T
the remaining two (2014: nil) highest paid non-director TRE(ZZE—WF : T)&o i
individuals were as follows: EEATZMEWT ¢
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Salaries, allowances and ~ #& 2B R EYEA
benefits in kind 1,455 —
Retirement benefits RIRERF B
scheme contributions 146 —
Equity-settled share-based BAREZAEWIARND T 2 HAX
payment expenses 1,827 —
3,428 —
188 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate
emoluments of the above two (2014: nil) highest paid
non-director individuals fell within the following bands:

15. EE - BEETHRAEREEZ
[ €D,

(b)

TEREFMAL @)
BE-T-AF+-A=1+—HI#F
B timE(—E—mE: T)E
BHIEFA LB RENT T
#HE -

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$1,500,001 — 1,500,001 BT E
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000 7% 7T 2 —

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA =

REBE_E—RAFR_T—NF+=
A=Z+—RALFE  AEETERE
EREMABREE A TS ERE
©  EABEREMAREENFEE
MARE B % 2 RESERBER

ke
g °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

190

16. Y% - BMERRE

Furniture, Plant,
fixtures and machinery Mine
Land and equipment Leasehold Motor and tools development
buildings HH - improvements vehicles KR assets Total
1#HEET RERRE  HENELE at-d BERIE  WERREE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 K$'000 HK$'000
TER Thm Thm Thn Thn Thn Thn
Cost A
At1 January 2014 RZF-RE-A-A 15913 13,355 3,198 4973 4331 30,521 111,281
Additions HE - 2,677 17,802 423 1,729 - 22,631
Disposals & - @7 - (1,168) (619) - 2,058)
Disposals through disposal FRNE-HMBAAMLE
of a subsidiary (note 41) (HizE41) - (416) - (940) 0,794 - (11,150)
Exchange realignment EiAE (746) (289) (339) (249 (1,399) (4314 (7,286)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-METZA=1-A
and 1 January 2015 R=5-15-A-R 15,167 15,056 20,665 3,039 33,284 26,207 113418
Addttions HE 4337 3928 8,618 2,437 1,389 - 20,709
Disposals & - (3.93) B (750) - - (4,688
Bxchange realignment ExAE (1,019) (1,042) (1,508) (289) (2.475) (1,465) (7,794)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-EF+-R=1-H 18,485 14,004 21,175 4441 32,198 24,742 121,645
Accumulated depreciation ZEHERAE
and impairment
At1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-A 3,334 2,314 521 682 7518 30,521 44890
Charge for the year FRi 858 3212 2438 714 4841 - 12,063
Eliminated on disposals HERH - (252) - (385) 439) - (1,076)
Eliminated on disposals FRNE-HNELA
through disposal HEmEH
of a subsidiary (note 41) (HizE41) - (90) - (125) (3,659) - (3.868)
Impairment loss recognised ENBRAERR
during the year 11,167 43 1,199 216 1,124 - 13,809
Fxchange realignment ExAE (192) (276) (101) (%) (1,329 (4,314) (6,241)
At 31 December 2014 RIB-METZA=T-H
and 1 January 2015 k=5-1f-A-H 15,167 4,951 4,067 1,121 8,068 26,207 59,617
Cherge for the year Emi 217 3,169 4,854 476 3376 - 12,002
Eliminated on disposals It R - (3,045) - (604) - - (3,649)
Exchange realignment S (857) (610) (498) (112 (1,409 (1,465) (4,951)
14,521 4,465 8413 887 10,035 24,742 63,069
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2015 RZ2-EE+ZR=1-H 3,958 9,539 19,362 3,554 22,163 - 58,576
At 31 December 2014 RZF-METZA=1-H - 10,106 16,608 1,912 25,216 - 53,841
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

No depreciation for mine development assets was provided
for as the production of the coal mine site has not yet
commenced during the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for mine development assets, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Land 2%

Buildings 10%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10%-33"/3%

Leasehold improvements 30% or over lease term
if shorter

Motor vehicles 10%-20%

Plant, machinery and tools 10%-33"/3%

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors
conducted a review of the Group’s land and buildings
and determined that the land and building was impaired
of approximately HK$11,167,000 (for the year ended
31 December 2015: nil).

Details about the impairment on land and building is set out
in note 24.

The analysis of the carrying values of the Group’s land and
pbuildings is as follows:

16. 1% - BERRZE®)

HRZABESRBEE_T—AFR_-F
—MOFE+-A=1+—BILFERRRE
Rt E ARG B ERHRITE ©

BRIESHREEEIN - LlYE - BERFK
HEENERESEETIFXRFAER
E

Tt 2%

BF 10%

R - KRB REE 10%-33"/3%

EMHEEE 30% kiR FH
(fWEEE)

P! 10%-20%

ME -~ e TA 10%-33/5%
REBEE-_ZT—WF+-_A=+—HL
FE - ESRASEENLIHEETE
TEES TEFLTHREFREN S
11,167,000 8 T (BE—_T—HAF+ A
=+—HIEFE:F) -

MIRBEE 2 T MEF ZREFIBHR
MizE24 o

AEETHREFT 2 REESTOT

2015 2014
—E-1F —T-MmF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FAT
Outside Hong Kong, held under  EZ&BLASMT[E
medium-term leases AR B ERE 3,958 —
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED % T EZBRARA 191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

16.

17.

18.

192

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥1% - BEKRE &)
(Continued)
At 31 December 2015, the Group has not obtained the land R_ZE—HF+ZA=+—8H ' &%
and building ownership certificate for a land and building AR EABEE R B BT BRI ER S BREE A
with carrying amount of approximately HK$3,958,000 (2014: £3,958,0008 L (=T —WF : T) &
nil) from the relevant PRC government authorities. In the FRtwREREMEEE EFRA - H
opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title to this RASERRE M T REFHEER
property does not impair their values to the Group as the B RENZEFHNEXEETSZSAE
Group has paid in full purchase consideration of this land EE@EMEX s EBEEERARD ERER
and building and the probability of being evicted on the 4% B & 1) AT Be E &I ©
ground of an absence of formal title is remote.
DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 17. B ZYEXE SRS
PROPERTIES
As at 31 December 2014, deposit paid for acquisition R-ZE—WNE+—-A=+—H  plEz
of properties represented non-refundable deposit of MECIESERYERERE(—BILE
RMB388,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$489,000) =7 EAEEEAE) RIELION
(2015: nil) paid to a property developer, an independent TE—EYERANETEREESINH
third party not connected to the Group as for the acquisition AR ¥ 388,000 7T (18 E 7 47489,0007% 7T )
of property and six parking area under construction situated HAREZRES(ZE—RF : T) o RE
at Zhejiang. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the ZEF-RFFTA=T—RHIEFE  Z
properties are available for use and have been transferred YEARERBEEBREYE  BEKEE
as land and building under property, plant and equipment. HTN 2L RIETF -
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. AL tBEFIE
2015 2014
—E-HF —TmEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Balance as at 1 January R—A—B2z#H% - 11
Amortisation iy - (10)
Exchange realignment PE SR - (1)

Balance as at 31 December

Wt - A=t—BZ&H

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments represent up-front payments to acquire
interest in the usage of land situated in the Mongolia, which
are held under short term leases.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

19. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 19. @’fﬁ;lzgﬂﬁﬂii/_ Bk =N

SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FEA I IR IR R TR IE

2015 2014
—F-1F —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current liabilities nEBE
— Current accounts (note a) — mehEIE (fiska) 16,673 42,968
— Unsecured loans (note b) — EEAER (MiEb) 40,586 7,564
— Unsecured renovation loan ~ — EIKIHE(EE K
(note ¢) (ftsEce) 12,026 7,785
69,285 58,317
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
— Unsecured renovation loan ~ — EIKIRE(EE K
(note ¢) (ftsEc) 11,251 16,799

Notes: BdsE -

(8  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on @ ZREAEER RERARENRERE -
demand.

()  As at 31 December 2015, unsecured loans in aggregate of b) RZZF—RAF+ZA=1+—8 EKA
RMB34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$40,586,000) B3 A H A RE 34,000,000 7T (FBERL
(2014: RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 40,586,000 7C) (ZZE—HF : ARK
HK$7,564,000)) represented borrowings from PO #Efi 22 i 2 6,000,000 7t (1HE R 47,564,000/ 7))
BPRAT (CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd*) (“CATIC Siwei”), a non- FE 2R B AN B AR AR R U 4 M 22 i R
controlling shareholder of the Group, for financing the general RAR(HERZ]) 2EE - HR—K
working capital. The loans carried interest at 1-year RMB LBEESHE - REEFERTRHARRIT
Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China PRz — G BR A RIS ELEF| SR B F =R
annually (2014: 6% per annum) and repayable within one year. (Z2—WF : FHE6%) RBER—FA

Eig -

* For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

19. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

194

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, unsecured renovation
loan represented borrowing from CATIC Siwei for financing
the renovation incurred for the office rented from CATIC Siwei.
On 15 May 2014, the Group entered into an operating lease
agreement with CATIC Siwei as landlord in relation to the
tenancy of a nine storey building (the “Property”) (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) of which the renovation amount of the Property
(the “Loan”) was fully financed by CATIC Siwei amounted to
RMB19,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,277,000)
(2014: approximately HK$24,584,000) with the repayment
term of five years. The Loan carried interest at 5-year RMB
Benchmark Interest Rate per annum quoted by the People’s
Bank of China over the outstanding balance of the Loan plus
any accrued interest. The Group was required to repay not less
than 20% of the principal amount of the Loan and interest of the
Loan annually. Further details are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 15 May 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group and
CATIC Siwei have mutually agreed to extend the balance of
RMB6,175,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,785,000)
as at 31 December 2014 to be repayable within one year from
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2015,
the balance is amounted to RMB6,175,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,371,000).

Amount due to an associate

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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REEBEMAEME (EAEE)RHEE—
BNABEF(ZWED T —HEER
EWz(ZHEERR])  ZWENES
K ZER]) Mg ERERIE
% HE&mE AR 19,500,000 7T (FHE
M#123,277,000%70) (ZZF—MF : 49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 20. R —REEE AR 2 s
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—UEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investment in B A RIFE EMIRE 2 AR
an associate 2,274 756
Share of post-acquisition profit D {EULEE & % Fl 2,542 67
4,816 823

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had interest

in the following associate:

R_E—RFR_ZF—NF+_A=+—
H

R TSI AR A S

Proportion of
ownership
interests or
participating
shares indirectly held
Principal by the Group Proportion of
Countryof ~place of Registered FEEEEEE voting
Name of entity Form of entity registration ~ operation  capital RERERASHE powerindirectly held  Principal activity
ERgE ERrA HRER ITEENY  MER i BESERERNLA ITEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
I2-1F —E-WmEF ZB-RF _-0f
Beiiing Peace Power  Incorporated PRC PRC RMB9,000,000 16.23% 16.28% 16.28% 16.23% Technology and software
Company Limtec* AL 2 EF (2014 applcation development
FRATEZR RMB3,000,000) RiTREHERRE
[ERRIARAA ARE9,0000007
(MRERRTBEN (Z2-pE:
EERIARAR) ARE
3,0000007T)

* For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The Group indirectly held 16.23% equity interest in Beijing
Peace Power Company Limited* through its 81.15% equity
interest in Beijing Peace Map, which held 20% equity
interest in Beijing Peace Power Company Limited.

The financial information and carrying amount of the
Group’s interest in an associate that is not individually

1 o

REBR—EBER

20. R—RBE N T 2w (%)

ERRATEFAILRKTEZ=MHE B
BRARI20% rIRHE - AEEFEBRIFAIL
RRATE81.15% R ERZEFFILRK
TEZ=REE LM AR A 7 16.23% H %

Al #E s (3 FF 8 & R
ERREAERENR) MM E R MR

material and is accounted for using the equity method is set EESHIAT :
out below:
2015 2014
—T-hfF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
The Group’s share of profit RNEBEDhRF 2,475 67
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
R-ZE—HF RZZE—F
+=BA=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT AT
Carrying amount of the Group’s ~ REERIFE KR
interest in immaterial associate ~ Bt& A TR ZBEEE 4,816 823

*

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

21. GOODWILL 21. B8
HK$’000
FAT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mE—F—H 704,793
Exchange realignment b H FA R (5,071)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 Rn-_ZE—WF+=-A=+—H
k=ZF—hF—H—H 699,722
Exchange realignment ME 5 8B (28,582)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF+=-HA=+-—H 671,140
Accumulated impairment Z5HEE
At 1 January, 31 December 2014 RZE—NmF—H—H -
and 31 December 2015 +=-A=+—~H
R—ZT—RF+-A=+—H 35,506
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2015 RZE—HFE+ZHA=+—H 635,634
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=—HA=+—H 664,216
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERA 197
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

21.

198

PR R AR

GOODWILL (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to individual CGUs, being i) the four mining
licences for a coal mine in Tugrug Valley held by a subsidiary
of the Company, Tugrugnuuriin Energy LLC (“TNE”), within
mining and exploration business; and ii) the operating
segments under Sinbo Investment Limited (“Sinbo”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Sinbo Group”) in
geographic information business.

The Group conducted impairment review on goodwill

21. B8 ®)

HREARMNS BRI EZEMER
CEHEMN  )HEBEEHEER &~
N &) H)— & Y B 2 &) Tugrugnuuriin Energy
LLC ([TNE ) # & Tugrug Valley & 5 & /g
ERFEER : Ri)FMBREERAR([H
BEDREMBAR (SEA HEAEE]) 2
HIBEREBRENE -

\

AEESRBRA RIS RERRSEN
Iv2

attributable to the respective CGUs at the end of the BURMERELEETRERE -
reporting period by reference to the estimated recoverable E@: T -RAFERZTE—MF+_A="+—
amounts. The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of CNREZFEM CEE (R EZFRA
accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 December 2015 @JE?E)ZEE@TEZZDT :
and 2014 allocated to these units are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —H4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Business application SUEE A AR TE
and services 85,112 88,939
Data collection and processing ~ ZUEEH SR IE 488,422 510,385
Development and sales RGBS E
of equipment 62,100 64,892
Mining and exploration business £ & #)iF 2 75 - —
635,634 664,216

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

21. GOODWILL (Continued)

Geographic information business

The recoverable amounts of the goodwill attributable to the
Sinbo Group has been determined based on the fair value
less cost of disposal using market approach. Fair value was
determined with reference to a valuation report prepared
by Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma Appraisals”), an
independent valuer not connected to the Group based
on the price-to-earnings multiples (“P/E Multiple”) of
comparable companies with similar business nature and
operations as the CGU. The average P/E Multiple of 53
(2014 30) and marketability discount rate of 21% (2014:
21%) and control premium of 30% (2014: 30%) were used.
Other key estimation included the cost of disposal based on
estimation by the management of the Group. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
the respective CGUs to exceed its recoverable amount.
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
impairment loss was recognised.

The level in the fair value hierarchy in arriving the above
recoverable amount is considered under Level 2 with
observable inputs for the assets directly or indirectly.

Mining and exploration business

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the goodwill
of approximately HK$35,506,000 was fully impaired in
previous year due to the unforeseeable technical causes
and the required time for water management program was
longer than expected, resulting in the delay in the overall
production schedule of the coal mine located in Tugrug
Valley (the “TNE Mine”), which resulted in downward
adjustment on the estimated net cash inflows and hence
the recoverable amount of the TNE.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill attributable to
the TNE has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation. Further details are set out in note 24.

21. BB #®)

WIS E XK

MESERCEENATHRE S ED KR
AmEERBAREREEXNARE
Fe ARBEN2RBRERNSEHRERE
CEBUFEMESERIBAERA
AEEIEDERRABERARAESR
BMUEBEERRSEEENNCEER)
MMABE((HRR])RRZGEERS - &
BFHHAERS3(ZT—M4F : 30) RAH
EMARE21% (ZT—F : 21%) AR
TR RES0% (ZF— U4 : 30%) o &
EBHEBBLERE - HERAEE
ERENGE BREERAEMNZERE
WEMESEEEHTEERNETEREE
FEMNKRAEBBEATKESEE - KRB
E_E-RER-E-NME+_A=1+—
B I FE I B EEE -

S bt A Ol B E) D A B R R S
BE A (AFTEERXEREESRIE)

BRIR N B BR RS

HE-_ZT-—ME+_A=+—BHILtEE -
2 #4935,506,000 8 TE RN BEFER
EURE - BRI TE B A I R RE LA Rk
BEREIBEERERNES  ERAR
Tugrug Valley F 5% ([TNE#& 5 |) F) %48
EEFEIERE - MBRGHTRESERAFE
T i TNE Z FJ U [E £ 58 T B o

TNEEARE 2 RO BRERIEERE
BFFTEETE - £ BHNHE24 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. HittEEEE
Deferred
Distribution development Customer Imaging
Licences  Contracts  Copyrights costs  Software Tradename  relationship data Total

BR  2ERf BE EERRHA LUB I it
HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKBOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSO0  HKSO0D

TAT TRL TRT TR TRT TRT TRT TAT TRT

Cost A
At1 January 2014 R-E-RE-F-H 185,893 39,143 167,972 46,399 148,767 21,368 1810 76,497 677,809
Adations HE - - - 63436 734 - - - 64170
Disposal through FALENERAR

diposal of asuosiclary ~ (HE [4.201) - - (6,410) - - - - 9,611)

Bcegeregment | ERSE L LU B @n o e LT

At31 December 2014 MZE-RETZA=1-A

and 1 January 2015 k=%-15-B-A 180,580 38906 167,025 104,119 148,610 21,239 1799 75,399 728217
Adaltions hE - - - 66,098 2,398 - - - 68,496
Transfer i fouf (1) - - - (48,857) 17,997 - - 30,860 -
Bxchengeredignment B HE (9,59) (2,068) (8,349) (6,216) (8,704 (1,129) (9) (5,268) (41412

At31December205  W=Z-IETAZT-R 170084 36,838 146,680 115,144 160,301 20,110 1,703 101,601 755,361

Accumulated amortisation 23t &iE
and impairment

At1 January 2014 R-E-NE-5-H - 2,036 9,160 2,105 20,024 1,131 146 10,502 45,104
Charge for the year R - 4,860 19,322 - 2138 2,806 346 15,483 64,149
Impaiment loss recognised  EREZRESE (i)
during the year (note 9) 7,254 - 1,246 129 2,000 5% 2 - 11,166
Biminated on dsposdls ~~ EALE—EHELT
through disposal HEmE
0f a subsidlary 4201) - - - - - - - (4,201)
Ddtwgeredgmert | EREE S LI L ... L I TSRO (L <
At31 December 2014 HZF-RETZAZ-R
and 1 January 2015 k=5-1F-F-H 3,058 6,881 29,663 2,222 43305 4,464 493 2914 115995
Charge for the year Epyit - 4791 19,049 - 24556 2202 34 34673 83613
Impaiment loss recognised - FRERHEFA (9)
during the year (note 9) 5,382 5,500 - 31907 10220 - - 7671 60,680
Echergeredigment | BAZE L I () s 0% eem o ee s (108
At31December 2015 W-F-EET-A=T-H 8,080 16,400 46,385 32,760 75,404 6,321 7% 63,217 249,422
Cartying values REf
At31December205  R-E-RETZA=f-H 162904 20438 102,205 82,384 84,807 13,789 908 38,324 505,939

At 31 December 2014 WE-METZR=1-B 17750 32,026 127,362 101,897 105,300 16,775 1306 50,085 612,282
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Except for software and development costs capitalised
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were
internally generated intangible assets, all other intangible
assets were acquired as part of a business combination in
prior years.

The intangible assets, other than licences with indefinite
useful lives and deferred development costs, are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Distribution contracts 8 years
Copyrights 6-8 years
Software 5-10 years
Trade name 10 years
Customer relationship 10 years
Imaging data 3-8 years

No amortisation for deferred development cost was
provided as the developing software is not ready for use.

Copyrights represented a group of registered copyright
of software which related to aerial photo modeling and
processing.

The software mainly represented the graphical and
managing system which can reform the raw data into the
readable outputs, for example: 3D modified graphics and
graphic application software.

Imaging data represented the database of aerial photos
called Digital City, which was established for future sales
of aerial photos and further development of relevant data
collection and processing works.

2. HtEEEE &)
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Licences represented Class-A Certificates of Surveying and
Mapping Qualification and Class-B Certificates of Surveying
and Mapping Qualification issued by the Bureau of Surveying
and Mapping. The licences have legal life of 2 to 3 years
but are renewable every 2 to 3 years at minimal cost. The
Directors are of the opinion that the Group would renew the
licences continuously and has the ability to do so.

As a result, the licences are considered by the management
of the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it
is expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The licences will not be amortised until its useful life
is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired.

As at 31 December 2015, the recoverable amounts of the
licences with indefinite useful life have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the Directors covering a five-year period, with discount
rate ranging from 15.92% to 16.35% (2014: 15.31% to
18.62%) per annum. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%.
The growth rate was based on the relevant industry growth
rate forecast and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculation related to the estimation of
cash flows included gross margin and discount rate. Gross
margin represents budgeted gross margin, which is based
on past performance and the management’s expectation
for the market development. The discount rate used is a
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
risks specific to the relevant industry. As at 31 December
2015, the recoverable amount of the impaired licences
is approximately HK$160,775,000 (2014: approximately
HK$1,795,000) in aggregate and the impairment loss
on licences of approximately HK$5,382,000 (2014
approximately HK$7,254,000) has been recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) Hitt |\ EE &)
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors REBEE_FE—RAF+_A=+—HItF
further conducted a review of the Group’s other intangible = é%}&* FTHAEBE 2 EMERE

assets apart from licences as mentioned above and
determined that certain of these assets were impaired
based on the estimated recoverable amounts with reference
to their value-in-use. The value-in-use was determined
based on the estimated future cash flows discounted at
a rate ranging from 15.92% to 18.35% (2014: 14.51%
to 18.62%) per annum. As at 31 December 2015, the
recoverable amount of the impaired other intangible assets
apart from licences is approximately HK$67,849,000
(2014: approximately HK$15,062,000) in aggregate
and the impairment losses of other intangible assets of
approximately HK$55,298,000 have been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2015 (year ended
31 December 2014: approximately HK$3,912,000).

E(LfRRRIN ETER  WHETE
TFZELAECREBGTATKEDSELRE
FREERE FABENRENTESF
15.92% £ 18.35% ( —Z & — P4 : 14.51%
£18.62%) MR E 2 {HEt R KRR MEE
T -R_T—RAE+-_A=+—8 BER
1B AR h BB DA SN H At B2 8 EE P MR Bl
A #)567,849,0008 7L (T —M4E :
#915,062,00087C) - REBE=_T—HF
+-A=+—HLFE EBRREME
& EREEIE455,298000% T (HBE
—ME+—_A=+—BLEFEE: &
3,912,000/ 7T) °

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 23. AItHERE
2015 2014
—E-EREF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT
Unlisted equity investment A Bz 3E_ETARAR
in the PRC, at cost RE B 8,356 —

The above unlisted equity investment represents investment
amounted to RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,356,000) in unlisted equity interest in a private entity
incorporated in the PRC. The investment is measured at

Lii3E EmRAKREEE —ELARRZ
FE R REE R A R ¥ 7,000,000 7T (AHE
7R #%78,356,00087C) 2 IRE + A RIARH
Bl AEAC L o 32X B R 3R B RIR A AR,

cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period BERTE  BREEATEMFTZEHENXN
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is R RRREEFRA/HEATFEREER S

so significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

As at 31 December 2015, RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,581,000) (2014: nil) under the contract
has not been paid and details of the capital commitment
are set out in note 42.

5 -

R_ZE—RE+-_A=+—H AHHET
/\E‘ﬁ%s 000 ooo%(ifﬁééﬁﬁéms,%mooo
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24. MINING LICENCES 24, FRIENEER
HK$'000
FAT
Cost 3RS
At 1 January 2014 R-—ZT—m&E—A—A 1,746,412
Exchange realignment M H 7B (230,526)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE—NE+-A=+—HK
RZZE—hF—HA—H 1,515,886
Exchange realignment b 5 S (84,725)
At 31 December 2015 R-B-AF+=ZA=+—H 1,431,161
Accumulated impairment ZiHEE
At 1 January 2014 R-E—F—H—H 1,597,524
Impairment loss recognised during the year FRERREERE 133,028
Exchange realignment bE H 7R (214,666)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE—WFE+ZA=+—8K
WR_ZE—h&—HF—H 1,515,886
Exchange realignment M H 7B (84,725)
At 31 December 2015 R=-B-AF+=A=+—H 1,431,161
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2015 R-B-HF+=HA=+—H -
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-MFE+=-HA=+—H —
Mining licences represent the carrying amounts of four g AR 458 BAAL N 5 & B Tur B2 Bayan &
mining rights in respect of the TNE Mine within the AOITHEMKN - BEEERX1,114Q8E
administrative unit of Bayan Soum of Tur Aimag in Mongolia Z TNETE35 /) /Y I8 R 54 2 AR E{E -

covering area of 1,114 hectares in aggregate.
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24. MINING LICENCES (continued)

Pursuant to the Mineral Law of Mongolia which was
adopted in 2006, a mining licence is granted for an initial
period of 30 years and a holder of a mining licence may
apply for an extension of such licence for two successive
periods of 20 years each.

No amortisation for the mining licences was provided
for as the production of the coal mine site had not been
commenced since 2009.

The mining licences of the TNE Mine are subject to
impairment review whenever there are indications that the
mining licences’ carrying amount may not be recoverable.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, mining licences
were fully impaired.

In performing the impairment testing for the year, the
management (2014: Roma Appraisals, an independent
valuer not connected with the Group) has determined
the recoverable amount of the TNE Mine using fair value
less costs of disposal, which is derived by using the DCF
Analysis. The DCF Analysis has incorporated assumptions
that a typical market participant would use in estimating
the TNE Mine’s fair value. The DCF Analysis uses cash flow
projection for a period of 13 years up to 2029 (2014: 13
years up to 2028) and the pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projection is 25% (2014: 25%). In determining
the pre-tax discount rate, the weighted average cost of
capital was used, which is determined with reference to
the industry capital structure based on the figures of similar
publicly traded companies in the stock exchanges of Hong
Kong and the PRC with mining projects, and have taken
into account the specific risks encountered by TNE Mine as
further detailed below. For the estimation of inflation rate,
inflation rates relevant to the local Mongolian economy and
the coal market are taken as reference.

24, FRIBNEER (2
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EREBABAAIREB25% (ZF—H
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24. MINING LICENCES (continued)

206

Other key assumptions used in the calculation of fair value
less costs of disposal of the TNE Mine in the respective

financial year are set out as follows:

@)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, further drilling
works and laboratory tests were undertaken to
determine coal layer structure and thickness and to
verify coal quality. From the laboratory test results, the
calorific value of such samples was in the range of
3,100 to 4,300 Kcal/kg. Since the Group has not been
able to excavate coal with expected calorific value,
the Group decided to revise the cash flow forecasts to
focus on the coal sales of lower calorific value which
has lower expected coal sales price per tonne;

Coal sales price is determined with reference to
market information. In view of the sluggish coal
market condition, the management has reduced the
expected coal price for 2016 (the expected year of
commencement of production) from United State
Dollar (“US$”) 8.53 per ton in last year’s forecast
to US$8.50 per ton in current year’s forecast. The
subsequent increment in coal sales price is on an
average growth rate of 2.2% (2014: 2.5%) based on
Australian export price index over the past 24 years;

Cost of production and gross margin are determined
with reference to the market comparables. The overall
profit margin in the current year’s forecast ranged from
-123% to -35% (2014 ranged from -123% to -34%)
throughout the mining project life; and

In light of recent developments in Mongolia with
regard to the implementation of laws and regulations
related to the mining industry such as the passing of
Resolution No. 194 (“Rs 194”) and Resolution No. 289
(“Rs 289”) in June 2012 and July 2015 respectively
(as explained below), an additional risk premium of 2%
(2014: 2%) has been factored into the discount rate.
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24. MINING LICENCES (continued)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of laws
and regulations affecting the position of the
mining licences

Currently there are two separate sources of restrictions
on mineral exploration and mining activities around water
areas in Mongolia which affect the mining and exploration
business of the Group:

U)

On 16 July 2009, the Parliament of Mongolia enacted
the Law to Prohibit Mineral Exploration and Mining
Operations at the headwaters of rivers, protected
zones of water reservoirs and forest areas (the
“Water and Forest Law”) which prohibits minerals
exploration and mining activities in areas containing
water reservoirs, water protection zones and forest
zones (the “Prohibited Areas”). During the year
ended 31 March 2013, Rs 194 was issued to define
the boundaries of the Prohibited Areas pursuant to
Article 4.3 of the Water and Forest Law. Pursuant to
Rs 194, a letter was issued by Ministry of Environment
and Green Development and Tourism (“MEGDT”)
confirming the Group that the four mining licences and
two of the exploration licences of the Group, partially
or wholly fell within the protected zones of water
reservoirs specified under Rs 194. Under Rs 194,
the Group is prohibited from undertaking mining and
exploration activities in the areas that overlap with the
Prohibited Areas. The Group has not yet commenced
mining activities up to the date of this report.
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24,
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MINING LICENCES (Continued)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of laws
and regulations affecting the position of the
mining licences (Continued)

(i)  (Continued)

The Water and Forest Law also states that all
mineral and exploration licences which overlap with
the Prohibited Areas may be cancelled (wholly or
partially) upon the government of Mongolia paying
compensation to the licence holder. For partial
overlapping, the licence holder may submit a request
to the Ministry of Mining to continue working on
the non-overlapping part of the licensed area while
claiming compensation on the overlapping part of
the licensed area. For wholly overlapping, the licence
holder could only submit a request to the Ministry of
Mining for compensation.

(i)~ The Ministry of Nature and Tourism and Ministry of
Health passed a joint order in 2009 pursuant to the
Water and Forest Law which provides that exploration
and mining for common minerals is prohibited within
certain distance from a water reservoir area. In April
2010, order #56 was issued by the Governor of
Bayan County which specified the areas where mining
and exploration activities was prohibited pursuant to
the Water and Forest Law (the “Protected Zone”). In
September 2010, the Group was notified by the Water
Department that their four mining licences fell into the
ordinary Protected Zone.

(i)  On 7 July 2015, the government of Mongolia approved
Rs 289 regarding the determination of the boundaries
of the area affected by the Water and Forest Law and
resolved that the boundaries of the protected zones of
headwaters of rivers and forested areas as set out in
the Appendix | and Appendix lll of Rs 194 respectively
are approved while the boundaries of the protected
zones of water reservoirs as set out in the Appendix |l
of Rs 194 are annulled.
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24. MINING LICENCES (continued)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of laws
and regulations affecting the position of the
mining licences (Continued)

In previous years, the Group had made request to the
Governor of Bayan County for exemption from the
restrictions under the Water and Forest Law on the ground
of the Group’s enormous contributions to Mongolia and
that the mining operation of the Group would not have
any harmful impact to the environment. In December
2011, based on the assessment report issued by an
environmental inspector of the local government, which
stated that the areas covered by the Group’s mining
licences do not constitute an ordinary protection zone or a
water reservoir area, the Governor issued order #259 (the
“Release Order”) to cancel order #56 previously issued in
April 2010.

As advised by the Group’s legal advisors in Mongolia as at
31 December 2014, there was a potential for Rs 194 to be
revised as the Prohibited Areas currently set out under Rs
194 were considered inaccurate and based on information
that was out of date and thus were subject to change.
Besides, MEGDT and the Ministry of Mining were in the
process to correct these inaccuracies and would issue a
definitive list of licences (the “List”) that were subject to
the Water and Forest Law and under the requirement of
Rs 194. Up to the date of the report, the government of
Mongolia had not published the List and it was unclear
when it would be issued.

24, PRUBEIRIR (4
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24. MINING LICENCES (continued) 24, RIEMEIR (2)

210

Uncertainty relating to implementation of laws
and regulations affecting the position of the
mining licences (Continued)

Although the Group’s three (2014: four) mining licences
and two of its exploration licences ostensibly fall within the
ambit of the Water and Forest Law, the Directors believe
the impact to the Group will be minimal because of the
following:

° The Release Order obtained in December 2011, in the
normal may for the purposes of the Water and Forest
Law and prepared by an environmental inspector of
the local government, is based on many of the same
requirements as in the Water and Forest Law. The
Directors are confident that they can argue on the
same environmental and geological grounds with
the MEGDT to similarly exclude the Group’s mining
licences from the final List.

° On 18 February 2015, the Parliament of Mongolia
approved an Amendment Law to the implementation
of the Water and Forest Law. Pursuant to which, the
Group shall be entitled to file an application with the
Ministry of Mining to continue its mining activity within
three months from the adoption of the Amendment
Law. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group has filed an application to the Ministry of Mining
that the Group wishes to continue its mining activity
and the Group has successfully renewed its licences
under normal situation.
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24. MINING LICENCES (continued)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of laws
and regulations affecting the position of the
mining licences (Continued)

° On 20 March 2015, Resolution No. 120 (“Rs 120”)
was approved to regulate about the agreement and
the specific procedures on the determination on the
boundaries of the protected zones that the MEGDT
should appoint a commission to determine boundaries
of the protected zones and conclude an agreement
with the licence holder. On 13 October 2015, the
Group has submitted the request for the appointment
of commission from MEGDT.

On 25 February 2016, an official notice (the “Notice”) was
delivered to the Group from the Ministry of Mining and the
Notice highlighted the following points:

- The Group had not concluded any agreement for
three mining licenses with the relevant authorities in
accordance with Rs 120.

—  The Group was notified to be aware of that the three
mining licences were under risk to be revoked.

The Group sent the request letter on 7 March 2016 and
declared to the Ministry of Mining that the Group had
submitted letters to MEGDT to request for the appointment
of a commission for the purpose of determination on the
boundaries of protection zone in order to conclude the
agreement with the relevant authorities on mining operation
and environment protection. However, no commission had
been appointed as at the date of this request letter. As at
the date of the report, no official response from the Ministry
of Mining has been given in relation to the Group’s request
letter dated 7 March 2016.

24, PRUBEIRIR (4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

24. MINING LICENCES (Continued) 24, TRIBRER (&)

212

Uncertainty relating to implementation of laws
and regulations affecting the position of the
mining licences (Continued)

As advised by the Group’s legal advisors, all mining licences
and exploration licenses are valid during the year ended 31
December 2015 and up to the date of this report.

Assuming the Group is affected by these laws and
regulations, given that the details of compensation from
the Mongolian government are not available, the Directors
are still unable to quantify the effect, if any, on the Group’s
financial position.

In light of recent developments in Mongolia with regard to
the implementation of laws and regulations related to the
mining industry such as the passing of Rs 194 and Rs 289
in June 2012 and July 2015 respectively, an additional risk
premium of 2% has been factored into the discount rate.

Notwithstanding the risk exposed by the Group relating to
the above laws and regulations have been addressed by
the Directors by adjusting the discount rate applied to the
DCF Analysis of the TNE Mine, the ultimate outcome of
this matter cannot be presently determined. If any of the
mining licences of the Group was to be revoked due to Rs
120 or the Water and Forest Law, and the compensation
entitled to the Group was to be significantly less than the
carrying amounts of these mining licences, there would be
a negative impact on the carrying amount of the mining
licences and the related assets in addition to the impairment
loss currently recognised and as described below. As the
mining licences have already been fully impaired as at
31 December 2014, there would not be any significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

24. MINING LICENCES (Continued) 24. TRIBRER (&)

Result of impairment assessment

Based on the above assessment, the estimated net cash
inflows and the recoverable amount of TNE Mine as at 31
December 2014 were dropped in a larger extent than prior
years, and the Directors considered further impairment loss
should be recognised. The impairment loss was primarily
due to revision of expected selling price of coal according
to market condition.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, total impairment
loss of approximately HK$144,195,000 was recognised in
respect of the mining assets as below:

TR B R 45 SR

ERElFFE RZZE-—NE+ZA
=+—H - TEu+EE§//|LA/§*§E&TNE &%
Z AW E S FE 2 BiIg KRN BEFE - M=
ERR - BERE—DRERE - BES
BEXEaNARTRETRR  RREE
TR -

HE-_Z—WNW&E+_-_A=+—HIt&FE -
EMM)%:%E?EEW 1B 8 18 AR FE 4
144,195,000/87T * BT ¢

2014

—PgF

HK$’000

FAT

Mining licences R R 133,028

Land and building included FAME - BER

in property, plant A2 Lt i

and equipment (note 16) (M5 16) 11,167

144,195

The total offsetting tax effect in the year amounted to
approximately HK$33,257,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Since there is no indication of the reversal of impairment
loss during the year ended 31 December 2015, the mining
licences are continued to be fully impaired.

BE_T-NE+-_A=1t—HILFE "
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

25. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 25. BIERFEEE

Licences Others Total
R ER Hith a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FA&T FAT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NNF—H—H 5,523 20,816 26,339
Additions NE 329 417 746
Exchange realignment PE 5 S (794) (2,983) (3,777)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WE+=—HA=+—H
and 1 January 2015 r—E—RF—H—H 5,058 18,250 23,308
Additions NE — 383 383
Exchange realignment PE 5 S (283) (1,024) (1,307)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—EHEF+ZA=+—8H 4,775 17,609 22,384
Accumulated impairment ZEREE
At 1 January 2014 HN-ZE—W&E—HF—H 5,623 20,816 26,339
Impairment loss recognised FABHERZREESE (M)
during the year (note 9) 329 417 746
Exchange realignment bE 5 S (794) (2,983) (3,777)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=—HA=+—H
and 1 January 2015 rF—ZE—RF—H—H 5,058 18,250 23,308
Impairment loss recognised FADHERZRERE (HE9)
during the year (note 9) — 383 383
Exchange realignment b 5 R (283) (1,024) (1,307)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—HE+=-A=+—H 4,775 17,609 22,384
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZE—HF+=-R=+-—H - - -
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-—NF+_-A=+—H — - -
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZBAERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

25. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(Continued)

Licences as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 represent the
cost of obtaining or acquiring exploration licences to certain
area in Mongolia with gold, copper and coal deposit and
others mainly comprise geological and geophysical costs,
costs incurred for drilling, trenching and excavation works,
costs incurred for sampling and laboratory works, costs
incurred for evaluation such as environment assessment
and feasibility study, as well as depreciation and labour
costs directly attributable to the exploration activities.

The exploration licences comprise of the followings:

Three exploration licences in respect of a coal mine
located in DundGobi, Mongolia, covering an area of
approximately 14,087 hectares in aggregate. The
licences and the exploration cost capitalised for this
exploration project as at 31 December 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$4,775,000 and HK$17,609,000 (2014:
HK$5,058,000 and HK$18,250,000) respectively. During
the year ended 31 December 2014, impairment loss of
approximately HK$329,000 (2015: nil) and HK$417,000
(2015: HK$383,000) respectively had been provided as the
exploration and evaluation activities had not yet led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of minerals and
there has been no further plan for substantive expenditure
on further exploration and evaluation of mineral resources in
the area.

Pursuant to the Mineral Law of Mongolia which was
adopted in 2006, exploration licence is granted for an
initial period of three years and holder of an exploration
licence may apply for an extension of such licence for two
successive periods of three years each.

25. BIRRFFREE®)

R E—RAFER T NF+-_A=1+—
B BERENSINRESZHESER=S
AREBREE A TR HFRERZK
AR EHAE BB IEME R ERYIBKA
EIR - BEARIEEAS ZKA - B
MEBRTEEEZAAN  RBFHRATT
MIARETETREEZRA  UARITE
MRS 2 B TAA -

BRERERETIIRE

=B MRS B DundGobi & & = ™|
FEFL 414,087 AHB 2 BT 2 BHIRIERR o 1Y
—ET-RF+-A=1+—8 " ZBFEEL
PR R B A BhRAK A 5 Bl 494,775,000
7 7T % 17,609,000 jt( — & — PO £ :
5,058,000 JT & 18,250,000 JT ) o &
E_T—NE+_A=+—HIEE »
B#) A329,000 L (ZTE—RHF TR
417,000 70 (ZF— R4 : 383,000557T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

26. INVENTORIES 26. FE
2015 2014
—E—h%E b=cgyitfes
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Raw materials and supplies R K} R e om 2,022 1,626
Finished goods D 8,563 10,528
10,585 12,154

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS OF 27. B () BEF &N ITRENE

CONTRACT WORKS
2015 2014
—E-hF —ET—MF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET THET
Costs incurred to date plus HEBRIMEEZ
recognised profits B AR I B W2 288,080 399,874
Less: Progress bilings to date & : &= B ATH Ti2#EE UGk (75,506) (192,699)
212,574 207,175
Analysed for reporting purpose as: Ft# 5 B BT ¢
Amounts due from EREFEHTIEFIA
customers of contract works 218,312 207,175
Amounts due to ERERPEHIIEFIA
customers of contract works (5,738) —
212,574 207,175
216 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED * TFEiZRAERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS OF 27. B () BEF SN ITIERE &)
CONTRACT WORKS (Continued)

Based on the assessment of the Directors, certain BIBZEENTE  &ETENIEEEER
contract works have been suspended or have not yet MAREREHRHEARESEN L -
been compromised with the customers on amount of final It BEEATIRE ZREMBERRD 2 AT
billing, as such the related carrying amounts of contract IR-BEZT—RAF+_A=+—HL
works are not probable to recover. During the year ended FE  BRERKEF,EOIEZIBEKREIE
31 December 2015, loss on uncertainty in respect of W2 TETE I 2 E5184914,025,000/%8 7T (8L
collectability of amounts due from customers of contract EZT—NFFZA=+—HILEFE: 8
works of approximately HK$14,025,000 (year ended 31 56,508,000 7T ) 1Bz NHERR (FIEE9) ©

December 2014: approximately HK$56,508,000) was
recognised in the profit or loss (note 9).

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. EF R EMEWFIE
2015 2014
—g-n% —T-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Trade receivables 2 5 RIEIE
— from third parties — XRBE=H 81,535 96,226
— from a non-controlling — RE —BIEERRR
shareholder 14,636 4,930
96,171 101,156
Less: accumulated impairment loss & : 2&TRIEEE (11,748) (15,946)
84,423 85,210
Amounts due from JE W SEE AR I SR SRR
non-controlling shareholders 3,292 3,184
Amount due from an associate  JEU —FE B & A B FIE 2,489 —
Prepayments and deposits ERRERES 34,178 29,872
124,382 118,266
Other receivables H fib e W IR 52,449 40,235
Less: accumulated impairment loss 75 : 25T RI{EE B (1,662) (1,378)
50,787 38,857
Total trade and other receivables & 5 & H it fE Y R IB 58 175,169 157,123
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERA 217

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continved) 28. B 5 Rk HEWFRIE (&)

The Group did not hold any collateral over the trade and REBWERE S RHEMERFIBERFEE
other receivables. A[E#RY)

The Group has a policy of allowing credit period to its REERTERPEEN  HREEN T
customers, ranging from 90 to 180 days (2014: 90 to 180 90ZE 180K (=ZF—M4F : 90E 180K) °
days). The Group may, on a case by case basis and after N E [ AT i Rl 1) B E NP A4S FT A EFS BB R [
evaluation of the business relationship and creditworthiness, EE%  BETHRAEBEENEERE
extend the credit period of certain government related K BHREZOERBRRERBEER—F
entities and normally over 1 year for its low default risk. LAL -

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of WTARSBEER  HREZAHZ5 |8
allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on invoice B 5 YA (FBRRREE) 2 RER DT ©

date, as at the end of the reporting period.

2015 2014

—E-EHF —F—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FH&TT

Within 90 days 90KXA 25,377 52,492
91 to 180 days 91 E180 KN 12,238 4,984
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K A 18,413 15,578
Over 365 days 365 KA E 28,395 12,156
84,423 85,210

21 8 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) ~ 28.

The aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due

ES R EHMEWFIE %)

EBEIERREZ B S RKKRIAEZ Rk

but not impaired is set out below: o -

2015 2014
—E-1F —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired B <360 2 MR (B 53,348 64,701

Past due but not impaired B EERREE
Within 90 days 90X 13,502 17,526
91 to 365 days 91 £ 365K 11,846 2,857
Over 365 days 365 ALA 5,727 126
84,423 85,210

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired as
at 31 December 2015 and 2014 relate to a wide range of
customers. Based on past experiences, the management
believes that no other impairment allowance is necessary

RZBE-—RAFRZFT—NF+_A=+—
AzE@BBERREZE S EKRZIEE
DR - RIBUARLR  EEER
B BARNEEYETESKEE  HZE

in respect of these balances as there has not been a EREAEL HMBERE - ZFE81D
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still AR AR RS o
considered fully recoverable.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED * FEIZRAERA 219
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continved) 28. B 5 Rk HEWFRIE (&)

The movement in the impairment loss of trade receivables B SR REBEZEENT
is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-hF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 15,946 15,857
Impairment loss recognised on T B ZEWFIERER Z
trade receivables B R 6,973 13,549
Amounts written off as AT [ 8 2 5RIE
uncollectible - (13,359)
Impairment loss reversed (note)  JE{E BB R E (i) (10,462) —
Exchange realignment b 3 5 % (709) (101)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 11,748 15,946
Note: As at 31 December 2015, included in the reversal of impairment Wex: RZE—HF+_-_A=+—8" %
loss, approximately HK$8,028,000 (2014: nil) was offset against 8,028,000/ 8 L (ZZE— M4 : T) & AR
trade and other payables. EEREEILAKIEE 5 R B EFIE -
The movement in the impairment loss of other receivables B TE 2 REREBEEINT
is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-0F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
At 1 January nw—HA—H 1,378 —
Impairment loss recognised PE A R IEER 2
on other receivables B 373 1,378
Exchange realignment bE 5, 5 B (89) —
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,662 1,378
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED * TFEiZRAERA
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —=F

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, included in the impairment loss
of trade and other receivables are individually impaired
trade and other receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$13,410,000 (2014: HK$17,324,000)
which are due to long outstanding.

As at 31 December 2015, amount due from an associate
of approximately HK$2,489,000 (2014: nil) represents
the trade deposit paid to an associate in relation to the
operation of business application and services.

The amounts due from non-controlling shareholders
included in other receivables were unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

28.

fRE M RR M
—AEF A=t —HIFE

BZREMERE

RZZE—AF+ZA=+—H8 iABS
K H A fE W FR I8 2 R B B 18 A E B & B
%H&@ZEM@E%&E@W& RIE R
A £ #4913,410,000/8 T ( — T — M :
17,324,000,%-573)

NI (&)

W-_ZT—-—HEF+-_A=+—8"' 4
2,489,000 (=T —WUF : T) 2K
—HEE AR RIEAERALE SR ERR
RIS —AEBE AR NNE ZIES -

ST AL MUK IR 2 M IR AR R 2 53R
AREER  RERARELER -

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 29. pEHERWRIE
2015 2014
—E-hfF — U4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHEIT
Finance lease receivables R EM SR GRIE 10,786 14,624
Less: accumulated impairment loss & : 25T RIEE R (8,637) —
Total mEt 2,149 14,624

Certain of the Group’s cameras are leased out under
finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB. The
average term of finance leases entered into is one year. The
present value of minimum payments is approximate to its
carrying amount and thus, finance lease receivables are
classified as current assets.

AEEETREEDRERERERS -
FIBHENIRAREE AT ZBE
MEZFAFHA—F - RIEMNRZBRE

HEREERS SR EEERKKIET
DRR/RBEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2 =%

29.

30.

222

PR R AR

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The finance lease receivables are interest-free and secured
over the cameras leased. The finance lease receivables at
the end of the reporting period are neither past due nor
impaired.

As at 31 December 2015, included in the impairment
loss of finance lease receivables are individually impaired
trade and other receivables with balance of approximately
HK$8,637,000 (2014: nil) which are due to long
outstanding.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

The loan receivable was unsecured and carried interest
at the RMB Benchmark Interest Rate per annum quoted
by the People’s Bank of China which was lent to an
independent third party and repayable within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors
have individually assessed and considered that the
recoverability of the loan and interest receivables were
remote. Accordingly, impairment loss of loan receivable of
approximately RMB9,412,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,870,000) and interest receivables of approximately
RMB1,092,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,378,000)
(2015: nil) included in other receivables were recognised in
profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2015, impairment of loan receivables
is individually impaired with balance of approximately
HK$11,235,000 (2014: approximately HK$11,870,000).

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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29.

30.

BMEHERWE

MEHEREFERRERAMBEE Z &
B - R¥RE IR 2 B EHERUGK
TREEAR B B TR E

RIE ()

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—8 st ARE&
T E R GRIE 2 R EEE A E R R E AR
Bl ERER S REMEKFRIE 8L
48,637,000 8L (ZF—HF : F) °

R E K

FEW & SR R AR AR B A RIRTT AR
AEM%E¢W$H§'Eﬁﬁ%*%%
NFE=ZFWER—FREE

RBE_Z—NF+_A=+—HLEHF
B EZ2ERFEHEERE  BREREF
BRKREETK Bt sTAHME
R TE B FE WS R K R LR BB R B S
BH R ARY9412,0007T (HE R L
11,870,000 % 7T) K4 A R % 1,092,000 7T
(FER#1,378,000/87T) (ZE—HF :
) IR ERER o

NR-_EBE—RE+_A=+—0 " BEKEX
ZREAERRE - #8%84)/4 11,235,000
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2015, a one-year term bank deposit
of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$119,370,000) (2014: nil) has been pledged to a bank
to secure an interest-bearing borrowing of an equivalent
amount as disclosed in note 34(a) and is repayable on
demand. The bank deposit carried interest at market rates
at 0.30% per annum and was classified as current assets.

As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits of approximately
HK$3,308,000 (31 December 2014: approximately
HK$3,341,000) in aggregate have been pledged to banks
to secure certain projects in relation to data collection and
processing and will be released upon completion of services
pursuant to the agreement. The pledged bank deposits carried
interest at market rates which ranged from 0.35% to 0.39% (31
December 2014: 0.35% to 3.30%). The pledged deposits are
classified as current asset as these projects will be completed
within one year pursuant to the agreement. The pledged bank
deposits carried interest at market rates which ranged from
0.35% t0 0.39% (2014: 0.35% to 3.30%) per annum.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with maturity within three
months from initial inception. Bank balances carried interest
at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.55% (2014: 0.01%
to 0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2015.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they relate:

31.

32.

EHEARITER

R-ZZE—RAE+_-_A=+—H8 AR¥
100,000,000 7T, ( 18 & 5 119,370,000 /&
L) (ZZE—WF « T) 2 —FHRITER
EHEEF—RBRTUER -ESEERD
FTRRITER - WMIRE 34 AT - ZE
KABRBRER  RITERIETHEHE
0.30% T8 WA B ARDEE °

R-Z—HE+-_A=+—8 &%
3,308,000t (ZE—MWF+=-A=1+—
H : 493,341,000 7T) WIRITIF R 2 HE I
FIRITAERSE TEBENEEREEE -
WIR R R LS RISE R - B
IR 1T 7 F IR ™45 F) £ 0.35% £0.39%
—ZE-ME+-_F=+—H :03%%F
3.30%) it B - EERERINBARD
BE FAZSHBBREBZER—FAT
B o BEEIFRITERIETIBFFIE0.35%
£0.39% (= — P : 0.35% £ 3.30%)
ETE o

RITEBRREE

RITEKRIRSPEAEEFENRER
HEBHE=FEARIBZREERITE
e RITRBE _T—RAF+-_A=1+—
BZMBFEME001%E1.55% B (=
T—P0% : 0.01% £0.35%) °

TIRERIEER 2INERIIEZ 2
SEARTTRESR MRS

2015 2014
— —T—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T T
HKS$ BT 40,005 —
RMB AR 224 20
uss$ ETT 143 37
EURO BT 137 134
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e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

32. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued) 32. |ITHEHKRREE ()

As at 31 December 2015, bank balances and cash of the R—ZZE—AFE+ZA=+—8H" &%
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately MARBFEZE&#HBERR2O8
HK$124,382,000 (31 December 2014: approximately 124,382,000 (=T — W F + = A
HK$84,101,000). RMB is not freely convertible into =+—H : #484,101,000/87T) - AR
currencies. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange TRAIBEAARAEMER - REBEFBEAM
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, B SN B IR R 0 e A5 BB - BB R S BB IR
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the RE - AEBRESRETINEEFHR
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies TRARE LR RINEG o

through banks that are authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. EZ MEHMENKIE
Details of the trade and other payables including the ageing BEESRENZIERROITZE S R EAM
analysis of trade payables based on invoice date are as ERNFIB FIEREBEZAMSENT ¢
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Trade payables aged B SR FIERER
Within 90 days 90X 65,251 70,528
91 to 180 days 91 180k 10,343 11,678
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 24,251 20,804
_ Qve_r 3_65_ da}ys ________ 3 6_55 %Jz/\j _________ 52420 53_,1 _91 ]
152,265 156,201
_Other payables and accruals ~ HMENFUIA Ratie®A 66,204 93,842
218,469 250,043
The credit period granted by suppliers and sub-contractors RZZE—HF+-_A=+—H #HEFK
is normally 90 to 180 days as at 31 December 2015 (2014: DBEEETHNEERBEAIEI1S0KR(Z
90 to 180 days). The Group has financial risk management T—PF 90FE180K) - AEBEIFE T
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled B 75 B B B TR RUR DA R (R P B B 5 BRI R
within the credit timeframe. MEEEERALEE ©
224 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

34. BORROWINGS 3. BE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Current liabilities REEE
Secured bank loan (note a) HIEMIBTER (M3Ea) 119,370 —
Unsecured bank loans (note b)  EIKIRIETER (MiEb) 24,733 58,611
Unsecured other loans HnmE R EmR
(notes ¢ and d) (M5Ec kd) - 61,008
144,103 119,619
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Unsecured other loans HEmmig e (fite)
(note €) - 30,000
Total borrowings BERE 144,103 149,619
Notes: FosE

(@ As at 31 December 2015, a secured bank loan of
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$119,370,000)
(2014: nil) is secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits
with carrying amounts of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$119,370,000) and the loan carried interest at
the RMB Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the People’s Bank

of China (2014: nil) per annum and repayable within one year for

the purpose of general working capital.

@ R-E—RE+-A=+—0 —BAR
% 100,000,000 7T (ABE 747 119,370,000
BL) (ZE—WF - T) 25 EART
BERAAEECMARITERIEEA
BRTE 1B A R %5 100,000,000 7T (FHE R 4
119,370,000 7T) RZEFIZEFE AR
IRITHRZ ARBEERNERNEFR R (=
T—OF T EH S RER—FRE
B AE—REEES -

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA = 225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI MRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

34. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) As at 31 December 2015, the unsecured bank loans carried
interest at variable market rates ranged from 110% to 130%
of the RMB Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the People’s
Bank of China (2014: variable market rates at 120% of the
RMB Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the People’s Bank of
China) and repayable within one year for the purpose of general

working capital.

As at 31 December 2015, certain unsecured bank loans
amounted to approximately HK$24,250,000 (equivalent to
RMB20,315,000) (2014: approximately HK$58,611,000
(equivalent to RMB46,491,000)) were guaranteed and
indemnified by a director of the Company and a subsidiary of

the Group.

(©) As at 31 December 2014, an unsecured loan of HK$5,000,000
(2015: nil) represented borrowing from a subsidiary of a former
substantial shareholder for financing the general working capital
of the Group. Under the loan agreement, up to an aggregate
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 was available for drawings
and ending on the earlier of (i) 31 December 2015; and (i) the
date when the loan had been fully drawn down or cancelled.
The loan carried interest at a fixed rate of 5% per annum with
a repayable on demand clause. The loan has been fully repaid

during the year ended 31 December 2015.

(d) As at 31 December 2014, another unsecured loans of
approximately HK$56,008,000 were borrowings from two
independent third parties not related to the Group. Principal
amount of approximately HK$37,821,000 (equivalent to
RMB30,000,000) was non-interest bearing and approximately
HK$19,919,000 (equivalent to RMB15,800,000) (2015: nil) bore
interest at a variable market rate linked to the RMB Benchmark

Interest Rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China.

226 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F&

4. BE(#)

st (&)

(b)

R-_TE—RAFE+-_HF=+—8 £EH
IRITEFIRFHMHFE » BIEFAEA
RIBITATR2 ARBEEEFEN110% =
130% (ZZ— M RFETHF X -
B R B A REBITATHR 2 A REE AR R
B1120% 5T B) s EFI B R ER —FAE
B BREREEED -

MN-ZE—RE+-_A=+—0 ETE
3 4R 17 B 34 A 24,250,000 7% 7t (48
M AR #20,315,0007C) (—ZF — 1
F : #)558,611,0008 T (FHERARE
46,491,0007T)) * BARF —BEER
REE KB A R EER R REE -

R-EBE-—MNE+—A=+—B &84
5,000,000 8L (ZE—AF : T)AMIK
HEFRE—BAIEEBRR 2 —HHBA
RIZER AASEN—REBEESE
& o RIBER MR - AIRRASBLEE
20,000,000 7L * Ap=mR) = — 5
F+-A=+—8: ()2 EIREFE
HERZH(UREERE)KRIE - BERX
REEEMESRTEAE  WHERE
KEBIER - ZEFERBE_T—1F
T A=t HIFEHRREEE -

R-E-—WE+-A=+—H Z—%&
K3 & 7K 4956,008,000 78 7T 4 K B M &
HAE@EWERE BYE= 2 EE -
N4 H#)37,821,0008 T (FHER AR
30,000,000 L) A% E.f#719,919,0007%5
JC (& R A R#15,800,0007T) (==&
—RF  T)REREARBITEIRZA
R EER R0 2 Z B 5 R E T & F)

=1
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

34. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(dl) (Continued)

The non-interest bearing unsecured loans were subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method with
carrying amount of approximately RMB28,626,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$36,089,000). An imputed interest expense
of approximately RMB1,374,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,707,000) was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (note 10) (2014: approximately
RMB1,632,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,058,000)).
The loans have been fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2015.

(e) As at 31 December 2014, an unsecured loan of HK$30,000,000
represented borrowing from a shareholding company for
financing the general working capital of the Group. The loan
carried interest at a fixed rate of 5% p.a. and has been fully
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had available bank
facilities of approximately RMB370,405,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$442,152,000) (2014: approximately
HK$166,387,000), out of which approximately
RMB246,958,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$294,794,000) (2014: approximately HK$55,551,000)
was not utilised.

4. BE(#)

PR : (48)
@ (&)
R BEEKFEREREHBEERMNEE

REHEKAGE ERRABNARE
28,626,000 7T ( 18 & M #736,089,000 %5
T0) ° [HEF B 4 AR 1,374,000
7T (#BE R #91,707,0008 ) EREE
—E-RFt+-A=+—BIFERE
HER(MFE10) (ZZ—HF: YAR
#1,632,000 7T ( #H & 7 492,058,000 %
TL)) e ZEHRERBEZZE—RF+=A
=t HIFEHRREREE -

e MHRZ—ZE—HNINFE+=_A=+—8"
30,000,000 B EE P E R AR E —H
ERARIZER  AAREEN—REE
BoRAE - BIRFEEFRE5% T EF|
B UWERBE—_T—RFt_A=1—
BIEFEREEE -

R_Z—AF+-_A=+—8 A&£E%
BRI ARITEVE 8958 A R¥ 370,405,000
7T (FRE R4 442,152,000/ 7T) (ZZF—Y
F : 49166,387,0007%7T) * RN ARK
246,958,000 7t (18 & 7 49294,794,000 7
70) (ZZF—MF : 455,551,000/ 7T) I
KENA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 35. AR ERE
2015 2014
—B-hF —ZT-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Convertible Note | (note a) AMRER (Kiita)
Liability component =N 343,467 546,054
Equity component R ER D 139,915 298,856
Derivative component _ tTET A _ - (34,560)
483,382 810,350
Convertible Note Il (note b) AR | (B3t b)
Liability component =N 77,999 116,660
Equity component _ B _ 17,083 50,553
95,082 167,213
Analysed for reporting purpose:  FLHEE B B9 AT ¢
Current portion: MENERD -
Liability component =N - 546,054
Derivative component PTET ARG, - (34,560)
- 511,494
Non-current portion: FETRENEL D
Liability component BEIHMN 421,466 116,660
Equity component _ Ematy _ 156,998 349,409
578,464 977,563
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZBAERAT
228 a
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 17 June 2010 (the “Issue Date 1”), the Company issued a
five-year zero coupon convertible note in principal amount of
HK$954,100,000 (the “Convertible Note I") to acquire 100%
interest in Central Asia Mineral Exploration LLC (“Camex”). The
Convertible Note | was matured on 17 June 2015 (the “Maturity
1), subject to an option of the holder of the Convertible Note
| (“Noteholder I”) to convert the whole or part of the principal
amount of the Convertible Note | into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$1.1 (adjusted from
HK$0.22 per share as a result of the share consolidation on 20
November 2012). The Convertible Note | is non-redeemable
prior to the maturity date. The Company has the right to extend
the maturity date in respect of the outstanding amount of
the Convertible Note | for another five years (the “Derivative
Component”), which has been exercised on Maturity |.

The Convertible Note | was stated at fair value on the Issue
Date | which amounted to approximately HK$948,237,000.
The Convertible Note | contains three components — liability
component, equity component and the Derivative Component.
The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible Note
| was calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate based
on an equivalent market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. The fair value of the equity component and the
Derivative Component were determined based on the valuation
carried out by Asset Appraisals Limited, an independent
professional valuer, by using the Binomial valuation model.

35. AIRRTE (&)

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#Z=RERAR

RZTE—ZFTFAA+ LA %TAH
1) - RRFIEEITARE TS 954,100,000
B AFHTE R B A MR EE ([ T
B Z #1]) LA U B Central Asia Mineral
Exploration LLC ([Camex|) < 100% ##
me A BRBRERIR-_ZE—RFNA
+EHEE(ZHEL]) - ARREERI 2
BEA(EBEFEEAL AIEERIAE
TZRBEE(E-_Z——+—A=-+H
I H A Gt Mt &% 0.22 87T T AT ) 1%
ARBERI 2 RN EE BRI NELIBE
RpaElz L@k o AR EER IR EIEH
RINAIEEE o NN A B TR =R
ZEARBEEZ I BEBERAF(HT
E£TEBH])  AREREEBBIEITE
2R o

ABRERIERTAI 2 AR EIE
G FAA) 5 948,237,000 7T - Al AR ZIE
| BAE = @R B — BESD - s
MERITET RS - IRBRBREIZEE
22 AR ERAREIEATRBRESZ R
EMBHEUNBSRERIRTATE - 1
wED ROTE T A H 2 A BERERE
S EEMEMPRELEETERRERA
AIERA AN EEBERE T ZHEEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

230

Notes:(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The Derivative Component is accounted for as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss under current assets.

On Maturity |, the Company exercised its rights to extend the
maturity date of the Convertible Note | for another five years,
from 17 June 2015 to 17 June 2020, with the outstanding
principal amount of HK$560,580,000 (‘Extended Convertible
Note I”), the then liability component, equity component and
the Derivative Component were derecognised. No other terms
and conditions of the Convertible Note | have been amended.
The Extended Convertible Note | was stated at fair value on the
Maturity | which amounted to approximately HK$463,636,000.
The Extended Convertible Note | contains two components
— liability component and equity component. The fair value of
the liability component of the Extended Convertible Note | was
calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate based on an
equivalent market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The fair value of the liability component and equity
component were determined based on the valuation carried
out by Roma Appraisals, an independent professional valuer, by
using Binomial valuation model.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F&

35. AR EE (&)

st (&)

(@)

(&)

ITET AR IR BEEZ AR ERE
SIEAHEE

REIERE | - ANARIATEEF I TR E
BIZIPEBERAF AT —AF
NAT+HHEERE-_ZE-_ZEF,NA++
H - mARE R RH A S 8 A 560,580,000
B ((RERTREREE])  EHNE
EEbD - RS RATE T A BURRE
R o WEESF] AR ER | 2 B iER &
&1 - LERRAT IR IR AR 1 22
AEFER - £%8 /5% 463,636,00078 T ©
FOEEART IR R | B A M EAR B —
B EFMD Rz o LEHA IR RIE
| 2 BB 2 At B RS FE AT AR
BEHZREMSHERUR S RSN A
FTHE o BEHD RERIH 2 AR ERE
B B ERZE BT ERA B
BERAGET ZAEERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The carrying values of the liability component, the equity
component and the Derivative Component of the Convertible

35. AR EE &)
Mgt : (&)
@ (&)

RER A MBI RIER 2 TR R Z
BEEMD - =B ROTET AR 2K

Note | recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EE!IDT 3
position are as follows:
Liability component Equity component Derivative Component
BERH BaHH FAIESR
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
g-%F “2-RE ~g-%f ZE-mE Z-1f ZE-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThL T ThL ThT Thn ThT
Carrying amounts BafE
At beginning of the year 2] 546,054 518,146 298,856 320578 (34,560) (60,851)
Imputed interest expenses of TRRERIfE
Convertible Note | (rote e (M) 29,671 65,407 - - - -
Conversion of Convertible Note | (note )~ A RTERZE | (M3t (15,145) (37,499) (8.275) 21,729) 1,741 4260
Change in far value recognised RERTRAL
in proft or loss (note ) DrfEgE (W) - - - - (64,125) 22,031
Derecognise of iabilty component, REER 188
equity component and BRMHRITETA
Derivative Component on Maturity | BHTEER (560,580) - (290,581) - 96,044 -
Fair value of Extended Convertile REVEBR 1T S
Note | recagnised on Maturity | THEZE ZM 323,721 - 139,915 - = -
Imputed interest expense of TERTARZE 2
... Eended ComerteNote te ) EEAERR (W) e -. . ... - . .
At end of the year EX 343,467 546,054 139,015 298,856 = (34,560)
Notes: BdsE -

i) The liability component is subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method by applying
an effective interest rate of 12.91% (31 December
2014: 12.91%) per annum. Imputed interest expense of
approximately HK$29,671,000 was recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 (year ended
31 December 2014: approximately HK$65,407,000) (note
10).

() BESMHEEERAERMNR RS
ERKA 2 FTERZEBRFF
RAE129N%(ZE—MNE+ A
=+—H 12.91%) o (A& 5| 25
¥ #929,671,000/8 TE REE =
E-—RF+-A=+—HIFER
BaBR(EE_ZT—NE+_A
=+—HILFE : 465,407,000
7C) (FFFE10) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

232

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

14,512,727 shares (2014: 38,095,909 shares) were
issued upon conversion of the Convertible Note | in total
amount of approximately HK$15,964,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (year ended 31 December
2014: approximately HK$41,906,000). At the time of
conversion, the proportional amounts of the convertible
note equity reserve, the Derivative Component and the
carrying value of the liability component were transferred
to share capital and share premium as proceeds for the
shares issued (note 38(c)).

The Derivative Component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The
Derivative Component is carried as derivative financial
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The fair value of the Derivative Component of the
Convertible Note | was calculated using the Black-
Scholes model with the major inputs as follows:

(&)

35. A[RIREE ()

st (&)

Bt - (4F)

(i)

(i)

HE-_ZTZ—RAF+=-A=+—H
IEFE 14512, 72T R (=
— P9 4F : 38,095,900 B % 17 ) BA 5
A H4915,964,0008 T (HE—
E-ME+-_A=+—HIFE:
#941,906,00078 7T ) 2 A 2 AR 2R &
IRFBE1T - R IRE - ATRBRER
RS PTETASH R AGE
19 2 BR TE (B 2 t 1915 43 2= IR K 2 B
mE - (ERBEBITIRMATERIE
(FzE38(c)) °

PTETARMRAREFE  MA
AREZEHANERER - STET
ABNREAMBARRAKRIIERRCT
EMBEE  BEERBEIBERMA
BEERL -

ABMEERIZOTET AR 2A
R ERBA D -4 @8 E A E
B EEHARBEBOT

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—OF

Stock price A& N/A T 3E F 0.335
Exercise price TEE N/A 38 F 1.100
Expected Volatility TE AR I8 N/A 38 F 52.11%
Risk free rate fE [ fa ) N/A 738 F 0.057%

As the Black-Scholes model requires the input of highly
subjective assumptions, change in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
Further details of the principal terms and conditions
regarding the issue of the Convertible Note | have been
set out in the circular of the Company dated 12 May
2010.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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HRANR-FEMEXNTAAR
BEEH M2 BE - T8 AR
BRZEBH A H AL B-BERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  The liability component is subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest method
by applying an effective rate of 11.59% per annum
(2014 nil). Imputed interest expense of approximately
HK$19,746,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: nil) (note 10).

On 2 August 2013 (the “Issue Date II”), the Company issued
a five-year zero coupon convertible note in principal amount
of HK$1,250,000,000 (the “Convertible Note 11”) comprising
a principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in aggregate which is
subject to adjustment (the “Contingent Consideration”), to
acquire 100% interest in Sinbo. The Convertible Note Il will be
matured on 2 August 2018, subject to an option of the holder
of the Convertible Note Il (“Noteholder II”) to convert the
whole or part of the principal amount of the Convertible Note
Il into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of
HK$0.25 at any time from the issue date up to maturity date.
The Convertible Note Il is non-redeemable prior to the maturity
date.

35. AR EE (&)

Mt (&)

(@)

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#Z=RERAR

(%)
BiE - (&)

(v) BEIDEAFERERRRERES
SHA AR E - FT{E A2 ERFEFIE
A11.59% (ZZF—PO4F : £) o ff
R BRI 419,746,000 T E R
HE_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HIL
FEEPWEREER (T —0F : &)
(F$5E10) »

R_E—=FNA-A(ZTEHN])
ARNE)E #1742 E A 1,250,000,000 74
T2 hFEEEHBRER((TRRE
BI))  8BEARS3E4£80,000,000/5 T
(AT FHAZE) ((RAKRE ] LKEFHEZ
PEER o ZABMBRERIKR=_Z—N
FNAZBEE - ATMBRERIZFBA
((EBEFEAN]) REGETHARSR
FIHA B IEBERS 12 0.2578 T 2 BB Al
BBRZIR 2 A2 BRI H LR AR
NEZERAR - ATRRERINEEE R
A EEE o

288

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

234

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)
The Convertible Note Il comprises of three parts:

— a principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in aggregate
Tranche A Convertible Note Il which is subject to
adjustment;

— a principal amount of HK$870,000,000 in aggregate
Tranche A Convertible Note Il which is not subject to
adjustment;

— a principal amount of HK$300,000,000 in aggregate of
Tranche B Convertible Note Il which is not subject to
adjustment.

The Contingent Consideration would be adjusted in the event
that the audited consolidated net profit after tax of Sinbo Group
attributable to the owners of Sinbo for the nine months ended
31 December 2013 (the “PAT”) was less than HK$80,000,000,
and the consideration shall be adjusted by deducting the sum
equivalent to the shortfall between the PAT and HK$80,000,000
subject to a maximum deduction of the sum of HK$80,000,000.

The Tranche A Convertible Note Il with the principal amount
of HK$870,000,000 in aggregate which was not subject
to adjustment and the Tranche B Convertible Note Il with
the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 in aggregate was
accounted for using split accounting as the corresponding
conversion option can be settled by issuing a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments. They were initially
recognised at fair value on the Issue Date Il amounting to
HK$923,758,000 which comprises a liability component
with fair value on the Issue Date Il of HK$723,889,000 and
an equity component with fair value on the Issue Date Il of
HK$199,869,000. The fair value of the liability component was
calculated by Roma Appraisals using cash flows discounted
at a rate based on an equivalent market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The fair value of the equity
component was determined based on the valuation carried out
by Roma Appraisals by using the option pricing model.

The Convertible Note Il contains three components —
liability component, equity component and the Contingent
Consideration.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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35. AR EE (&)

st (&)

(b)

(%)

AR N B35 = (EAMKER D -

At AT R ZEBIZz A&5EA &L
80,000,00078 7T (Al FHA%) :

— AMLABRBREEBRIzZASHEA L
870,000,000/ 7T (7R A] F LA ¢

— BHtAUBBEERIZAESFEA X
300,000,000/ 7T (7N A] T LAFHEE ) ©

WREBE—_ZE—=F+-_A=1+—H1
NERFEHRE AR EEE KT
ZiREa BB B AR (TRBEEFE]) K
780,000,000/ 7T + B A] F LA 58 £ =%
RRME - BZREBEIRBREL % F)H
80,000,000 T2 ZFEMFHE « ;% 1]
#135 80,000,000 7 7T, ©

AN ERE 2 R E R B R EIT AR A
AFETEHEEZBRATEMmMER  #HA
4584 5 870,000,000 7 7T 2 AL A
REE (A FIARARE) RASESHA
300,000,000 7T 2 Bt AT #2 i Z= 4 11 T5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —=F

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

On 26 March 2014 (“Issue Date III”), the PAT has been met
and the Company issued the Tranche A Convertible Notes Il in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000. They are
initially recognised at fair value on the Issue Date Il amounting
to approximately HK$108,486,000 which comprises liability
and equity component with fair value on the Issue Date
Il of approximately HK$51,149,000 and HK$57,337,000
respectively. On the same date, the Contingent Consideration
was no longer existed and derecognised. The fair value of
the liability component was calculated by Roma Appraisals
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on an equivalent
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond.
The fair value of the equity component was determined based
on the valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals by using the
option pricing model. As at 31 December 2015, the Tranche
A Convertible Note Il with aggregate principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 has been fully converted.

The carrying values of the liability component, the equity
component and the Contingent Consideration of the Convertible
Note Il recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

fRE M RR M
—AEF A=t —HIFE

35. AIRIRER ()
FigE : (48)

(b)

(%)

R-ZE—NWE=A=+~B((ZTHH
) - BREHEFIBEEERRAAREITA
% #2858 /580,000,000 JT 2 A#t AT #2 A%
ER - ZEZHHAREITREBIRA
2 {E%)108,486,000/8 L tER © BIEAE
Lz (RETEHINZ AR ED 5
#751,149,000 87T & 57,337,000/ 7T ) ©
BB @ KAREBRIEERE  TEUSRER -
BEFIMZ AR ERESTHEEARSEIE

%ﬁﬁxﬁ#ﬁZH TR ZRAR S RERL
WA E - RSN Z AL ERBEHRRE
&ﬁﬁﬂmﬁl HErEENETZHEE
F -R-_ZE—AFE+-A=+—0 &%
48 %8 /80,000,000 7% 7T 2 A A #2 j% 2=
B IERE IR -

REFEMBRRARER 2 TRRERIZ
BEED - EEBOEIAREZREE
LI

Liability component Equity component Contingent Consideration
BEHH R ARRE
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
~g-If “EpE ZZ-1f I ks ~%-1f “ZIE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Thn ThL Thn ThL Thn ThL
Carrying amounts HEfE
At beginning of the year ) 116,660 194,420 50,553 51,591 - 109,773
Addtion at Issue Date I RETBBIERE - 51,149 - 57,337 - (108,486)
Imputed interest expenses (note ) [EH SR (h3E) 8,532 15,745 - - - -
Conversion of Convertible HATARZE
Note Il (note i) (Bizki) (47,193) (144,654) (33470) (58,375 = -
Change infair value recognised S EﬁuﬁFﬁ%w@Z
in proft or loss (note i) DrBEE (M) - - - - - (1,287)
Atend of the year X 77,999 116,660 17,083 50,563 - -

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA =

285

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

236

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

The liability component is subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method by applying
an effective interest rate of 9.35% to 10.07% (2014: 9.35%
to 10.07%) per annum. An imputed interest expense of
approximately HK$8,532,000 was recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 (year ended
31 December 2014: approximately HK$15,745,000) (note
10).

264,000,000 shares (year ended 31 December 2014:
864,011,360 shares) were issued upon conversion of
the Convertible Note Il in total amount of approximately
HK$66,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2015 (year ended 31 December 2014: approximately
HK$216,003,000). At the time of conversion, the
proportional amounts of the convertible note equity
reserve, the equity component and the carrying value of
the liability component were transferred to share capital
and share premium as proceeds for the shares issued
(note 38 (d)).

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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35. A[RIREE ()

Bt : (48)
() (&)
BisE

M

(i)

BEISMDEAFERERR R AR
HKARFTE  FTERZERER
R £9.35%F10.07%( ==& — MM
F:935%E10.07%) ° HEF 8
i #18,532,000/ 8 TEREE—
E-—RF+-_A=+—HIFER
BHEBR(BE-_ZT-—NE+- A
=+—HIFE : 415,745,000
70) (MisE10) °

HE_ZT—AF+=-_A=+—H¢H
1F 4 & » 264,000,000 & A% 17 ( &
E-ET-FE+-_A=1+—HItF
[€ : 864,011,360 A% % 19 ) 1 3
4 £ #4966,000,0008 T(HE-F
—NE+—A=+—HLFE: 4
216,008,000/ 7t ) 2 A] #2 j% = &
IIBF 21T o A K - FIIRIREIR
EmfEE - EmIn RadEBn
BREEZLL ISR E R A KRG 5
& {ERE BTG ATSE (K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 35. A[RIRERE &)
Notes: (Continued) MisE - (&)
(o)  (Continued) ) (&)
Notes: (Continued) BisE : (&)
(i)  The Contingent Consideration is measured at fair value @iy SAREBRAREFE X MARE
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. ZBERINIERER o HARER
The Contingent Consideration is carried as a derivative FEPBRARINERRITENTEE
financial liability in the consolidated statement of financial & EEASLAI IR EIRIERETT o

position until the Tranche A Convertible Note Il is issued.

The fair value of the Contingent Consideration of the AMBRERIZAREZ A EBERAZE
Convertible Note Il was calculated using the Binomial NAEELTE  FEHASEBNT :

valuation model with the major inputs as follows:

31 December
2013
Issue Date Il —E—=%  |ssue Datell

BRI +—A=1+—H HITHHEN

Stock price (& 0.275 0.290 0.315

Exercise price 1IfP(E 0.250 0.250 0.250

Volatility R 65.869% 60.723% 62.544%

Risk free rate 1\ e N R 1.490% 1.241% 1.251%
As the Binomial valuation model requires the input of MR ZEAGEREERASEEE L2
highly subjective assumptions, change in subjective input Re& - EEMWABBREZEHAIHA
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate. AEMFTEBKERNTE - BREITABRR
Further details of the principal terms and conditions ERINZFERRARGH 2 E—FF1FH
regarding the issue of the Convertible Note Il have been set RARBIABAZZT—=FH=+tH
out in the circular of the Company dated 27 June 2013. 3B o

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED % FEIZRAERA 237
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36. DEFERRED INCOME 36. IEEUWA
2015 2014
—B-HF —ZT-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Balance at beginning EH) 2 45ER
of the year 4,934 7,014
Deferred income utilised FAEEBAZ
during the year (note 8(i)) B A (HIFE8()) - (1,261)
Exchange realignment [ AR (276) (819)
Balance at end of year RERZ AR 4,658 4,934
A subsidiary in Mongolia received subsidies from the SHEMN—HNBARERHBEBERT
government of Mongolia for financing the establishment of —EREPe UREERREEMHER
a processing plant for smokeless fuel product. Since the MIFRHEES - BRINITHRERIZEK
investment cost for constructing the processing plant as R X AB BT i B & 2B BRI 7
well as the related government subsidies are still subject to It EWEINHEBSRIERB B ERRA
negotiation with the government, the received subsidies are RIEWA o
recognised as deferred income in non-current liabilities.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, approximately REBEEZZ—NOF+_A=1+—HILF
HK$1,261,000 (2015: nil) of deferred income were released € MABEIEEER R PTER ZRER AL
upon the fulfilment of the related conditions. 71,261,000 8T (ZF—HF : &) -

238 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION 37. IEEFIE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for T RIBEERIBERRYEELETZD
financial information purposes: T
2015 2014
—E—FF —E—O4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Deferred tax assets BEFIREE 137 145
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE (60,212) (70,247)
Balance at end of year RER &% (60,075) (70,102)
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERA 239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

37. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 37. IEEBIIE (&)
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised in the REMBARRITER ZELERIE(EE)
consolidated statement of financial position and their BEERERTNEERBEFEE 2EEWN
movements during the current and prior years are as Nk
follows:
Fair value
adjustments
on exploration
and evaluation Fair value
assets and adjustment
mining arising from
licences acquisition of
BRR subsidiaries
HEBENR  Unrealised WEKEBAR
FiRiER profits [ Others Total
MEEE  RERUE  AAEER HAf ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL TR T TAL

At1 January 2014 W=E-mE-f 37,114 (348) 78,140 (3662 111,244
Eliminated through disposal of BRHE-HNEL Tﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

a subsidiary (note 41) (K 41) - - - 135 135
Charged (credited) to profit or loss ~ PMEZEHRR (T A) (33,257) 348 (7,203) 3,708 (36,404)
Exchange realignment e (3,857) - (690) (326) 4,873)
At 31 December 2014 and RZEZ-METZA=t-HR

1 January 2015 “Z-hF-A-H - - 70,247 (145) 70,102
Credited to profit or loss RERETA - - (10,331) - (10,331)
Exchange realignment AR - - 296 8 304
At 31 December 2015 R=B-EF+-A=t+-H - - 60,212 (137) 60,075

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZBAERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

In respect of tax losses arising in Mongolia of approximately
HK$23,872,000 (2014: approximately HK$23,872,000),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets due
to unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
arising in Mongolia is subject to the agreement of the
local tax authority and shall be carried forward according
to the relevant provisions of Corporate Income Tax Law
of Mongolia under which the tax statement losses of
Infrastructure and Mining companies shall be deductible
from taxable income of subsequent four to eight years
since the loss incurred. The loss carry-forward period
of a particular mining entity shall be determined by the
Mongolian government after taking into consideration the
investment made by the entity in its mining operation.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets for tax loss arising in PRC of
approximately HK$31,646,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB26,511,000) (2014: approximately HK$10,424,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,269,000)) that will expire
after five years from the year of assessment to which they
relate to.

37. IEERIE (&)

FRF B E A 2 BB E 1849 23,872,000
BT (ZZ— 4 : 923,872,000 7T) M
T BRKREEBAIRIENRE - MAS
B ERREEHIBEEE - NEaBmE
EZHEBBEFE RS ERTE RE
BES O R EMEHAEBRIE A -
ERRBEARZHEBBREAIEERE
HERIMENFRZERTUWARIR © &
TRETR BEAEHEAS HBEBA
KRERZEBNHBEEEBPIEZRE
BEE o

RZZE—HFE+=-_A=+—8 AEEL
BRELEETRBRES@ENHFERLR
B4 5 1% 2 HA A9 #5718 E5 18 40 31,646,000 7%
T(HEERH AR 26,511,0007T) (=F
— U4 : #710,424,00078 T (FBE R A
R % 8,269,0007T) ) RELERIBEE -

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#Z=RERAR
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37.

242

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$44,043,000 (2014: HK$36,153,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$44,043,000 (2014: HK$36,153,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$63,302,000 as at 31 December 2015
(2014: approximately HK$78,569,000), as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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37.

ERERIE (&)

RN_ZE—RAE+-_A=+—08 AEEZ
RE)BHIEE B 5 444,043,000 7T (=
T — P4 : 36,153,00058 7T) * A AR
AR AOEF) o AR R F 2 7] T8 8
M I L4 44,043,000 T (=T —
% : 36,153,000/ 70 ) ERELERI B E EE ©
ZEMIBBEERRALE -

BEFHCEMERE 2T N\F—
A—Ri#e - gt BB A s BRELZ & F AT
Tk 2R BEBRIBING - AR AEEEE
PGSR R o BERRE - &R
HEMBRENBEEATENBARR-E
—HFE+ A=+ Bz R HFESE
B Z %849 63,302,000 8L (ZF— W& :
#778,569,0007% 7T ) sTIRIEEFi H & & -
i B 2= R A RE N2 fE A 7B R R AR B
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. R4
Number of
Par value ordinary shares Total
HE ZBEREE k]
HK$ HK$’000
BT T
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NF—HF—H 0.25 10,000,000,000 2,500,000
Increase in authorised EInAE A (BT ()
. sharecapital(otele) 025 20000000000 5,000,000
At 31 December 2014 AR-E—E
and 31 December 2015 +=A=+—H
kR-—ZE—-51F
+=A=+—H 0.25 30,000,000,000 7,500,000
Issued and fully paid BEITRAZ
1 January 2014 —E—NFE—A—H 0.25 5,782,301,095 1,445,575
Exercise of share options (note a)  17{FBERAE (Kizta) 0.25 22,200,000 5,550
Conversion of Convertible Note |~ H AT HRR Z & |
(note b) (MI3ED) 0.25 38,095,909 9,524
Conversion of Convertible Note Il IR AT A= |
Lnoted) (PMFEC) 025 ....864011360 ... . 216,003
At 31 December 2014 NZE—E
+=—A=+—H 0.25 6,706,608,364 1,676,652
Exercise of share options (note a)  1T{EBEAHE (Fizta) 0.25 221,660,000 55,415
Conversion of Convertible Note | I AT AR Z 1 |
(note b) (Mt7EDb) 0.25 14,512,727 3,628
Conversion of Convertible Note Il HAAR[HAARZ i ||
(note ¢) (HiEc) 0.25 264,000,000 66,000
Shares issued under placing RIBBCE 1T 2R D
Lodnoted) (PHEED) 025 ......950,000,000 . .. . 237,500
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—H1%F
+=B=+—H 0.25 8,156,781,091 2,039,195

All of the shares issued by the Company rank pari passu in
all respects with other shares in issue.

ARRBEMERTRNOEMB I EEEA
ERITRNDZEBRFHAL -

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA = 243
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

244

Notes:

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 8,860,000 and
212,800,000 share options (2014: 22,200,000 share options)
had been exercised by holders at HK$0.25 and HK$0.26
(2014: HK$0.25) each for the issuance of shares. As a result
of the exercise of share options, cash and cash equivalent,
share capital and share premium have been increased
by HK$57,543,000, HK$55,415,000 and approximately
HK$15,904,000 respectively (2014: HK$5,550,000,
HK$5,550,000 and approximately HK$1,009,000 respectively)
and share options reserve has been decreased by approximately
HK$13,776,000 (2014: approximately HK$1,009,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Noteholder |
converted Convertible Note | in aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$15,964,000 (2014: approximately
HK$41,906,000) at the conversion price of HK$1.1 per share
whereby a respective total number of 14,512,727 (2014:
38,095,909) conversion shares were issued. As a result of the
conversion, share capital and share premium of the Company
have been increased by approximately HK$3,628,000 and
HK$18,051,000 respectively (2014: increased by approximately
HK$9,524,000 and HK$45,437,000 respectively) and the
aggregate of which represents proportional amounts of the
equity component, the Derivative Component and the liability
component at the time of conversion.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Noteholder |l
converted Convertible Note Il in aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$66,000,000 (2014: approximately
HK$216,003,000) at the conversion price of HK$0.25 per
share whereby a respective total number of 264,000,000
(2014: 864,011,360) conversion shares were issued. As a
result of the conversion, share capital of the Company has
been increased by approximately HK$66,000,000 and share
premium of the Company has been increased by approximately
HK$14,663,000 respectively (2014: increased by approximately
HK$216,003,000 and share premium of the Company has been
decreased by approximately HK$12,974,000 respectively) and
the aggregate of which represents proportional amounts of the
equity component and the liability component at the time of
conversion.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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38. A (&)
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(@)

REBEZE=ZZE—AF+=-A=+—HLHF
B A ABRER0.25ETKX0.26/E7T
(ZZ— P04 : 0.25/8 7T ) 171 8,860,000
3 1% 212,800,000 17 iE A% #E (= F — U4 :
22,200,000 {7 R AR 4 ) LAKEZE1TAR (D - B
RITERERE  BekBEeSED - K
RN KB % B B 5 Bl 3 51 57,543,000 78
7T * 55,415,000 JT K& 47 15,904,000 7
T(ZZ—M4E : 555,550,000 7T
5,550,000 7T & 49 1,009,00078 7T ) *
BRI S BB 49 18,776,000 8 7T (=
T[4 : #1,009,000787T) °

RBE-_T—RF+-_A=1+—HLHF
B ZEFBARSRIABTZHIR
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BT & 45,437,000 70 ) « EABEE A H R
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HRkaEBH 2z -

REE-E—AF+-A=+—HILHF
B ZEEFEANERESR0.25B T2 Hi
B 7 A H RS 54966,000,00078 7T (=
T —PO4E : 49216,003,00078 7T ) 2 Al
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7 ARBRLIE - ARBIIRAIE INL
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

On 21 April 2015, the Company completed a placing of
950,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$0.33 per
share. Proceeds generated from the placing amounted to
HK$313,500,000 (before share issue expenses of approximately
HK$5,723,000). The net proceeds of approximately
HK$30,777,000 were intended to be utilised as general working
capital of the Group. As a result of the placing, share capital and
share premium have been increased by HK$237,500,000 and
HK$70,277,000 respectively.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 14 January 2014,
it is resolved that the increase of authorised share capital of
the Company from 2,500,000,000 ordinary shares divided
into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each to
HK$7,500,000,000 divided into 30,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.25 each by the creation of an additional 20,000,000,000
new shares.

38. A (&)

Mt (&)

(d)

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#Z=RERAR

RZE—RAFHA=-+—H » KAFITK
1% & 1% 0.33% 7T A & 950,000,000 fi% 48
REFRG - BBEBHEL ZFSRE
/313,500,000 78 7T ( AR 1Bk B% 15 347 5
¥ #95,723,000/8 7T ) © FR{S B FREA
30,777,000 8 Lt REAR S B — R & &
B o AL ESRA MG =ED B N
237,500,000 7T % 70,277,000 BT °

BER-ZE—MF-—A+UEBRBZ
BFRAARZE - ERFERBIERBEIN
20,000,000,000 & # B 7 - 4§ A 2 &l /&
TE R% AN B 2,500,000,000 f% & @ ik 5 A
fi% /1 {& 0.25 7 JT 2 10,000,000,000 &
JBA% AN = 7,500,000,000 8 05 A F A
ME{E0.257 71,2 30,000,000,000 8% J& 17 °
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39.

246

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution of all the
then shareholders passed on 25 February 2006. The
purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the business development of the
Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include (i) the
Company’s executive, non-executive or independent non-
executive directors or a director of an entity in which the
Group holds an interest (the “Affiliate”); (i) other employee
or officer of the Group or any Affiliate; (i) customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder of or
contractor to the Group or any Affiliate; (iv) the trustee of
any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary trust
the discretionary objects of which include persons under
(i), (i) and (iii); and (v) a company beneficially owned by any
persons under (i), (i) and (iii). The principal terms of the
Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1)  Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the grant.

(2) The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Scheme shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (i) the
closing price of each share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to the eligible participant, which must be a day on
which licensed banks are open for business in Hong
Kong and the Stock Exchange is open for business
for dealing in securities (“Trading Day”); and (i) the
average closing price of each share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
consecutive Trading Days immediately preceding the
date of offer to the eligible participant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

39. LR AER 2 IRRZ &)

(Continued)

(3) An option may be exercised in accordance with the Q) BERREABEBZATE G - REER
terms of the Scheme at any time during the period RS AL E R L & BT
which shall not be more than 10 years from the W10F 2 BRI NBERF 1T - B AR
business day on which the option is deemed to have EITEBRIERN NAFA 2 &ER
been granted. There is no minimum period for which R
an option must be held before it can be exercised.

(4)  An option will lapse on expiry of the exercise period @) RERETEEER - KEBLY - =%
of the option, on cessation of employment, or on AEB SN EMEBARERE - (e
cessation to be customer, supplier, agent, partner, e REEBA BHRAEF-
consultant, adviser or shareholder of or contractor to IRER Sk ARCE P 2 BRR AR LE RS - B AR
the Group or any Affiliate. HFRRR o

(5)  The maximum number of the Company’s shares 6) AREMRIEZET B A R A EAL

which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other scheme
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange. The Scheme mandate limit may
be refreshed by the shareholders in general meeting
from time to time provided always that the Scheme
mandate limit so refreshed must not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of such refreshment by the shareholders in
general meeting.

AR 2 Fr B B R T (R )
TEITz&RSRNEE & X FEB
ARRIBD KB EHE B ARA]
BEEITIAZ 10% ° BERAI IR AR
RAE L E#zat 8R4 LR - 1R
Bzt RE LRI GBIBRR
RERAE LHEZHEEHERAZE
BTN A2 10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

248

)

(Continued)

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme,
the maximum number of the Company’s shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. Unless approved
by the shareholders, the maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to any eligible participants (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time.

As of 31 December 2015, the total number of
shares of the Company available for issue under the
share option scheme is 569,584,327 representing
approximately 6.98% of the issued share capital of the
Company as of the date of this report.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on the date of adoption of the
Scheme, i.e. 25 February 2006.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3R

39. URPABERZ2ARKRZ (@)

)

(&)

EAREZ SR E MRS Z IR
T ARBMREZA 8 R AN R REAA
HAipst &I B ERE M RITER 2B
PRI TR A TREIT 2R ERSH
B &HANMSBEETKREBITRNAE
.2 30% ° FRIEEVISROER#LE - BRI
REM12{E A RBEAR T ERNEE
weEEZBREBRDTE B2
AL 3H MR RTT 2 2 RE R ) JE T T B
BIORBTRITZBRODERSHE TG
BN BT BRI 1% -

W-ZE—RE+-A=+—0 B
BB AERT BI AT B TR AR D B D 488K
569,584,327 A% + (5 AR &),
EARIRE A EITIRA46.98% ©

FE BB R BRI (=2
ANEZA=TRR) BT E RN
R -

BRREY T TR A ARBURE KR
BRERA SR ENRER -



39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

Details of specific categories of options granted under the

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —=F

39. URDB/ER ZARRS

—AFFA=+—HIFE

(&)

R B h 2 BB g 2 R e B Rl 1B

Scheme are as follows: s
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price Fair value at grant date
RtA% BEH & 1% RELBHZAAE
Before After Before Atter
adjustment  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment
L3 Bk L) EEL
(note)
(&)
25 August 2009 N/A 25 August 2009 o 31 August 2012 HKS0.385  HK$1.925  HK$0.144  HKS0.72
ZEENE el ZEENENAZTRA 03858  1925%T 0BT 072%T
NAZt1A EE-ZEN\A=1-H
25 Qctober 2010 25 Qctober 201010 24 Apri 2011 25 Apnl 20 to 24 October 2020 HKS0A71  HK$0.8%5  HKB0.059  HK$0.295
5% “Z-FFTACTRA “F——4NA-THA AT 08%58T  0059%TL 020671
tA-t%R E-E-—EMAZTIA E-E-EETACTRA
25 Oc tober 2010 to 24 October 2011 25 Qctober 2011 to 24 October 2020 HKSO.171  HKS0.855  HKS0.066  HK$0.328
ZE-EFTACTHRA “E——FtACThA 071 0855%T 00667  0.328%7
E-5-—ETA-1RA E-5-TETACTRA
25 Qctober 2010 to 24 April 2012 25 April 2012 t0 24 October 2020 HKSO.171 HK$0.855  HKS0.0T1  HK$0.356
“2-ZETACTIA “5-ZENAZTHA AT 085%58T  00T1AT  0.356%T
EE-ZFMAZTNA EZ-FETAZTRA
25 October 2010 to 24 October 2012 25 Oc ober 2012 to 24 October 2020 HKS0.171 HK$0.855  HKS0.076  HKS0.381
ZE-FFTACTRA ZE-CETAZTRR AL 085%58T 0076 0.381#T
E-5-“ETAZTRA ECSCFETACTRA
25 October 201010 24 Apri 2013 25 April 2013 to 24 QOctober 2020 HKS0471  HK$0.8%5  HKB0.081  HKS0.403
“Z-FFTACTRA ZE-=ENA-THA 1B 08558 0081 040337
E-5-#MAZ1RA E-SCEETACTRA
25 October 2010 to 24 October 2013 25 Oc tober 2013 to 24 October 2020 HKSO.171  HKS0.855  HKS0.085  HK$0.424
“T-FFTACTEA e S il OITIATL  0856T  0085%T  044ET
EZ5-=ETA-TRA EZ5TETACTRA
9 Oc tober 2012 N/A 9 Oo tober 2012 to 8 October 2022 HKS0.05  HK$0.25  HK$0.009  HK$0.045
ZE-ZETANR TEA “E-CETANRE 005 02581  0009%T  004ET
“RCCETANA
9 Oc ober 2012 to 1 April 2013 2 Apn\ 201310 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HKS0.25  HK$0.009  HK$0.045
“Z-CETANA S--FMmACH 005 02581  0009%TL  0O045%T
I_é*—ﬁwﬂ A E_Z::Erﬂ/\ﬁ
9 October 2012 to 1 October 2013 2 October 2013 to 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HK$0.25  HK$0.009  HKS$0.046
ZE-ZFTR HH “2-=E+AZH 0051  025%7T 000987 004637
E-E--H51A-H E-ECCEHANR
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

250

(Continued)

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period

g

A BEE 1M

39. LR AERZARKRZ (&)

Exercise price Fair value at grant date

1 MRA B2 AAE

Before After Before After

adjustment adjustment  adjustment  adjustment

(note)

(hit)

2S5

A

eptember 2014 N/A 26 September 2014 to 31 December 2017
“5-IF NER ZE-WENAZTARE

AZ17H “EE+-AZ+-H

26 September 2014 to 26 March 2015 27 March 2015 to 31 December 2017

“E-MEAAZtRAZE “B-REZA-ttRE
“E-15=f-tH “E+E+-A=+-H

26 September 2014 to 26 September 2015 27 September 2015 to 31 December 2017

“E-MENAZTABEE “E-RFNAZtHLHEE
“E-RENACTAA ZE-tETZA=TA

NA  HK$0.26 NA  Directors:
TER  026%T NER E%:
HKS0.072

007287

Employees:

[E&:

HKS0.061

0.061 T

NA  HKS0.26 NA  Directors:
NER 0267 FER g%
HKS0.078

0.0785 T

Employees:

8-

HKS0.070

0.070%T

NA  HK$0.26 NA  Dirctors:
NER 0267 NER EER
HK$0.082

0.082T

Employees:

€5

HKS0.076

0.076 &7

Note:

Upon the share consolidation becoming effective on
20 November 2012, the exercise price of share options has
been adjusted. Details of the adjustment of share options have
been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
9 October 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 39. UK AER ZNRXE &)
(Continued)

Movements of the share options and their ERESFREMELSTEE
weighted average exercise price

Number of share options

BREHA
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2015 2015
Grantees Options grant date R-Z-51F Exercised R-ZE-5HF
ARA BRERERS —A—H 217 +=A=t+-H
’000 000 ’000
TR TR TR
Directors 25 October 2010 36,700 - 36,700
B I i I il=
9 October 2012 18,380 (4,300) 14,080
—“T-_F1TANR
26 September 2014 325,000 - 325,000
e T A R R e
..., 080,080 (43000 375,780
Employees 25 October 2010 8,000 - 8,000
EE —E-TF+AZTHA
9 October 2012 1,400 (960) 440
—Z-ZFTANA
26 September 2014 266,000 (212,800) 53,200
............................................... T o e
e 275800 (213,760) ... 61,640
Suppliers of services or goods 25 QOctober 2010 13,000 - 13,000
MRS E m it e —T-TF+AZTAA
9 October 2012 3,600 (3,600) -
............................................ R T A e
et einersrssssssnsrssssessnsnnnnnse. [N 16,600  ......3600) .. 13,000
Total 672,080 (221,660) 450,420
a5
Exercisable at the end of year 332,220
ERAATE

Weighted average exercise price
(HK$ per share) 0.31 0.26 0.34
PIET 917668 (BT 1R)

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA = 251
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  39.
(Continued)

252

Movements of the share options and their
weighted average exercise price (Continued)

URGBAEBRZARRS &)

BRESBKEMEFITEERE @)

Number of share options
BlEA
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2014 2014
Grantees Options grant date RZE—E Granted Exercised RZE—MF
BN ERIEREEH ~A-H BB B +A=t-A
‘000 '000 ‘000 '000
T T T T
Directors 25 October 2010 36,700 - — 36,700
B —Z-TFTAZTIR
9 October 2012 36,860 - (18,480) 18,380
“T-_%TANA
26 September 2014 - 325,000 - 325,000
...................................... T R e
OO =< O 500 ... (18480 ... 330080__
Employees 25 October 2010 8,000 — — 8,000
E& “Z-TFE+AZT+hA
9 October 2012 5,120 - (3,720) 1,400
“Z-ZF5tANA
26 September 2014 - 266,000 - 266,000
...................................... R R R
ettt ettt ettt ettt et er et et et et et et et et et et et eretenns 18120 .. 266000 ... 8720 ... 25400
Suppliers of services or goods 25 October 2010 13,000 - - 13,000
B EMALER “ET-TFTAZTAA
9 October 2012 3,600 - - 3,600
...................................... R A
ettt ettt ettt ettt et st ettt et et et et et et et eretenns 16600 ... T, T, 16,600
Total 103,280 591,000 (22,200) 672,080
g3
Exercisable at the end of year 435,680
ERATHR
Weighted average exercise price
(HKS per share) 0.59 0.26 0.25 0.31
IETHTEE
(Ex/])

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

591,000,000 share options were granted during the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2015: nil).

In respect of the share options exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2015, the weighted average share
price at the date of exercise was HK$0.62 (2014: HK$0.32).

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2015 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.52 (2014:
3.41) years.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no unvested
share options granted to employees (2014: nil) were
forfeited.

The fair value of the share options granted to the Directors,
employees and sub-contractors was determined based on
the fair value of the equity instruments measured on the
date of grant. Share options granted to the sub-contractors
are an incentive to them for their continuing contribution to
the Group for providing services similar to those rendered
by its employees. The fair value of the share options
granted to the consultants and suppliers was determined
based on the fair value of the share options granted.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, options were
granted on 26 September 2014. The estimated fair values
of the options granted on that date are approximately
HK$41,999,000 (2015: nil).

39. URPAER AR (&)

BE_T-NF+_-_A=+—HLFEE

?ﬁﬁmomomﬁ%k%(-ﬁ AF :
=)o

BREBEZE-_T—RAFT-_A=t+—ALHF
Ffﬂ%ﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁﬁa - RATTIE B B
FHRREA0.62F T (=ZF— M4 : 0.32
BT °

R-E—RE+-_RA=+—BHKRTHEE
AEAERY INAE 1988 N A W FHIA2.52F (=
T—JO4F : 3414)

REBE_FT-—AFT-_A=+t—HBLF
53 ‘Eﬂﬁ&?"ﬁé\ziﬁm%,ﬁﬁﬂx%(:;
—POE - ) HORM

RYE= - EERD Fjﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬂiéﬁﬁt
TRERNRE A ECRETARARE
MEE ° fﬂﬁ@ﬁ&ﬂjzﬁﬁﬂxﬂémﬁﬁﬁb
mERASE -—BEREREEBRERE
BEZRBPIIEL ZER - B TERRH
FEm 2 IR R A ETIIRIB P IX H BB A i
ZRAREMERE °

REBEEZZT—WOF+_A=+—HLEF
E ! ,ﬂﬁHXﬁé)—ﬁ <f§—ﬂiﬂﬁl ‘f‘/\El
B o R AKEBRENGSAAERD
41,999,000 8 L (ZF—HF : T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z—-F—AF+=-H=+—

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  39.

(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted were calculated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model or Binomial

HIFFZE

URGBAEBRZARRS &)

EEEZBEREAABERREBI -8
Hﬁﬁﬂf”*f’fﬁﬁﬂzﬁ_lﬁﬁﬂﬂf”W‘"‘EET

option pricing model. Details of the inputs to the model are HEITFE - RANBABIR 2 FEH I 0
as follows: N

Inputs into the model B A =i

25 August 25 October 9 October 26 September

2009 2010 2012 2014

—EERE —=2F —E-—fF —E-lmF

NA=+&EH +A=+EHH +AhB HhA=t+<H

Exercise price 1TE(E HK$0.385 HK$0.171 HK$0.05 HK$0.26

0.385787T 0.171787T 0.0577T 0.26 787

Expected volatility TEHRR I8 87.04%-102% 57.78% 51.22% 53.74%

Expected life TEHAHAMR 0.5-2years 4.8-7.2vyears 7.5-7.6 years 3.3 years

05FE2F  48FE72%F 75E76F 3.3%F

Expected dividend yield EHHHR Sk 0% 0% 0% 0%

Risk-free rate 3G | pe 0.16%-0.522% 2.0970% 0.7510% 0.9507%

254

Expected volatility is determined by reference to the
historical volatility of weekly return for companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

Risk-free interest rate represents the yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with respective terms to
maturity as at the valuation date.

The Group recognised the total expenses of approximately
HK$8,761,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 (year
ended 31 December 2014: approximately HK$31,024,000)
in relation to share options granted by the Company.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ—F—AF+—A=+—HIFZ

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 39. UK AER ZNRXE &)

(Continued)

BN ARE (2)

—ER A E B AR 2 A M ¢
PR ERIRER A E2 88 RBR T
%%zF&@ﬁﬁgmo%k%ﬁﬁﬁl
AT EBBROEZETAMAR -

Inputs into the model (Continued)

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions use in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on
the Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

40. RESERVES 40. 1B
(@ Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, @ WBERSHEEMNF2ERRE
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, (= NAR—FFBIFREN - KEER
the funds in the share premium of the Company are 1B3]) » XARRMDRE 2 &2 Al
distributable to the shareholders of the Company DIRTARFIRE - EEEREZE DK
provided that immediately following the date on fREBHEIR - AARIERRNEER

which a dividend is proposed to be distributed, the KRB EEBBAEZEREIHAZER -
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group
taken place before the listing of Company on the
Stock Exchange.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#Z=RERAR

(b) KEIZ/*\1%E%1%TE$E?F$EIEAK
NEERE R FT_ E T RTETT 2 BAETIK
BB AR ZBRAEERESNAR
BIBRITAMER B BAE(EZ Z8 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2 =%

40. RESERVES (Continued)

256

(©)

Contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the costs of investment in
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange
pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group taken
place before the listing of Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share
options granted.

Capital redemption reserve represents the transfer
from retained profits of the amount equivalent to the
par value of the shares repurchased.

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, entities
established and operated in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting
prior year losses) as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
equity owners.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. HEKBE AT

On 30 December 2014, the Group has disposed of its entire
equity interest of 41.39% in |8 IF oA ZE & BT B BR A 7]
(Shandong Zhengyuan Aviation Remote Sensing Technology
Limited*) (“Shandong Zhengyuan”) to [ETHIIEE 2 AR S
f£/2 7] (China Zhengyuan Geomatics Co., Ltd*), a substantial
shareholder of Shandong Zhengyuan, at a consideration of

R-ZE—NE+_A=+H A£BEEH
EHRILURETMEERFEITER QA
(TWERIET |)41.39% 2 2 ZEALHE F LU R
FrzIBRFETHIBEEAEREEA
A RELHAEARK12,174,0007T (B E
M #915,347,00087T) ° ILRIETRA LS

approximately RMB12,174,000 (equivalent to approximately AHC EEFENAT ¢
HK$15,347,000). The net assets of Shandong Zhengyuan at
the date of disposal were as follows:
Consideration received: 2R E :
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration received BUIREKRE 15,347
Analysis of the assets and liabilities EELREHECEE
over which control was lost: FEBEIW
Property, plant and equipment M - B MR 7,282
Intangible assets BVEE. 5,410
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE = 135
Inventories FE 83
Trade and other receivables B 5N E A EUW TR 28,980
Bank balances and cash IRTTHESR IR 6,586
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E At TR (13,434)
Borrowings BE (6,304)
JTaxpayables BB e, (675).
Net assets disposed of EHECEERE 28,063
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BERBEARZE !

Consideration received ElHKE 15,347
Net assets disposed of EHECEERE (28,063)
..Non-controlling interests ... JEEBRE 14878
Gain on disposal e 2,157

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERELEZRESRAFE
Cash consideration HeHE 15,347
.. Less: bank balances and cash disposed of . . B EHMEZRITERRAS (6,586)_
8,761

* For identification purpose only

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TE#ZERERA =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

42. COMMITMENTS 42. 7EIE
Operating lease commitments KEHERIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has RBERR - AEBERETYER —EHE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under FEEZ TAIRGEKEHEE N2 BER
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties EMRERNRAERNT :

and an intangible asset which fall due as follows:

2015 2014
—E-hEF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FA&T
Within one year —FR 20,841 9,589

In the second to fifth years F_FEFRF (BEEREMTE)
inclusive 52,413 19,593
Over five years AFUE - 241
73,254 29,423

258 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZBAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

42. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 42, EIE (#)
Operating lease commitments (Continued) REMHERE &)
The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. AEBRBELCEHERNESTYME - %%
The leases are negotiated for an initial period of one to four HEREZYTFERAE—ENFE (=T —N
years (2014: one to five years), with an option to renew the F:—ZERF) WEIHARIPRBEEEE
leases and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date. Rentals HE REREEGRK - HEeLERERERT
are fixed for an average of 3 years (2014: 1 year). BHER=F(ZT—NF : —F)ETE °
Capital commitment BREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RWERAR - NEEBUTERFRIE :

following capital commitment:

2015 2014
—E-—FHEF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Contracted for but not provided for #t T3I&IED 5149
in the consolidated financial BREENGE
statements in respect of R RS
— land and building — THREF - 4,401
— plant and equipment — W R - 472
— available-for-sale investment  — AI L HERE 3,581 —
3,581 4,873
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERA
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43.

260

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had provided a
guarantee to a bank in respect of the banking facility
granted to a former subsidiary as follows:

43. RAREE

R-ZTE—NF+-A=+—H ~x&E5
BT AME QR 2 RITRVE MR TIRHE
R BT

2015 2014
—E-HE —T—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Credit facility granted by a bank ~ $R174% T B i B A &)
to a former subsidiary ZIEERE - 6,304

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial impact arising
from providing the above financial guarantee is immaterial
and accordingly, it is not accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements. The guarantee has been discharged
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lo, BEFRS

mEMBRRME

—AFFA=+—HIFE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRIZEMBRERAMEIBEREEIN A&
statements, the Group had the following material BHBLNTEREELIRS
transactions with related parties:
(a) Transactions with related companies (a) EEBEEATZRS
2015 2014
—E—HF —E—JOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
() Subcontracting cost payable to e — & A 7
an associate HoBeER 26,842 34,967
(i) Rental income receivable JEW — RS 8 A R |9
from an associate GEEAON 1,195 —
(i) Rental expenses for office premises  FEfT— R FEFEARARER
payable to a non-controlling B AYER SR
shareholder 6,661 2,535
(iv) Interest expenses payable to FEA — R FEIERRAR R
a non-controlling shareholder BRI B 1,714 1,168
(v) Interest expenses payable to B —RATEEMRE
a subsidiary of a former 2 —EK B A RIR
substantial shareholder FERX 77 236
(Vi) Interest expenses payable to E—E2RAEZ
a shareholding company FEFX 460 382
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED * FEIZRAERA 261
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) L, FAERRZ (#)

(b) Key management personnel (b) FEEEAS
Included in staff costs is key management personnel BIXNABENTSEZETEEREA
compensation which comprises the following BfE
categories:
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHAT
Short-term benefits o HBAE A 3,596 2,030
Equity-settled share-based  LAREZR A5 E 0 LAIKD
payment expenses SN 53 5,020 18,265
Post-employment benefits ~ Bf 12 18 7 272 120
8,888 20,415
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is EEZRFEITHABRENAEFE
determined by the remuneration committee having BELERENALTHRE LTSS
regard to the performance of individuals and market PIRERE -
trends.
262 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZRERAR
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45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital and to support the
Group’s stability and growth.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes borrowings, convertible notes and interest-
bearing amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, net of
bank balances and cash, and pledged bank deposits.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio, i.e. net debt to equity. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders or issue new shares as it sees fit and
appropriate. No change was made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014. The gearing ratio of the Group
is reduced for the year ended 31 December 2015 resulting
from the combined effect of the proceeds from issuance of
shares through placing and repayment of borrowings.

45. ERERE

AEEZEAEREBREREANSEESR
BREE M ARREHER - RESFRE
HpMeSBEE 2N m  WHERREZE
REBAREEARRA - AR ERAEE
ZIREMIE K

AEBEZEARBERERER  FEHE
EREE - ATRRERREN — B IEFERR
RZMBHIE - HIBRRITEBREREERE
HHRITFR -

AEBRERAFEL R EREZHEER
B/IE - L RTRFEBRIAERAE -
RERIAREARARE  MRRBENE
H ARELERBRN FRERERZEE
HBEITHRD - RBEE_T—AFR_-F
—MFE+_A=T—HLFE ~&HE
BESEFEARTEZBRE  BRIEF -
AEBEZERABELERBE_T—RF
T-A=1t—BLLFECHM T JiA
RIBEBEERTRD ZAFRBAREERE
A= Z ik

2015 2014

—F-EHF —T-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Debt &% 629,432 844,481

Less: bank balances and cash & : $R1T&64 MK

...and pledged bank deposits REERERMBITER (335819) .. (106,880),

Net debt FETS 293,613 737,601

Capital represented by total equity & 7N : 48RS 987,845 637,747

Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 30% 116%
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46. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

264

U)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Noteholder | converted Convertible Note | in aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$15,964,000
(2014: approximately HK$41,906,000) at the
conversion price of HK$1.1 per share whereby
a respective total number of 14,512,727 (2014:
38,095,909) conversion shares were issued. As a
result of the conversion, share capital and share
premium of the Company have been increased by
approximately HK$3,628,000 and HK$18,051,000
respectively (2014: increased by approximately
HK$9,524,000 and HK$45,437,000 respectively)
and the aggregate of which represents proportional
amounts of the equity component, the Derivative
Component and the liability component at the time of
conversion (note 38(b)).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Noteholder Il converted Convertible Note Il in
aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$66,000,000 (2014: approximately
HK$216,003,000) at the conversion price of HK$0.25
per share whereby a respective total number of
264,000,000 (2014: 864,011,360) conversion shares
were issued. As a result of the conversion, share
capital of the Company has been increased by
approximately HK$66,000,000 and share premium of
the Company has been increased by approximately
HK$14,663,000 respectively (2014: increased by
approximately HK$216,003,000 and share premium of
the Company has been decreased by approximately
HK$12,974,000 respectively) and the aggregate of
which represents proportional amounts of the equity
component and the liability component at the time of
conversion (note 38(c)).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain
trade and other receivables of approximately
RMB6,725,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,028,000) in aggregate were offset against the
trade and other payables, pursuant to several set-off
agreements.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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L6. ERFBERSH

M

(i)

(i)

REBEE—FT—AF+=-A=+—H1L
FE - EZEREFEEAIRER1A1BTZ
HB]MEHBE HARSFEL 15,964,000
BT =—ZF — M4 : 441,906,000
BT Z T BRBRER RS A%
176 314,512,727 R (ZZF — U & :
38,095,909 i ) .32k 1n - B A 7
Hia RRRIRARKRGREE D5
#4049 3,628,000 7% 7T K& 18,051,000
BIL(ZT—MHF: 55804
9,524,0007 7T % 45,437,00078 7T ) *
HRE AR QSRR (e R - s
Hin - PTET AN REESHZE
%8 (MIFE38(0)) °

REBEZE-FE-—AF+=-A=+—H
IFFEE  ZEBFEEAIRER0.25
BT HABREBERAREARSED
66,000,000 7L( =T — W@ F : 4
216,003,000 7T ) < AR ZHR | -
Et & 82774 ££264,000,000/% (=
T — P04 : 864,011,360 B% ) 7, # f%
7 BRBREER - AQFRAIG I
#966,000,000 % 7T & AN A &) B 15 4
B N4 14,663,000 70 ( =& —M
F : AR FRRAIE ANAY 216,003,000
B ARABIRMDREER DD
12,974,000 7T) - HABFE R KR
Wit plss s o R E k& fﬁm
2 @58 (MI3E38(c) °

REBEZE—_Z—AF+-_A=+—H1
FEHME - BT E S kEMERKIE
A ANREB,725,0007T (HER
#78,028,000/% 7t ) B R & H T H
R HE 5 M E MR RUE -
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. XA R 2 B R &R
THE COMPANY

2015 2014
—2-IfF i
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHET FHET
Non-current asset HRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RMBRRZEE 1,222,016 1,222,016
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other TS FRI8 K Ho At FE UK
receivables A 824 691
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUZBE A 71 ZIE 48,616 13,497
Tax recoverable A Y= B IE 6 6
Derivative financial assets — PTEMKEE — A
Derivative Component of BERIZITETAR
the convertible note | 219 - 34,560
_Bankbalances and cash BOMBNEBAE 45279  .....16734
e AT2D 65,488
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HEMEFIER
FEEHE A 2,369 1,527
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEIT P X R IR 8,089 8,194
Borrowing BE - 5,000
.Convertiblenotes . RBEE 85 e, T 646,054
10488 560,775
_Net current assets (liabilities) RBAZE(RE)FE 84,267 ... (495,287)
Total assets less current HWEERARBAERE
Lo dabilities e, 1,306,283 726,729
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Convertible notes AIAREER 35 421,466 116,660
JBorowing B, ... 80,000
et e e eeeeee e reeeseesesnesaseesessesassssssasaessssssasensesesennener. | 421466 146,660
Net assets BEFE 884,817 580,069
Equity s
Share capital il 38 2,039,195 1,676,652
JReserves LA TS @) o, (1,154,378) (1,096,583)
Total equity HEER 884,817 580,069
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. XA R 2 BRI TR ()
THE COMPANY (Continued)

266

Notes: BfRE -
(@) (@)
The Company b N/NE
Convertible
Share Capital note equity
Share Contributed option redemption reserve Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve TAREE losses Total
RAEE EON:A BRERE  ETEERE BifiG B a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T Tn
(note 40(a)) (note 40(c)) (note 40(d) (note 40(¢)) (note 35)
(Miz40) (M 40(0) (40 (Miz40) (3£ 35)
At 1 January 2014 R_E-mE-f-H 934,900 76,249 21,903 6,629 372,169 (2,406,325) (994,475)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FABERZENGEE
income for the year - - - - - (142,835) (142,835)
Shares issued upon exercise of  {TEEIRERTHR
share options (note 38(0)) (Fizk38t)) 1,009 - (1,009 - - - -
Conversion of Convertible Note |~ B AT Z 5|
(note 38(c) (P 38(c)) 45,437 - - - (21,722) - 28715
Issue of Convertile Note I EURREE
(note 35(0)) (P 35(0)) - - - - 57337 - 57337
Conversion of Convertiole Note Il -~ E T ARZH
(note 38(d) (PizE38(c)) (12,974) - - - (58,375) - (71,349)
Recogntion of equity-settled share BEFAL EEEE W MR
. edpametsoed9) | RfZRRMEN) e T, B T, e S no
At 31 December 2014 and RZ5-WF
1 January 2015 TZR=T-BR
“2-1%-F-H 968,372 76,249 51,918 6,629 349,409 (2,549,160) (1,096,583)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREER
income for the year Eiliesatd - - - - - (269,845) (269,845)
Shares Issue upon placing REREZTRG
fnote 38() (Hz380) 76,000 - - - - - 76,000
Share issue expenses (note 38(d)  RAZMER (ME38d)  6.729) - - - - - (5,723
Shares issuied upon exercise ieERRERTRRA
of share options (note 38/z)) (P 38(a) 15,904 - (13,776) - - - 2128
Meturty of Comverte Note |~~~ TATRE 41315 - - - - (290581) 290,581 -
Renewal of Convertble Note |~ AR EE - - - - 130915 - 139915
Conversion of Convertible Note |~ AT ARER
fote 380) (i 38) 18,051 - - - 8279 - 9776
Conversion of Convertble Note -~ AT BRZEI
fnote 38(0) (B2 380) 14,663 - - - (33470) - (18.807)
Recognition of equty-settled B ERE R LD
... Shabesedpayrerts poted) | RAZR (RS T B T IR S 761
At 31 December 2015 \ZE-1E
+-B=t-A 1,087,267 76,249 46903 6629 156,998 (2528,424) (1,154,378)
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBRARFIE
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 and N_E—RAFR_FT—NF+_A=1+—
2014 are as follows: AZMBRARFBRT -
Paid up issued/ Percentage of effective equity
Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation HRERT/ BEATROREEEY Principal activities
ARER RUEEANES bt B ERRERREREAY IERH
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
E-1% “Z-pE

tzB=t-8 +2A=1-H

Interests held directly:

ERRERR:

Brave Lion Investments Limited BVI USS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRUES 1% RERR

Jichang Investments Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRAES 1% REHR

Polar Sea Ventures Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRUES 1%7 RERR

Interests held indirectly:

BiERL

Camex Mongolia MNT12,000,000 100% 100%  Mineral resources
ECE 1200000055 EERER exploration and

investment holding
BEARDRRRALR

Kores Mongolia LLG Mongolia MNT11,640,000 70% 70% Mineral resources exploration
St 11,640,000 5 LB ER RELRHR

TNE Mongolia MNT10,000,000 100% 100% Mining business in Mongolia
XL 100000005 BB ER RFEEZ RBER

Grand State Holdings Limited BVI USS1 100% 100% Property investment
AERAES 1% NERE

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED XTEiZRAERAE A
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

268

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

48. TEMB A RFIE #)

Paid up issued/ Percentage of effective equity
Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation HrERfT/ BENT REAEEE. Principal activities
ARER dffay/ Sk ERSERRK ERRERRERESY IEEH
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
Z3-1f “E-mE
t-A=t-A ft-A-t-A
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
BiAER (£
Peace Map Management Services Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Provision of administrative
(formerly known as MIG Management ~~ &7# 1B senvices in Hong Kong
Senvices Limited) EERRUERERY
AT EERREARAA
(BITEMIG Management
Senvices Limited)
Peace Map Technology Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% - Technology and software
(note vi) o 1,000,000 7 application development
R MERBARAT (BfzEvi) UPE
Sinbo BV HK$10,821 100% 100%  Investment holding
e ABRUES 10821 /8T REARR
Beiing Peace Map Information (note v) PRC HK$179,000,000 100% 100%  Technology and software
IRATBIES (Hitv) i 179,000,007 applcation development
RITREERRE
Beiing Peace Map (note iv) PRC RMB29,170,000 81.15% 81.15% Date processing of
TRATE (Mitw) h ANE 29,170,000 (note i) (note) geographical data,
(RtEi) (Fz) research and development
of GISin the PRC
REEE TR ERE
NRHZRFE GIS
Beiing Peace Map Aerospace PRC RVB1,000,000 81.15% 41.39%  Sales of geographical data
Technology Limited* e ARE1,000,0007 (note i, il notel)  HEMEHE
(‘Peace Map Aerospace’) (note I, ¥ (B i R vii) Bz
IR TBMARGARAR
([ZTEMXE ) (v Rix)
AVIC Siwei (Beijing) Aviation Remote PRC RMB15,000,000 53.56% 53.56% Data processing of
Sensing Technology Limited® qﬂ AR 150000007 (note i) (note i geographical data and
['AVIC Siwei') (note i) (Rf3Tii) (R trading of aerial photo

RN (LR REERRIERLA

(Tehhimg ) (Bitiv)

* For identification purpose only
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBARFE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Paid up issued/ Percentage of effective equity
Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital atributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation HrERfT/ BENT REAEEER Principal activities
AER AfgRL/AEznE  EREERRA ERRERRERESY IEEH
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
%-1f ZEIE

t-A=t-A f-A-t-A

Interests held indirectly: (Continued)

BREARE: (2)

Beiing Shenghezhuang Technology Limited” PRC RVB10,000,000 46.45% 46.45%  Provision of
(note iv) g AR%10,000,0007T (note i) (note i) information technology
PRBREREARRTAT (Hitv) (KisEii) (RzEi) senvices
AL BRI R
Clear Aerial Technology Co., Limited” PRC RMB2,150,000 21.32% 27.32% Manufacturing and trading
(‘Beijing Langtian Botai’) (note iv) i AR#2,1500007 (note iii) (note il of unmanned aircrafts
IR ERREERAT (Wi (Biskin) and relaed equipment
([frmR AR () TEREERARER
LB
Yunnan Tugun Information Technology PRC RMB3,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  Trading of seff-developed
Limited” (note ) g AK3,0000007 (note i) (note i products
ERBZERRIARAR (M) (KyeEii) (i) EEBTREER
Beiing Haicheng Huatu Technology PRC RMB15,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  Technology and software
Limited* (note v) i AR 15,000,000 (note ii (note i application development
TREEEERBERAR (M) (Kt (M) HEREAEARY
Zhejiang Peace Map Information and PRC RMB6,000,000 81.15% 81.15% GIS technology and software
Technology Limited" (note v) 5 AK6,0000007 (note i) (note i) application development
WX TEMRE ERMBRAA (KyaEii) (Waki)  GISRmRGHERRL
(Bistw)
Guizhou Peace Map Information and PRC RMB10,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  GIStechnology and software
Technology Limited (note ) if AR%10,000,0007T (note i) (note i) application development
ENRTEESRIFARAR (Mih) (W) (M) GISHEREAERRY
Shanghai Elite International PRC RMB10,000,000 81.15% - Trading
Trading Co., Limited (note iv & vi) $ AR10,000,0007T (note i) g%
HERERERE AR (Wit Rvi) (Rt

* For identification purpose only
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

270

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in

the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Notes:

(i)

No equity interests of Beijing Peace Map was held by the
Company. Beijing Peace Map Information, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Sinbo entered into the Structural Agreements with
Beijing Peace Map and its then shareholders in October 2012.
Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership, through the
Structural Agreements, Beijing Peace Map Information is able
to exercise control over Peace Map Group by way of controlling
the voting rights of Beijing Peace Map, governing their financial
and operating policies, appointing and removing the majority of
the members of their controlling authorities, casting the majority
of votes at meeting of such authorities and deriving economic
benefits from Peace Map Group. Accordingly, Peace Map Group
is accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group after the acquisition
of Sinbo on 2 August 2013. As one of the then shareholders of
Beijing Peace Map with equity interests of 18.85% was not a
contracting party to the Structural Agreements, only 81.15% of
the financial results of Peace Map Group is attributable to the
Group.

These companies are subsidiaries directly non-wholly owned
and controlled by Beijing Peace Map.

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X TEZERERA R
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(V)

)

(V)

(vii)

(i)

This company is subsidiary indirectly owned and controlled by
Beijing Peace Map.

These entities are registered as a private limited company under
the PRC law.

This entity is registered as Wholly Owned Foreign Entity under
the PRC law.

The entity was incorporated on 23 April 2015.

The entity was incorporated on 1 September 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Beijing Peace
Map acquired an additional 49% equity interest of Peace Map
Aerospace. Details are set out in note 50.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other

subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of

these subsidiaries operates in Hong Kong and BVI. The

principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as

follows:

Principal activities

48.

Principal place of business

fRE M RR M
—AEF A=t —HIFE

FEMB QRS @)

BisE (&)

(i) FZATALRKRTEREREE Rz 2 M
J%’Aﬂ °

v) ZEEEREFEAEFMALABRA
ﬁj °

(v) z ERBETRBEAZEFMAINEBE L

V) ZERBER-Z—AFNHA=-+=H=FM
AL e

Vi) ZERENR-_Z—RFNA—BFEMmRKL -

(vii) HE —RF+-_A=1+—HLHF

IS
- it,?\%"l—lﬂﬁzﬁ%i"l—lﬂn%ﬁﬁﬁl\
49% Z IR AR o FEIFHMNIRE S0 -

RBERR - NABFEAHAKEL NE
RZEMMBATF - BAZBULFH B L
ARBEREBRIBEERERY - %F
MEBRR TREBHMRIT

Number of subsidiaries

FTEEHK ERERME MELRBE
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E-HF —ZE-F
+t=A=t—H +=-A=+—"H
Dormant BVI 1 3
EEN-ES RBREZES
Mongolia 1 1
e
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
KRB BB
BVI 2 2
KBRS
Singapore - 1
................................................. B e
5 8
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49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 49. MEERFEZERER ZFZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BARZHE
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The table below shows the details of non-wholly-owned TRAEAEB 2B ERNIFIERER 2 IE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling 2EMBARZFFSE
interests:
Place of Percentage of effective
incorporation or equity interest and
establishment/ voting rights attributable to
operation the non-controlling interests asat  Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of Subsidiary HMEAL/ BENT REFERERE non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
iz PEE2 ey HERBERAZERI  AREHEREZZAE(ER) EHE I I

31122015 31122014 31422015 31122014 31122015 31122014
S A L = A
t=A=t-R t=A=t-R 12A=t-8 12A=t-R 12B=t-R 2A=t-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TER TER

Beiing Peace Map (note | PRC 18.85% 18.85% (6,379) (15,930) 73,282 82997
FRRTE (H) hE
AVIC Siwei (note i, i PRC 46.44% 46.44% (8,792) (6,645) 387 8,524
it (BsE - i) hE
Beiing Langtian Botai (note i, i) PRC 72.68% 72.68% (3,551) (4,99) (3,361) 174
TreiRER (Wi i) hEl
Indlividually subsicliaries

with immaterial non-controling interests (483) 2299 (8,155) (6,617)

ERBEEAEARERNEAT

(19,205) (25,269 62,153 8,078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

No equity interest is held by the Company. The Company has
control over the subsidiaries through the Structural Agreements.
Further details of the Structural Agreements are set out in note
48(i).

The company is a subsidiary directly owned and controlled by
Beijing Peace Map.

This company is a subsidiary indirectly owned and controlled by
Beijing Peace Map.

The summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup

L9. BEERFEREZ ZIFZEM
BARz#HE®)

() AREAEFEE( TR - NAREBLE
BRI HIH B AR o A IEEE
— S BEEF I FE 48() °

() HARBILRA FEEERA RIEH 2K
BAF -

(i) FZATARLRKRTEFEREES R 2 M
BAF -

BRABEAEHER S 2 A RE XM B
RAZHBEERBEEEN T o AT
BRI R IR R B AR EIE 2 B2 3R -

eliminations.

2015 2014
—T-I%F i
Beijing Peace Map =X TE HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current assets MBEE 487,684 429,244
Non-current assets JEMBNEE 603,252 614,278
Current liabilities mEIAEE (619,556) (515,369)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (82,615) (87,852)

Equity attributable to owners RARHAE AR
of the Company 315,483 357,304
Non-controlling interests AR A A 73,282 82,997
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 4L9. MEERFERERZFZER
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BoRzF#E @)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2015 2014
Beijing Peace Map (Continued) tRXTE (4%&) —E-hfF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET TETT
Revenue WA 221,087 185,829
Expenses HX (254,930) (270,339)
Loss for the year FNEE (33,843) (84,510)
Loss attributable to owners RAREE AEILERE
of the Company (27,464) (68,580)
Loss attributable to the I IR TS R 5 1
non-controlling interests (6,379) _(1 5,930)_
Loss for the year FAEE (33,843) (84,510)
Other comprehensive expense  ZANA FI1HEA A FE(L
attributable to owners HEih 2w
of the Company (14,357) (5,659)
Other comprehensive expense  FFIEAXHEZS FE(L
attributable to the Hib2EMAX
non-controlling interests (3,336) _ (1,31 4)_
Other comprehensive expense  FARE 2 EFISL
for the year (17,693) (6,973)
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49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

49. BRERFEZERER 2 IFZEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BARz#HE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ZE-mF
Beijing Peace Map (Continued) tZRXTE (&) HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Total comprehensive expense NAEHAE AN
attributable to owners HERZ B
of the Company (41,821) (74,239)
Total comprehensive expense FEIEIRE R PR
attributable to the P HEF X A5
non-controlling interests (9,715) (17,244)
Total comprehensive expense FHNEHEFZ BT
for the year (51,536) (91,483)
Dividends paid to BT IR S 2 IR E
non-controlling interests = -
Net cash inflow (outflow) from KEEH RS
operating activities A O ) F8E 91,773 (16,544)
Net cash outflow from KEEBRE
investing activities T F R (34,954) (33,230)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from BEESHZEL (RE)
financing activities MAERE (40,124) 45,550
Net cash inflow (outflow) WA R F58 16,695 (4,224)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED L9. BEERKERERZIZEN
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BATZ#HE#)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2015 2014

—E-RE —ZE—OF

AVIC Siwei i PO 4 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT FEIT

Current assets MBNEE 116,980 162,744
Non-current assets IEMBEE 24,435 30,791

Current liabilities meas (133,024) (168,438)

Non-current liabilities ElEIN=E (7,558) (6,742)

Equity attributable to owners RNAREA AFEL

of the Company R 446 9,831
Non-controlling interests eI I E 387 8,524
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 49. MEBERFEZERER ZFZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BATZ#E @)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continuead)

2015 2014
—E-1F —ZE-mF
AVIC Siwei (Continued) FRT4E (F) HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Revenue WA 61,819 88,693
Expenses M (80,750) (103,001)
Loss for the year FNBE (18,931) (14,308)
Loss attributable to owners RREEA AEGEE
of the Company (10,139) (7,663)
Loss attributable to the IR T R (G B 1B
non-controlling interests (8,792) _ (6,645)_
Loss for the year FAEE (18,931) (14,308)
Other comprehensive income ZIN/NSIE T ZE N
(expense) attributable to owners  FE(RE A 2 EU 2 (FZ)
of the Company 754 (2,688)
Other comprehensive income FEIERR A A
(expense) attributable to the FEE E A 2 E I ER ()
non-controlling interests 655 _ (2,330)_
Other comprehensive income FAEMEERE (FX)
(expense) for the year 1,409 (5,018)
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED XTEZ=RERAT 277

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 49. MEERFEZERER ZFZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BARz#E®
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2015 2014
—E-EfF —ZE—F
AVIC Siwei (Continued) AT (4E) HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Total comprehensive expense NRNEHAE AN
attributable to owners HERZ B
of the Company (9,385) (10,351)
Total comprehensive expense FEIERRE R PR
attributable to the T HRX AR
non-controlling interests (8,137) (8,975)
Total comprehensive expense FHNEHAEFZ BT
for the year (17,522) (19,326)
Dividends paid to BT IR S 2 R E
non-controlling interests = —
Net cash (outflow) inflow from e EE 2R S
operating activities O ) MAF R (22,813) 17,878
Net cash outflow from REGSH RS
investing activities M HER (304) (72)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Re ORH) mAFEE (23,117) 17,806
278 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED % FEZRAERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

49. BRERFEZERER 2 IFZEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BARz#HE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ZE-mF
Beijing Langtian Botai B RESR HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Current assets MBNEE 22,242 26,186
Non-current assets JEMBNEE 5,832 7,501
Current liabilities MENBE (32,691) (33,447)
Non-current liabilities JERBBE (7 —
Equity attributable to owners RAREA A
of the Company FE(LHER (1,263) 66
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR (3,361) 174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 49. MEERFEZERER ZFZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BArZHE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2015 2014
—E-EfF —T—MF
Beijing Langtian Botai (Continued) 1t B K {EZ%R (&) HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Revenue WA 2,726 4,827
Expenses (53 (7,612) (11,696)
Loss for the year FNEE (4,886) (6,869)
Loss attributable to owners RAEHA AEGEE
of the Company (1,335) (1,876)
Loss attributable to the IR T R (G B 1B
non-controlling interests (3,551) _ (4,993)_
Loss for the year FREE (4,886) (6,869)
Other comprehensive RARHB AEML
income (expense) attributable Hih2mEKas ()
to owners of the Company 6 (175)
Other comprehensive eI PR
income (expense) attributable Hih2mEKa= ()
tq the noq-controlling interest_s _ _ _ 16 _ (466)
Other comprehensive FAHMEERE (FAX)
income (expense) for the year 22 (641)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

49. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

49. BRERFEZERER 2 IFZEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BARz#HE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ZE-mF
Beijing Langtian Botai (Continued) 1t =BIX @ (&) HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Total comprehensive expense NAEHAE AN
attributable to owners HERZ B
of the Company (1,329) (2,051)
Total comprehensive expense FEIE IR R PR
attributable to the P HEF X A5
non-controlling interests (3,535) (5,459)
Total comprehensive expense FHNEHEFZ BT
for the year (4,864) (7,5610)
Dividends paid to BT IR S 2 IR B
non-controlling interests = -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from EEB 2/ e (RL)
operating activities MAFEE (1,583) 245
Net cash outflow from KEEBRE
investing activities M FRE (143) ©)
Net cash outflow from BB RS HE
financing activities TR FRE - —
Net cash (outflow) inflow R R mAFE (1,726) 239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2 —F—AF 1= H="1+—HIFFZF

50. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Group has the following change in its
ownership interest in a subsidiary.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On 1 September 2015, Beijing Peace Map acquired an
additional 49% equity interest of Peace Map Aerospace,
increasing its ownership interest to 100%. Cash
consideration of RMB490,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$609,000) was paid to the non-controlling shareholder,
which carrying value of the net assets of Peace Map
Aerospace (excluding goodwill on the original acquisition)
was approximately HK$69,000. A schedule of the effect of
acquisition of additional interest is as follow:

50. R—EME AR 2R ERER
2E

RN ARER—HMBARZ EEERE
BT o

U s — 2 B 70 B M2

RZZ—RAFhA—H dtRAXTENK
BRTEMREINIOD 2 RAER - ¥
HBAEEE100% -  BEeREBARE
490,000 7t (18 & 1 49609,0007 7T ) B X
P —BIEERARR - RIS
BEXATEMAEEFEZEKMAE(TEIE
[RIGUREE 2 B2 ) B 4969,00078 T o Uk iE
BIMER BT RATR 5

2015
—E-—FRF
HK$’000
FHET
Carrying amount of PR RS FE1E IR A 2 2 AR EI (B
non-controlling
interest acquired (69)
Consideration paid for AR T EMARTEIMERFTZ NRE
acquisition of additional
interest in Peace Map
BT 0. e (609)
Difference recognised in PR RE R ER 2 =58
retained earnings within equity (678)

51. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 February 2016, MIG Resources Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of its entire
equity interest of 100% in Grand State Holdings Limited for
a cash consideration of US$738,000. The transaction was
completed on 18 March 2016 and the gain on disposal is
approximately US$664,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,181,000).
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51. HEHREE

R-ZZE—X"E_ARB " A&EE—RHKH
B A FIMIG Resources Limited £ — % ¥&
VEZAFNLU—HEEHE UWHEH
A Grand State Holdings Limited &) & &8 A%
Rz - RERERT38,000F T R
E-—RNE=ZA+N\B RFEEK" M
& 2 W25 # 5 664,0003 7T (HEE R4
5,181,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2—F—AF 1 —HA="1+—HIFE

52. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 52. Lk EBEF
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the comparative REBEEZZE—AF+_A=1+—HLF
figures of other gain and losses had been reclassified to B Httas RBEENERBEFEETS
conform with the current year’s presentation. HOUFREERFEZYAA -
As the reclassifications have no financial effect on the MREMOBETESRGENBERARERE
amounts stated in the consolidated statement of financial EEVBEE  WHAZINR_T—HNF
position, it is Not necessary to present the third consolidated —A—BZEB=REMERRE -

statement of financial position as at 1 January 2014.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B HE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of A TEHINZAEBBEEREMBEE 2 EE U
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from REEIBEHRE HHEEC HIBNLCEZLR
the published audited consolidated financial statements, is & ##HEk o WHEW TEKEEZEE T
shown below. This summary does not form part of the audited ~— ¥&F .2 —307D ©

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS E 5
For the
nine months For the
ended year ended
31 December 31 December
For the year BZ BZE
ended 31 March +=R=+-H +=ZA=+-H
BZ=RA=1t-HLEE ENEA LEE
2012 2013 2013 2014 2015
%= =% ZF-=F CZF-BF ZB-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TR
_ R(_ever)ue o o Hﬁl_)\ ______ 935_,57_4 o 856,70_1 _ 2jO,Q89 _ _338,808_ 304,881
Loss for the year/period AEE/BAER (1,388,046) (299,994) (271,162) (382,467) (154,711)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March As at 31 December
R=ZR=+-H W+=R=+-H
2012 2013 2013 2014 2015
-F- =% ZF-=F CZF-BF ZB-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET THET THT TEr
Total assets BEE 1,433,868 1,218,580 2,053,573 1,864,318 1,955,498
Total liabilities BafE (1,092,944) (1,185,963) (1,268,472) (1,226,571) (967,653)
Total equity HRER 340,924 32,617 785,101 637,747 987,845
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